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Board's Report forthe year 2018-19

Your Board of Directors has great pleasure in
presenting the Ninety Seventh Annual Report with the
Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2019, the
Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement
forthe yearended March 31,2019.

1. Business Performance

The Bank has had a successful year in its 97"
year of operations and recorded satisfactory
performance. During the year under review, the total
business increased from ¥56,197.05 crore to
%61,624.19 crore registering a growth of 9.66%. The
gross NPAs and net NPAs both in absolute terms and
as a percentage of total advances marginally
increased over the previous year.

Performance Highlights:

= Operating profit decreased from %1,005.99
crore to¥884.24 crore.

= Net profit Increased from 3221.92 crore to
¥258.58 crore (+16.52%).

= Deposits of the Bank increased from ¥32,428.33
crore to ¥35,136.25 crore (+8.35%) during the
year.

= Gross Advances increased from ¥24,133.29
crore to ¥27,018.66 crore (+11.96%) during the
year.

= NetAdvances increased from323,768.72 crore to
326,487.94 crore (+11.44%) during the year.

= Gross NPAs increased from 3.60% t0 4.32%.
= Net NPAs increased from 2.16% t0 2.40%.

= Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) improved from
72.71%1t073.61%

The total income decreased by T 117.84 crore
during the year from 33,756.61 crore in the previous
yearto ¥ 3,638.77 crore during the year under review
(-3.14%).
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BWwEEHIs6T &Leler Sinflsemns 2018-19 :

®2 maer UMBUIOT SWHSSBHT & LD,
asnen Oy gpreg AGLIbSDT
SNl &em &L 60T, HevollBeme GFwwiULL 31.03.2019
SleTm (PREUDLHS UBLESSDETT SpLiy Hemed
&H600TEHE SO HeL &600T6H G OHMILD LevorLILLp& &
ANf&ems SpBWeuDemD 2 MRIG6T (Ppedr Fmilliuged
GLIBLDBLPEE SlemLBEMSI.

1. eurkIBuNedT eletOlleH EFUIDHMEDT :

[BLD&! GUMBIBUIN6IT O76ugI 6UHLLDIT6T E6l6uTevor®
SlemeaTHH Hlewmoelab EMw @& we
SDEMILET QFWOULLLSTEO HLDF QUMESE &db
QMM &TLDT6T ShevoTLMT&E Slew LD Gl 6T 6 &l
Seleuneor® 6uRIBUIEIT GILDTSHS euettiisd 56,197.05
Campuigpha 61,624.19 Camouwing 2_winbg 9.66%
s5NBHLD euenTsd HevorGaTengl. eumiBuledr 6ILDNSHS
&LeofledODMSS MM BHT 6UTNSHSHL60TE&6T LDHMILD
Slper s5NEHD B5LHS QUGBGLSMS L
en@m 2_WINHSIETENSI.

QFWIEOLIML1R60T FAMLIL| SILDEFTRIGET :

* GaFweurL® eorulb 31.005.99 GampuiedmHal
1884.24 GsMawing &emDhHSI6Tens

* Bsy eonub 3221.92 Gamuiedmnas I258.58
Gamewins 2_wipmbgleTengl (+16.52%)

+ aumBuler emeulil B 32,428.33 Gamgui-
@b I35.136.25 Gampwinsg 2 WIMbHleTers
(+8.35%)

* 6uURS euUPmIBW OMTHS HLOTHET I24,133.29
Campuiedlmmpes I27.018.66 Gampuwns
2_winpglenengl (+11.96%)

c aumd eupmRbw Bey sLeTHeT I23,.768.72
Campuied@mhgs 26,487.94 Gampuwns
o _winpglenengl (+1.44%)

s OWNHH eupnesLeT 3.60% F56155BEHE 4.32%
FHEHBLDNG ©_WINHEIET6Ng)

« By eupnesLeT 2.16% &56155S0BHE 2.40%
F&6lsLONG 2 _WINHEIET6ng)

o unganly 680G 8D 72.71.% 561568
eOlBBE 73.61% EHENHLONSG ©_WINHSIETENEI.

6umIBufledr 615 6uIBLDMEDTD 117.84 Gamip
GMDHE HLHS 6UIHL eUdHLDTeTDMer I 3,756.61
G&miguf edl @ b &I X 3,638.77 Gampwns
SewDhHSleTengl. (-3.14%)
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Interest income decreased from 3,250.49
crore to ¥3,224.46 crore. Other income decreased
from ¥ 506.12 crore to T414.31 crore during the current
year. Increase in total expenditure was at ¥3.91crore.
The total expenditure increased from ¥2,750.62 crore
during the previous year to ¥2,754.53 crore during the
current year. Earnings per share increased from
¥15.57 to ¥18.14, the book value of the share
increased from¥238.91 t07253.89.

2. Profitand appropriation

The net profit stood at ¥258.58 crore for the
financial year ended 31.03.2019 after making all
necessary provisions under various categories as per
the prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of
India. The appropriation out of the profit earned for the
financial year 2018-19 as under:

Transferred to: Xincrore
Profit and Loss account opening balance 36.04
Less: 2™ Interim Dividend for 2017-18 paid 28.50
(¥2.00 per share)
Less: Tax on Interim Dividend @ 20.555294% 5.86
Available balance in Profit and Loss account 1.68
Net profit 258.58
Available for appropriation 260.26
Statutory Reserve 78.00
Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of IT Act, 1961 26.00
Investment Reserve 5.83
Investment Fluctuation Reserve 29.16
Capital Reserve 3.07
Transfer to General Reserve 61.00
Balance carried over to next year 57.20
Total 260.26

3. Dividend

Considering the profit earned and overall
growth in business of your Bank during the year, your
Board of Directors was pleased to declare an interim
dividend of 32% (3.20 per equity share of¥10 each) on
May 30, 2019. Subsequently, Bank has received a
letter dated 11.06.2019 from the Reserve Bank of India
restricting the Bank from declaring or distributing any
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6UL I 6 (H6eUMI 13,250.49 Gampuiad®mhal
13,224.46 Gampuwns Geophaleaags. 50
6)(BLDMEDTLD [BLLIL Shevoriged 506.12 Gampuiedl®hal
414.31 Ganpuing GewDHSI6TeNgl. 6IDNSSH 61&F606Y&6T
13.91 Gamp 2 _wihgleTengl. eumSuler LTSS
1 FEEY&HET HLIHS 6UIHL 615606 T 60T 32,750.62
Campuiellgphs T2.754.53 Gampuns
2 _WIMhHFIETENgl. 6l66UNIH LRISHESLD L lpuwl &eomuLd
R5.57®mHE I18.14 Shs 2_WIMHSHI6TENSI. LRG0t
Uss& Pl I238.91 Bellphs 253.89 &5
2 _WIMHSIGTETEI.

2. SeonLpLd RFHISEBSEIBLD :

31.03.2019 Siedtm) (PReUeDLHS BHuimeroroed
unrpgs Mernel aumMBUIeT U TWDD & G
Beorme CoemeuwineT @FH&EGHemeT LedGeum)
Wfleysefieor &b QFLs 6T eumId I258.58 Gamg
Begeomuld FLigueaTerg. Seomudb &G
QBMBa&sLILIL(BeTemLI LSTULL(B6Teng

Q&IHEBE6T T Gamguied
&eonu OHNID BLLE &HOUHES OSTLES Sl 36.04
() 2615 BewL&EMD FEHASTNE 2017-18 SHid
SHIBBEETE FQISSILLLE (@® URSHSE 2.00) 28.50
() BmLésme mayEasTmELlT Woter eurl
@20.555294% >80
8oy HMILD FHLL Bevvreds Bhesoemignl L 1.68
B&r eomuLd 258.58
Q5I6BGHEBHHMET Sl 260.26
srliyfie @686 78.00
Aol 56606 eumner eufldsrib 1961 ey 26.00
36 (1) (VIIl) er &ip ’
Vo6 RFHEE6 5.83
wse6 gpp 8pss RHEEG 29.16
Yo 5IeE0 3.07
ouNgl Q&I6S® MHDLILILLE 61.00
SIBHS SheuTENG O&HTETTTB elEedeLILELD 57.20
586 esnems )
ALDNSSLD 260.26

3. Seomul LRSS :

©_MIB6T SWSGSHTH6ET 2 _RIG6T 6UMIS FLIQU|6T6T
eonmuwb LDOHWL QLGB O@LITSSH
euemmsslulenens &HHHL QOsMeoorB 2019 G 30
Sleim 32% &H6lipD SewLEHETEO MUl
uRISLTe Sifleliude épFdwenLBonissr. I 10
UL ETeT Qealaemdd &b UREDSEGLWD I 3.20
Seorull URELNS 6ULPRISLILLB6TeNgl. 6URISWTeTS
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interim or final dividend till further order. Hence the
board decided not to distribute the declared dividend
till removal of the restrictions by RBI. However, the
Bank is taking all possible efforts to address the RBl's
concern so that the dividend can be distributed at the
earliest.

4. Capital and reserves

The Bank's issued and paid up capital was
¥142.51crore ason March 31, 2019.

During the Financial Year 2018-19, there was
no change in the capital structure of the bank. The
capital plus reserves of the Bank has moved up from
%3,404.79 crore to 3¥3,618.26 crore on account of
balance of profit transferred from Profit and Loss
Accountduring the current financial year.

Sec 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
provides for deduction in respect of any Special
Reserve created and maintained to the extent of 20%
of the profit derived from the business of providing long
term finance for industrial or agricultural development
or development of infrastructure facility or housing in
India. Accordingly, the Bank has created a Special
Reserve of ¥26.00 crore during the year to avail the tax
benefit u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

5. Issue of Equity shares

During the year under review there was no fresh
issue of capital.

6. Capital adequacy

The accretion to capital funds during the year
amounted to ¥213.47 crore which raised the net worth
of the Bank to ¥3,618.26 crore. The Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) stood at 16.17% (as
per Basel lll) as on March 31, 2019, which is more than
the minimum required level of 10.875% (including the
Capital Conservation Buffer) stipulated by Reserve
Bank of India. The CRAR consisted predominantly of
Common Equity Tier | (CET 1) which constituted
15.52% of CRAR

7. Deposits

The aggregate Deposits of the Bank as on
31.03.2019 stands at ¥35,136.25 crores, registering a
growth of 8.35% over ¥32,428.33 crores as on
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oSl aphaieny SeoruliumErBGsHasnems
SinleNssGeu Slbedg QILPHIEEEUT Gnl Mgl 6T60TM)| LMIS
flerel eumdwned SPflemssuurL 11.06.2019
CrPuWILL &5 Q6TM GUMRISWITEd UMLUILILLS.
8zeoned SWSGHT G(LPeUTETE, MET6l eumIBWITeDd
MfesalULL GLELUUTLEDL SEMTHSHID 6Uen T
SiflefsslurL SeomulUmsSLenL euLprhis GeauesorL b
6T60T (LPIR6Y OIFILISTI. SheUTTEILD 6UMRISWIMEOTE &enmuLd
UBISLBSH65TensWlener efenIha 6ULPHIGeUSDE
SleweuTEHSHINSLDMEDT (LD EEWETILILD TGSHSHIEUBHBDS!.
4. ELPELSEVTLD LDMHMILD 6&ISEBEET

20191b &hevor® LOMTE 31D CaBuleorm eumiSuled
QIPMeELUULL WOMNLW O6FaQHSLUULL
cLpeseuID  I142.51 @amg epUMUITE SBHSS-

2018-1910 Shevoriged UM Suledr cLp 6o & 6ot
SlemLILN6d eThHaeUTH LLMHDWPLD Sebemen. HLLIL
BHwneooriged eonu HLLE HeoorsHED & (HH Sl
SeonusSemenr LIHDLD OFWLHH6D 6um S uledr
cpegeuTld HMILD SLiLseT I3,404.79 Gamgpuied
8mhs I3.618.26 Gampwns 2 WHSI6TENSH.
eugpLoment eullggLrLb 1961 Wfley 36(1) (Viii) e i
asnpled eMeusnw SINeN@psd SlpgluenL
BLLeOWLLY 6uFd WWHMID 65F BLLEOLILEEHSE
0aBMTE6HS HeooTL &MesH HL6T HTer enusded
20 &s6isd ApUy RH&SLTS aFLwWlULGeTeng.
Sl HeT LI 6ughMer eufl &5 60 &
eumieusHeENs 326 Gampe aubLner eufls FULLD 1961
Wfley 36(1) (Viiideor u Aply @&ss6G
QELIWILILIL BETeTg).
5. §LD UGG CLPEDSEDTLD QULDMRIGSHED :

85 SHhevoT(6 Shliey (Ppleedled 6THSH 616U D
UMBIG&EHLD e1euefiuiL Ll eXleoemed

6. (LDEL&HEDT HE0T6ullemme :

eunlBufledr cpeogHeot B Slemey X 213.47 Gami
SgsfssPerned eumsuier Bay wHLY I 3.618.26
Gampwns 2 wrpaereng BASEL |ll-6r ui
WPOHOTHEHGLD SLIT FNMHS &N S H 6 EIh & & T 60T
ezl 31.03.2019 Sledim) 16.17% &g unps Mamel
QMmBulermed Mewm T WM &SELUULL G 6 6T
GemDHS LULEF Slemeurnerr 10.875% el SiFsbnGLD.
(wpeogerr ungasnly SevLwaswb C&Ms &)
gUmE SIGse 1 (CETI) wer Wrsnerons Swmhal
8y wposgarssnHDGL LT F1ihHs
AFNHHEEHHS 56155860 15.52% F5615DM6
2_6ieng).

7. emaulil B8 euensd :

aumBufer emaulilBs &LbHs Shevor® 2018 Lbnrs
31 Csd Beweowimeor 32,428.33 Gameuimng 2019
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31.03.2018. The interest rates for deposits were kept
aligned with the prevailing trends in the Banking
Industry

8. Advances portfolio— management of assets and
development of business

The Bank continued its lending activities in
conformity with the policies and guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The Gross Advances of the Bank has
increased from ¥24,133.29 crore as on 31.03.2018 to
%27,018.66 crore as on 31.03.2019. The increase in
growth was mainly attributable to the growth in retail
advances and MSME advances.

The Bank continued its thrust on lending to
priority sectors including Agriculture and Micro and
Small Enterprises comprising both manufacturing and
service enterprises. The level of advances to priority
sectors stood at¥16,923.90 crore as on March 31, 2019,
which constituted 69.19% from the level of 65.38%
achieved previous year as against the regulatory
minimum requirement of 40%.

Agricultural Advances reached 36,076.64 crore
as on March 31,2019, which constituted 24.84% of
quarterly average ANBC (without including the RIDF
advances and other qualifying investments for priority
Agri. Advances) as against the regulatory minimum
requirement of 18%.

Total advances to the weaker sections stood
at ¥4,733.12 crore as on March 31, 2019, which
represented 19.35 % of the quarterly average Adjusted
Net Bank Credit, as against the regulatory minimum
requirement of 10%.

The bank also achieved the mandatory targets
for the sub-sectors like Loans to Small and Marginal
Farmers and Advances to Micro Enterprises with
comfortable margin.

Under export credit the bank achieved a level
0f¥672.52 crore as on 31.03.2019 showing a growth of
11.89% over ¥601.04 crore achieved as on March 31,
2018.

During the current year, the bank will strive
further to increase the flow of credit to Agriculture,
Retail Sector, Weaker Sections and the MSME sector.

The bank actively participated in all the
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s 31b Gad 35.136.25 Gamowins 2_wiibg 8.35%
euenESllemLbgleTengl. emeulil BH&@ eupmsLILIGLD
Ll elfsD eumdBsHemmuUIed Beoeyld 6uL 1
NB55850& Banmer SlemralGeoGI eneusSLLIBHSSI-

8. aURIBUN6OT HL6OT QULDMRIGHED FHiemM :

unps Memel eurmBuien euenIwemnn&ES® 2 LULB
HLDE 6mbéE &L 6ILMEGEe e
QBMLABE FBULG 6UBENS eumiSuled SleflsaslrL
OLMNHESHEHLE OFMTemHBWTeTH 2018
e 31 Sleorm 324,133.29 Gampuidmbs oHm
SFgesMss 2019 wrrs 31 S erm
X 27,018.66 Gamawins Smhssl. febevemn afihLeneor
WO dAnGn. HGSHST 6lerolsmi&efer alernTs sl
Wp&BWILDNS AABsHSSieTengi.

aumiBwnenrg fml. HESHST AT efleusmiLiLd
sbLhLUBS LULULL 2 pusd G&Fem e
BMI6)60TEI& @& &LD WOHMILD Wpereflend &ewm
MfMleller s &LD &L6T 6MLDpM e & ayLb
OFs PHSWFI6UD OBTBHSH UBSOTDEH 2019 LDMTE
31b CGpd Beeaupguulp wp er ey fl e b
SMD&HEHSHEG 6GULPMGBLLULL 6DTHS & L 60T & 6T
16,923.90 Gan s5LHS S eorilpe
GWDHS LULs CHemeauwiner 40% el SH&LDMEeLD
BLHS eUBL 65.38% 56188686 b sl
69.19% F56iHLDNBEYLD 2 WIMHSIETENS.

2019 wnis 31 Csd HeoeupLiLilp eNeusmLs
sLeT&HEET 6,076.64 CGampun&ld &LHS
She001(® BarssLealed &g 24.84% 2 _etengl. &g
A emIWMNS&®&BLULL GMDBHULSE
Slemeunerr 18% elL SFa&wmerg. (peoreaniflemid
MMl HLEOTHEMNTS ShT.ee. 1. 6TL & L 60T & 6T
LHMILD LHD &S (PSEOBSH6T E6d60LDeD) 2019 EUdhL
wnir& 31b G Beveupliue melHs Lfleler s
QUDMIBLILLL &LeT&6T I 4,733.12 Gamaun@Ld. &g
Bar &Leofled 10% 660D GemDHS LILF Slememey Xl
2 _uwghgl 19.35% 2_e6meng!.

6L Bl & W T6T & &l 6® 600T & &l 6 M & 61l 6D
BreooTulsslULL S &HameT SlenLbSmHsEDS
Sigla|b fm OMID GM eNEUFTU &L EOTHET [H600T
B m el ermaeaE@b & &I 6T &L 6 & 6fl 6
GILIBLOLIMEDTEMLDU|L 60T 608 & & 6m6n SlemL[HSI6TerSl.
2019 & 31 Csd HeveupliLp gnmind &Leriflalsd
umde I672.52 Camipg SlewL b erern gl

83 5LH5 Shevor(® 2018-60 I601.04 Camgenw el
11.89% &56lls auennédulenen &MLGEDSI.

BLULY BS Shevoriped 6uMmIS eleusmuiLd,
#lebeoemm euevfisLD, HedleuemLibg Lfleeor HMILD HAm
GSMBOSTYOEEHES 6ULPMHISLLGLD & L 60T 6W 61T
SBBLILBSHBIETENS).

URE SpFMNMmESH T FLLMIG6MND &60MHH
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initiatives and schemes of Government of India
including Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojna(PMMY) with a
specific loan scheme in the name of TMB Micro
Entrepreneurs Scheme. Crop loans / KCC were
covered under Pradhan Mandri Fasal Bhima Yojana
(PMFBY). Government of India Schemes with
NABARD administered subsidy, like Dairy
Entrepreneurship Development Scheme (DEDS),
PMAY- Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana,
Entrepreneurship Development & Employment
Generation Scheme (EDEGS) etc, are implemented
by the Bank.

Under the Financial Inclusion (FI) programme
the number of villages allotted to the Bank has
increased to 128. Under Fl, 7,02,794 Basic Savings
Bank accounts have been opened by our branches of
which 5,92,421 have been opened under SBFIN and
91,311 accounts are opened under SBJDY. As part of
its endeavor to improve credit linkage in Fl villages, the
bank has introduced overdraft facility to SBJDY
accounts under Financial Inclusion Programme.
AEPS — ON US transactions through Hand Held
Machines were made operational.

9. Investments and treasury operations

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the
Bank achieved a turnover of¥28167.80 crore in trading
operations, resulting in a net profit of ¥29.16 crore, as
against ¥52.86 crore in the previous year. Sale of
securities from 'Held to Maturity' category was made to
the tune of T607.65 crore during the year resulting in a
profit of ¥6.72 crore (previous year ¥14.21 crore). This
was within the permissible limit of 5% as per RBI
guidelines.

The net investments of the Bank stood at
%9,106.59 crore as on March 31, 2019, as against
%10,363.62 crores as at the end of the previous year.
The Investment-to-Deposit Ratio of the Bank was
26.16%, as against 32.24% at the end of the previous
year.

The average realized yield on the investment
portfolio during the year increased to 7.56%, as
against 7.50% in the previous year, due to increased
investment in high yielding tax free bonds and
reduction in low yielding investment such as Mutual
funds and certificate of deposit. The income earned
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Q&EMetoT B (PEMETLL LT &60TH LM &afLemnu
aupmIGEDS Mpsnenr M WsHrGungern SLLLb
aumsuler agnfled pemerGeuni HLLgHeor &L
esmLmsiurLg. NABARD Bieuns omeofiw s gL eor
OIpFNMmI&SES SHLLIBIGETT60T LIT6DLI6O0T60600T, 618 MLpl6d
Gum® SLLLb, psmeor BB SheumsroGuinegmeor,
asnipledo pwpd SlelGs5S woHmb Geuemed
eumuuygLrLib GureTmeuhenm 6Umi& HewL (PemML
LBSS6T6meDT.

SlemeaTeuBEGLD eumRd Gemey HLrLsHeor &L
BHLOG QUREHES RSHGHLULL SJTMR&GET 128 &hs
2 WNhHH6Teng SlemeaTelHaoH &L eum s G&emeu
BrLsdent &b 5,92,421 SBFIN seooré@sebLd bHMILD
91,311 SBJDY seoré@aenbd 6wngshd 7,02,794
SlglitemL G&LOILIL & 6008 & & EHLD 6T IS 6T 6kl S
Bemenserfied LFMOHASSLILLEG eUBEDE. Slem6vTalHHELD
aumd Gremey HLLHPHer LD HLDFH 6UMRIS W T6TS
spnmiseied Gl seuT&ENE &L 60T QILPMIEGLD
uFSemI SD(WPHLLGSHSW|6TENSl. ShBMT SIL 6L L|L 60T
L6oOTLD QFQISHID (PewD DBWLES SWHBT 5SS 60T
CLPEOLD [HLEUIRSHEMS EFIIDLIBSHSLILIL LS

9. (Lp&HEOBSHEIT LDMHMILD &H(HEUED HLEULSEDEHSE

31.03.2019 &ledim| (pleeuemL LD & 600TIe60
QAMRABWNTeTEH SITJFNME SLOT USHSTM 66T
UMMmIsS efiD&LD euetollasHE6d ¢F.28,167.80 Gamip
ewrnunyb aFWgerersd. & eleenlssd er
CPEOLD FLIQUI euHeUMIl ¢h.29.16 GameungLb.
(PhewHwW eu@GBLL ¢H.52.86 CaMRWIEGLD)
SalauBLLD (PpPTe] &MEOLD UMT WEUSHBHHHS FnlQll
WHGaaiedl®HE h.507.65 Gamgenw efiHm
e5.6.72 Gamg eomuLd FrLIgu|6Tengl (PHemSI 6)BLLD
Seorulb eb.14.21 Gamg). eumBulenr Bar WpeHeSGEs6T
31.03.2019 Siedm) ¢1H.9.106.59 Gamewins SmHes!
(PhHemsW euBLLD ¢H.10,363.62 Gamiguin@Ld)
UMRIBUIET WHOLBEHEGLD emeuliy BHE@GSLD 2 _aTem
edBsLb 26.16 s56iHLNG 2 _dTengl. (PHeDSW 6UBLLD
32.24 g56lisb) SeleuBLLD BT &6 8mn QW
USSTMIGET LoD BewL G FUn&ifl euHLOMEOTD 7.56
gselisLoNs o Wiihglereng (Whensw eudbLLD 7.50%)
850G WsBW &MIeTD SPHsH ULl HT&HEm QL
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during the year from investments, comprising of
interest income and dividend income excluding
income from RIDF was ¥752.68 crore as against
¥887.31 crore in the previous year.

10. Foreign Exchange Business

The total merchant turnover of our bank for the
year 2018-19 was ¥15,726.27 crore against
%16,545.73 crore (Excluding STTC turnover) during
the previous year 2017-18. This is due to the decrease
in import turnover by the importers in branches in view
of dull market conditions for the commodities viz.,
Pulses and Edible Oil imported by them. The profit on
foreign exchange business for the year 2018-19 was
¥19.42 crores against ¥17.65 crores during the
previous year2017-18.

Our Bank has arrangement with a global
network of 595 overseas banks by exchange of
bilateral key under SWIFT (Society for Worldwide
Interbank Financial Telecommunication). It facilitates
smooth and fast flow of communication in the
international business. The SWIFT arrangement has
enabled the Bank to give timely and efficient service to
its NRI custome

The total number of 'B' category branches that
deals in foreign exchange business is 39. Our Bank
has the necessary infrastructure to render fast and
efficient service relating to inward remittance and for
crediting the beneficiary's accounts on receipt of the
foreign currency funds in our Nostro accounts abroad.

Our International Banking Division, Chennai,
provides information on Foreign Exchange market and
market rates on the Bank's website to help the clients in
knowing up to date information on forex. Our Bank is
committed to increasing the Forex Business activities
significantly for adding good revenues to the bank in
the coming year. We have provided online Electronic
trading platform named as TMBFXBRIDGE for
concluding exchange rate to all our 39 authorised
branches and direct view access to 41 of our forex
customers.

11. Branch network

During the year 2018-19, the bank has opened
21 new ATMs, 5 e-lobbies, 1 MSME processing center,
1 specialized NRI desk, 2 link offices and 11 number of
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jewel loan shoppes. With this expansion, the Bank's
network has increased to, 1152 ATMs, 12 Regional
Offices and 27 e-lobbies, covering 16 States and 4
Union Territories.

12.Personnel

The Bank's total staff strength was 4259 as on
31* March 2019, consisting of 1562 Officers, 1980
Clerks and 717 Supporting Staff. During the year, 75
Clerks and 49 supporting staff were recruited. The
bank promoted 152 employees to the next cadre in the
normal promotion process.

Business per employee increased from
13.15 Crore to X 14.59 crore during the year under
review. The Bank's Staff Training College at Nagercoil
and Staff Training Center at Chennai conducted 116
programmes, imparting training to 3663 employees
during the year. In addition to the in-house training, -
387 officers were deputed to 81 training programmes
in other institutions like SIBSTC - Bengaluru, NIBM -
Pune, IDRBT — Hyderabad, FEDAI and other training
institutions.

Directors of our bank attended the following
programmes on various dates.

’ Name of the
S.No Name of the Director From To Programme
1 | Shri.A.Shidambaranathan “Certification
2| DrS.RAshok 04.10.2018 | 05.10.2018 | Programme in IT
3 | Shri.K.Nagarajan and Cyber Security
4 | Shri.B.Vijayadurai for Board Members”
5 | Tmt.S.Ezhil Jothi conducted by
: 03.12.2018 | 04.12.2018 IDRBT, Hyderabad.
6 | Shri.B.S.Keshava Murthy
’ Name of the
S.No Name of the Director From To Programme
1 | Shri.S.Annamalai
2 | DrS.R Ashok “Strategic Leadership
3| Shri.P.C.G.Ashok Kumar in Banking Business
25.02.2019 | 27.02.2019 |, . . "
4 | Tmt.S.Ezhil Jothi in Digital Economy
5 | Shri.B.S.Keshava Murthy conducted by IIM,
6 | Shri.K.Nagarajan Kolkata.
7 | Shri.B.Vijayadurai

Industrial relations in the Bank continued to be
very cordial during the year with frequent interaction
between the management and the Officers' and
Employees' Associations and various staff welfare
activities being undertaken during the year. The Bank
continues to lay emphasis on developing individual
skills of its employees and providing a healthy and
cordial working environment so as to get the best out of
employees of the Bank.
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Number of employees who are in receipt of
remuneration above the limits prescribed u/s 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 requiring the Bank
to furnish a statement prescribed under the Act. Since
the bank is an unlisted entity disclosure of details with
regard to remuneration paid to its employees as
referred to in sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, is not applicable to
it.

13. Inter branch adjustments

The Bank has continued to maintain a very good record
in the matters of internal housekeeping. Since the Bank
has installed a core banking solution, it was possible for
the branches to balance all their accounts and the tally
balances up to March 31, 2019. There was also timely
submission and scrutiny of the control returns, which
was given adequate importance at all levels with
necessary follow up.

14. Internal Control and Inspection / Audit

Risk Based Internal Audit system

The bank has putin place an effective and strong Risk
Based Internal Audit (RBIA) System. During the
financial year 2018-19, RBIA audits were conducted
through e-audit Module in 488 branches of the bank.
Besides RBIA Audit has been conducted at Risk
Management Department. Submission of compliance
reports and closure of audits are followed up through
the respective regional offices.

Credit Audit

All accounts having credit limits of ¥3.00 crore and
above were subjected to post-credit sanction audit.
Totally 1023 such accounts in 210 branches were
covered during this year. Receipt of compliance
reports is monitored by Credit Audit & Monitoring
Department.
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Concurrent Audit system

The bank continued to have the system of Concurrent
Audit, which covered 185 branches and important
departments. Concurrent Audit has been recognized
as an important tool of internal control and is in force at
major branches including all the 39 'B' category
branches designated for forex business. From May
2019 onwards Concurrent Audit has been conducted
through e-audit Module.

Further (10 Departments and 4 CPC's)
International Banking Division, Treasury Department,
DPS Cell, Transaction Reconciliation at various
divisions of ITD, Chennai Service branch, Accounts
Department, Establishment Department, Planning and
Development & Resource Mobilization Department,
Expenses approval of ITD, Central Processing
Centers at Chennai, Coimbatore, Tirunelveli and
Madurai were also subjected to Concurrent Audit.
Submission of compliance reports and closure of
audits are followed up through the respective regional
offices/ departments.

Information System Audit

An Information System audit cell has been
established under Inspection Department as per RBI
guidelines. Information System audits are conducted
at 488 branches and 12 controlling offices along with
Risk Based Internal Audit.

A process for continuous offsite monitoring of
Core Banking operations is deployed by IS audit cell.
Under a software tool based supervision process,
certain key and vital areas are subjected to offsite
monitoring.

Every year, critical Information systems
deployed in our Bank like core banking system, E-
Banking, Mobile banking, ATM, RTGS, Treasury, CTS
clearing process, Server and network infrastructure
etc., are subjected to Information Systems audit by an
external auditor.

Half-yearly review of the Treasury Department
and annual review of the Dealing Room operations at
the International Banking Division, Chennai are
conducted by Inspection Department.

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

7B

Be a step ahead in life

2 | D)IBGL60T H600lsH6me SlemLDLIL|

2 _Le0)IBELE0T HevolleEema (Lpemm 185 Hemensearfied
QsweOLGSHSLUULBETETH . 6k &S W6 &l
2 _L60)I&GL 60T H600N&H6eme (Lp6WMEm Ul (LP & & WILDIT60T
2 LELGUMLBGHemMUIed gphmse6sner G
(WPHBWILDIET 6URIS Hemenserfiayd SlbBWIs 61F60mel6vof
el &aHemSH GLMHEOST6N @b S e® e § &l
Senensefigyd GopaseTeniuLLgl. Gb 210960 SwHal
2 LOIGEGLET Heolibens (Ppewm Ll eor - & evofl & 6m &
CLPEOLDME [HEMLGILMISMSI.

Geb SipBBwE e meueni eevoflsLifey,
smeyeollifle), DPSWfe, ITWfe] 6&ereneruied
2 6Tem CHFenEUGEBEMETH6ET, H6UUTEHGSSHH MM,
effleunsssgenm, SLLLBIBGSHe, (PpeoT@GarHmLD LDHMILD
6UEMTRIGEMET BT (BHEOHIEWD, 61F60Tem60T, GHMULDLISSIMIT,
BmamperGeusdl, LOHMID HenTuUNed 2 6Temr  LbSHSW
QFWIEONES MLDWMHIGEN6 2L 60) & &L 60T & 60016 6m&
QFILIWLLD (Wpemm GLomelETeTemILIBSDS!.

Splile) SiNsemasuled SHeEGLD & 6d s em 6T
§ifleaFILHEd HMILD H600&HMBEMII (PIRSHF W6USHS 6D
Gunettpemey SlbSHS LTNHSIL SlEIEUESMISH6T LDDHM)LD
Slewma&efedr cLpeoLD &evorsmeuuflssLILIGEDS!

HHEUED GLDIRIE(LPEDMN SHeU0llSHems -

Merel eumBuleor euflam B Hedle L & db
556U SlemDLUL HeoolHemS eMLDWILD, S lley
slempuier S BmieuliLCGeTengl. HHeued LDHMILD
BLITEMMHS 2 LHerlsens 488 Hemensen LDHMILD
12 sLEUUTLG SiQieuesmIsSefeID HLESLILL(BETTSI.

GUMRIBUNEDT [BL UGN HEHETHHEHTE0T SHIQLILIGDLUITE0T
GIDETEILIMABEMTMTENT S HHEUD SleWIDLIL| & 600 & 6 &
EMLDIISB60TMED 6(H OSMLITFSFIUITEOT &H600TSHIT60015 5SS
2 LUGSHHULBGEDE. W& PpeHSWLDT6ET &ledMms EmhLD
QL ETEILMH6T SliglilemLufeomeor 6 6 el & 6vofl & 6w &
&HE00TSHTEUTISHNBGSLD 2 L LIBSSLILBSDEI.

66UGEI6UMIH GUIHL(PLD 6UMRIBUNEDT (Lp&BWILDITEDT
H5H6UED SlemWDLULSETTe 6UMRSuUiedr SllgliLemL
aweraunger, Wlereoremy eumé ATM, RTGS,
smeyeod, CTS Siey asweWpenm, &Meul HMILD
Semeroril 2 LELLEDWLULY, Seweu S emer S FlLD
Qeaeassseued Sled»WLULY & 60lsem &G
2 1 'LBS5ULGEDS.

B(HEYESH HENETNHETHIET SleMIUIMETITB Shlie)
SprBws aseneleni Wfley €s&ememerul 6d
MBWIMEBLD SHemM  [HLEUIRGEDSHEHEMEOT 6UIBLMHET LbM)
&}lii6)] HlEMOWITED BHLEHSLILIBGSETDE.



97th Annual Report 2018-2019

Management Audit system

To assess the robustness of the systems and
procedures established in various operational units in
the Bank and to have an oversight of the effectiveness
of management, various departments at Head Office
and all Regional Offices are subjected to Management
Audits once in two yeat

During the year under review, Management
Audits were conducted at (10 Regions and 12
Departments). Customer Service Cell,
Bancassurance Cell, Chennai Service Branch,
Compliance Department, Secretarial Section, Staff
Training College — Chennai, Treasury Department,
International Banking Division, RTGS/WUMT Cell,
DPS Cell, Legal Department, Establishment
Department, Chennai, Tirunelveli, Thoothukudi,
Bengaluru, Hyderabad, Thiruvananthapuram, Trichy,
Madurai, Ahmedabad and Salem Regions by the
Inspection Department of the Bank.

Revenue Audit

For the calendar year 2018, offsite Revenue
Audit & onsite Revenue Audit were conducted for all
the branches during the month of January 2019 and
March 2019 respectively. Further revenue leakages
which are monitored and reported by concurrent
auditors at branches were followed up for recovery
through concerned regional offices then and there.

Audit Automation

Audit automation was implemented in our
Bank for RBIA module (including IS audit, KYC AML
audit, customer service audit), Credit audit module and
Offsite transaction monitoring system (OTMS) during
the year 2017-18. In the year 2018-19, Concurrent
Audit was automated which facilitates paperless audit
environment and minimization of manual data entry
through seamless integration with Core Banking
Solution.

15. Vigilance

The functions of the vigilance machinery of the
Bank are broadly divided into 3 types, viz. preventive,
predictive and punitive. The Vigilance Department
undertakes a study of existing procedures and
practices prevailing in the organization with a view to
modifying those procedures or practices that provide
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scope for malpractice/fraud perpetrated by the staff
members and also finding out the causes of delay and
the points at which the delays occur and devising
suitable steps to minimize delays at different stages. To
educate the employees of the Bank, the Vigilance
Department brings out various fraud awareness
circulars and conducts training programmes
periodically. As a part of creating awareness,
'Vigilance Day' is observed on the 31% of October every
year. The Vigilance Department plays a vital role in the
implementation and follow-up of the directives and
guidelines issued from time to time by Reserve Bank of
India. Upon the directions of RBI, Vigilance
Department has also formulated/implemented a
Vigilance Policy from 1% April 2013 and the Policy was
lastly reviewed on May 15, 2019. The "Whistle Blower
mechanism is being actively encouraged as a tool for
better governance.

Further, a scheme of 'Protected Disclosure'
framed in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India on April 18, 2007 is in operation
inthe Bank.

As per the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Bank being a company
accepting deposits from the public is required to set up
a 'vigil mechanism’ for genuine concerns or grievances
of the directors and employees. Further, the vigil
mechanism should provide for adequate safeguards
against victimisation of employees and directors who
avail of the vigil mechanism. While the purpose of both
the protected disclosure scheme' and 'the vigil
mechanism' is the same, under the 'Protected
Disclosure Scheme' prepared on the lines prescribed
by RBI, Reserve Bank of India is the Nodal Agency
designated to receive complaints under the Scheme,
whereas under the 'vigil mechanism' set up in
accordance with the provisions of the new Companies
Act, the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the Bank will be
the designated authority to receive the complaints from
employees and the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Board will be the designated authority to receive
the complaints from stake holders/directors

With a view to ensuring compliance with both
the RBI directions and the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Bank had re-drafted its 'Protected
Disclosure Scheme' in tune with the requirements of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. It was felt
that as the two different schemes on the same subject
being in operation simultaneously may lead to conflicts
and it would be advisable to converge the two schemes
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into one.

We had sought clarifications from RBI whether
it would be in order to revise the scheme, inter alia, by
providing for a common nodal agency, say for example
the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the Bank, to receive
the complaints under the revised protected disclosure
scheme.

We, later received clarification from RBI that
they have no objection in making the Chief of Internal
Vigilance or the Chairman of Audit Committee of
Board, as the case may be the Nodal Officer for
receiving complaints. Accordingly, the “Protected
Disclosure Scheme” suitably reviewed in line with
whistle blowing/ vigil mechanism under section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 was approved by the Board
of Directors in the meeting held on February 28, 2017
and the same was reviewed by the Board in the
meeting held on May 15,2019 and was adopted.
Accordingly the communication for the purpose of
reporting any event/ information of concern, the
complaint should be sentin a closed/secured envelope
to the Chief of Internal Vigilance and the complaint can
also sent by e-mail to civ@tmbank.in. A director or an
employee who wants to avail this mechanism may
directly represent to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Board in exceptional cases through
e-mail ID acbtmbho@gmail.com.

Further, preventive vigilance visit is being
done by the officials attached with Vigilance
Department on annual basis to selected branches and
deficiencies observed are being informed to the
branches through the respective regional offices for
taking corrective measures.

16. Customer Service

Customer service is an important part of
maintaining ongoing customer relationship, which is a
key for continuous business growth and to retain the
customeX The Bank is well known for its good,
courteous and effective service to customer and
constantly endeavouring to meet the expectations of
the modern day tech-savvy customers by introducing
new and innovative products for seamless digital
experience.

In order to provide a platform to the customers
for addressing their queries, a dedicated Customer
Service Cell has been formed at Head Office. The
Bank has also provided an all-India toll-free help line
(1800-425-0426) wherein the customers can clarify
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their doubts about the products / schemes and also
register their grievances. We have a dedicated Phone
Number (9842461461) for Customer care / Help. It
also includes “SMS” based Customer Help Line.
Customers can invoke help by sending a SMS with the
text, “HELP”. We are also having two E-Mail Ids for the
use of customers to register their grievances and
complaints — customerservice@tmbank.in and
complaints@tmbank.in. Customers can also register
their suggestions / feedback / complaints / grievances
through our website www.tmb.in. The customer will
receive instant acknowledgement to their E-Mail ID for
the suggestions / feedback / complaints / grievances
registered by them. Our Bank has also implemented a
centralized registry / database for recording and
follow-up of complaints. Branches and Regional
Offices can also register the complaints received at
their level in the CCTS (Customer Complaint Tracking
System) module.

17. Technology Advancement:

Our Bank is taking various steps to provide
technology-enabled products and services to
customers by adopting latest technologies. Expansion
of Branches and ATMs by using multiple network
technologies, such as MPLS, Leased Line, VSAT,
GSM and VPNoBB with redundant connectivity to
provide continuous customer service without any
disruption through various delivery channels viz.
Internet Banking, ATM, Mobile Banking, Point of Sale
terminals, Cash Deposit Kiosk, Passbook Printing
Kiosk, Cheque Deposit Kiosk, Product Information
Kiosk etc.

18. Product Innovation, New Products and
Services

Major initiatives during 2018-19:

Two link offices at Delhi and Vijayawada TMB
were inaugurated.

Adedicated MSME processing centre in Surat
has beensetup.

Specialized NRI Desk at Mumbai has been
inaugurated

11 “Jewel Loan shoppies” in rural areas have
been setup.
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IT related Initiatives made during 2018-19:

e TMB Multi Currency Travel Card.(Picture
Card)

e TMB International Rupay Debit Card.
e TMB Contactless Debit Card.

19. Awards / Ratings obtained by the Bank:

= TMB has won ASSOCHAM awards under
Small Bank class for the following categories
forthe year2017 -18.

v Winner - Agricultural Banking
category.

v Winner —Overall Best Social Bank
category.

v 2" Runner up -Priority Sector
Lending category.

4 2" Runner up -Technology category.

External Rating:

During the financial year 2018 -19, CRISIL
renewed the rating for the Certificate of Deposit
programme of the Bank for 31,000 crore as A1+
(indicating “Very Strong” rating).

20. Risk Management

The Bank has a proactive approach towards
Risk Management. Its risk philosophy involves
developing and maintaining its banking activities within
its risk appetite and regulatory framework.

The Risk Management Architecture of the
Bank comprises of an Independent Risk Management
Organizational structure at the Corporate level, Risk
Management Policies, Risk Measurement Tools and
Risk Monitoring and Management Systems. The Bank
has a well-defined risk appetite statement and all the
banking functions are dovetailed to the risk appetite
statement.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is primarily
responsible for laying down risk parameters and
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establishing an integrated risk management and
control system.  The Board of Directors is supported
by a Sub-Committee of the Board known as the Risk
Management Committee of the Board (RMCB), which
in turn is aided by the Asset Liability Committee
(ALCO) and the Risk Management Committee of the
Executives (RMCE). The executive level Committees
are headed by the MD & CEO of the Bank. The Bank's
RMCB reviews its Risk Management policies and
recommends to the Board for approval. The Board also
sets out limits taking into account the risk appetite of
the Bank and the goals set.

Credit Risk:

The credit risk mechanism consists of policies
and practices that include mechanisms for risk
identification, risk measurement, risk
grading/aggregation techniques, reporting and risk
control/mitigation techniques, documentation, legal
issues and management of problem loans to protect
asset quality and ensure orderly growth and targeted
risk adjusted return on assets.

The Credit Risk Management policy along
with Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques & Collateral
Management Policy address the Credit Risk related to
lending. Credit Approving Authority, Prudential
Exposure Limits, Risk Rating System, etc., are used in
managing credit risk.

The bank has migrated to system driven
internal rating using web based rating models solution
acquired from M/s.Crisil Risk & Infrastructure
Solutions Ltd.

Market Risk:

Asset Liability Management Policy and
Investment Policy aid the management in mitigating
the Market Risk in the Banking and Trading books.
The overall responsibility of managing the market risk
lies with the Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) of the Bank. The Committee meets regularly
and decides on the size, mix, tenor, pricing and
composition of various assets and liabilities. It
primarily does identification, measurement, monitoring
and management of liquidity and interest rate risk. It
uses tools such as Ratio analysis, Gap analysis

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

7B

Be a step ahead in life

BLBLBSE SO WLOHMLD SLIT S e6resemer
GSODHHHD ShBemed RS SWEGHT & Lpeder
(PHEOTEmD AUMMILILTGLD [Bieunsd & peedr &lemevor
Gpaumenr L GLeneuoTenD& G (P HMID OFTSHS
aumniy G ShBwenel Breuns SuisEhTeHeEnsE
glewevor Lfl&eTment [Brieunssear [Beneouied HemLOLMILD
eurRIBUNeoT SLIT GLDeDMeTITemLD G(LP SLIT BLDEDMEToTEmLD
OeamaTemsem W QLULUSD SlefiliugLer &L
GLDeMEDITEMLDE S SHMEDEUHI DD SHeMLDSHSHED LDHMILD
SHnN&EHETE FD6T OB HO S weumenmuLd
Brieuds&eoTmenT.

sL60T SLIT :

HLET SLIT QFWEOWPEmDUITETS 61HT6TemEH
LOMWH e HFewLWPewD&em»6T 6&Meor B
SlemwsHHULLLE. Seupmed SLi SlemL wmerLd
sneooTLgl, LT Slemey, BLM SILLGSSHISED (LPewDEET,
8L sLBULBHSHIBHHD WPeoD&HeT, SLT Sflsems
SHeUTITLILBS S HD, FLL LNTFFenaTH6T & W enel
2 6MenL&BWSHMGSLD. HL60TaMLILIL 60T OSTLITL ML &L 60T
LT GODOULEDG HLOT ShUSHSH GedMDLL
TBIL LIMGI&ETHL60TME0T &L 60T GLIT GLDE0METoTemLD 6\BMeTens
woHmLb 1 ewevorwt GLD6D 60T 6D LD 6 & 6T 6W &
WedtummUILIL BeTengl. sLeoT SLIT Brieundssedled &L 6ot
QUG SiFeny Slemioliy, eNGas eeuefiiuT® eugLdL,
8L wLHULETLG SewLUY & & w e» 6y
2 _LGWNaLILGSSLGSTDEDT.

eURIBIWINTETE Semeturild eLpedld LDSUITLBLD
WPemn&S MledlL g &snaner asmpled mrub M/s.
Crisil Risk & Infrastructure Solutions Ltd.
BneNTSSLLD S(BHHS eUMmBISLILLL S

sHens LT

WITUNT &600T6HG LSS HMIGefed 6umhisSuder
cEHhemsd SLe®T GODODUUSEDHG Q&ETSH &
eI BreunssesneTens OHILD WPHOLG 6\sT6Tens
SpBwemel Hlemevor lBedTmeoT. QLB GIDNSHSH FHeWS
8Leny Breuds@d aummily eumBuler a5ms sl
eummILLy Breuns GLpenel FMMHSHE. Slhs &(DeUTeTS
6ULD&HLDTE Fnl LIBIGET Snllp Sl6M6Y &NEDLD, HED6M6Y,
eflemed WOHMID LDCEuM AETHSH HN G LIL 6w 6T
BNanIH SlenelBsH6d BevorsNemHHe OHMID Hrend
Breudsse el alds LT HEweunpenm
WHeTemWDWNTS O&meo Gaterg. &8ss mer
smelsemns elSsd LGLLUMLE SenLaeuef LG
SiMsems sLLewLL Biend MM Hrend, euLlp
s SliplienL. SpBwianenn 2 LIGWINS&B60Tm60T.



97th Annual Report 2018-2019

reports - Structural liquidity, Interest Rate Sensitivity,
Value at Risk (VaR), Duration Gap Analysis etc. for
management of liquidity and interest rate risks. The
fundamental focus is to measure value both from the
earnings perspective and from the economic value
perspective.

Operational Risk:

Comprehensive systems and procedures,
internal control system audit and intensive training,
swift and correct dissemination of information are used
as primary means for managing Operational Risk. The
Bank has put in place a Board approved Operational
Risk Management Policy based on Reserve
Bank/BASEL guidelines. All new products introduced
by the Bank pass through a 'New Product Approval
Process' in order to identify and address operational
risk issues, apart from evaluation of other risks.

Implementation of New Capital Adequacy
Framework:

The Bank has implemented the New Capital
Adequacy Framework under Basel-ll as per the
timelines prescribed by RBI. While the Bank, to start
with, has adopted Standardized Approach for Credit
Risk, Standardized Duration method for market risk
and Basic Indicator approach for Operational Risk, the
initiatives so far undertaken / envisaged are geared
towards enabling the Bank to comply with the
standards set out for more advanced capital
measurement approaches in the Basel-11 Accord.

The Bank has also developed a framework for
quantifying the Pillar-2 risks and has put in place a
comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) framework in line with
RBI guidelines, which has been validated by external
agencies

In order to shift the matrices of measurement from
traditional volume based measures to risk based
measures, bank has implemented a robust and
scientific fund transfer pricing system.

The Bank strives to provide maximum returns
to its stakeholders while maintaining a solid capital
base to support the risks associated with its diversified
business. It has a strong capital adequacy ratio in

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead in life

eFweLT® &L :

Qsweunr® L BreunssHed oifl eumeor
SlewLDLIL|&6T LDHMILD HEWL (LPEDMSETTE0T &L BLIMLLR60T
Slemiblily sevollsemss oMb sfiswnse) b sfluwimer
H5BEUDHBHEMET LTLULSHD ShBWemeU (LS eoTemLDWITS
o etengl. unpgs Merel eurmd wHmib BASIL
SpBweupmlen auP&ETLBSHE0SHm6T SILiLemnL UITE
OsneoTL QFwWeUTLBG &Lim GLbemesorem LD &
QBMETEn&HUWINETEl 6URIBUN6T GLDEOMETITEmLD & (Lp6eed
MEUGHUIULG QUUSD SleaflsslulL . 6mds
APl WPsLULBSSWD HEW UNGLEem6T OO
8Lisemer LAUTG AFLUCHTE OFWOUTE SLIT
Hp&lemeot&emem|d SlemwLWM6MLD &M6oTe)LD LDMHMILD

asfluiu@Esseyb YSw swnilly UGS 61FWwedpemnn
8D eLILse SlefssLL(® HememULILBSDSI.

HUSW epe0SeT 5 60TevllemMey 66D T (Lp e M 6T
SIDEOLIBHSHED :

GUMIBIIMEOTSH LIT66D 260TLIR LS eLpeD S 60T
BeTetlemmMe] auenIpenneEemeT &hHw Mamel
aUmsS OpCeomsemerulieorLly SibeOLBSH S W 6TeTg.
BLEOIGHTOT SLIGEHHG BeweolUBsHS W
SN0 & PEODEDUIU|LD FHeWHEHTET SL T8 Elh& &
BemeOULBSHSW HTOHOHTLTEFS (Lp6m M 6w W LD
LOMILD QFWE WD EHSHHTEOT SLIT&Ehs& G
SlRUUeDLG6T &FLIR&ETLGLD S 6@ (L 6W M 6m Wil LD
MRS SIOUBSHS SHIDENSSH SHD&ETET 6umlidSufeor
WwoHHAesET M SWNer G UMe6D 6 2
eUUBHSLILE ghUuBGSsSIULL GbUGSSLUILLL eLpeds 6T
STl Sl )& (P 6®M& @b & & M0 6l 6M [J W 60 M
&seme HemLLULIRLILSDE 2_56YSnE!.

eurRBwIneoTgl Lebeorr 2 SLsenenr SenelBeusnsns
6dH UM (LPeDDEMILI 2 _(HeunsBi|eTengl. GLed LMys
Mener eumBulen el WPpenmeeleTUIR 6 (b
WP(LPEMLDWIMET CLPEDS 60T HebTeollemmey BTGB P edD
QeI (PO DEHEMET 2 (heunsEi|eTengl. &g Qeuef
BmieuemseTTed CFmpener QFLWLLLG NS
QFLWILILIL (B6TenE).
eumiBwimeorg umgbufl Slemefleor SligliLiemLued
OlewHS HewL (Ppemm&efedhHeH &L Imum®s e et
SlglILemLUNE0EMLDHS HEML(LPENMEEHEE LDMTMIEUSDESTE
@M 2 mFwmer WOHMDH LD 6 ehepmeor Ll
yreubmer BHLOMOMD 6l 6w ed [BIT600T i (L 60 M 60 W
SILDOLBSSIL 6N
aumaswnerg Herg CeamurL elwrumy
BLIBER6E ShSHTEUTSH 616D 60 LD LUIT60T cLp 6D & 60T
SpssansHemnsd upmnwfluuBG@sr@G 6um & ufl er
WHOLLIETTEETEGL SNB&LILIRWITET SeTUsHens
QamTGUUSHE& UTGUGEDS. eumSuwmers $HLLDmeor



97th Annual Report 2018-2019

order to support the execution of its growth plans and
business strategies, while meeting the regulatory
capital requirements at all times.

Strengthening the Resilience: Basel-lll Initiatives

Basel-Ill guidelines which are a
comprehensive set of reforms, to strengthen the
regulation, supervision and risk management of the
banking sector were issued by Reserve Bank of India
in May 2012. Liquidity Risk Management and Basel-Il
framework on Liquidity Standards were also issued in
July 2012.

The capital standards and new capital buffers
will require banks to hold more capital and higher
quality of capital than under the current Basel Il rules.
The new leverage ratio introduces a non-risk based
measure to supplement the risk-based minimum
capital requirements.

The new liquidity ratios under Basel-lll
framework on Liquidity Standards ensure that
adequate funding is maintained. The Bank is
complying with RBI guidelines in computing and
reporting the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net
Stable Funding Ratio (NFSR) norms.

Our Bank has been proactively conducting
internal assessment of adequacy of capital, liquidity
ratios and leverage ratios in accordance with Basel-lll
standards. The Bank's capital position is in compliance
with Basel-Ill expectations, well above the minimum
requirements.

21.Board of Directors

The bank's Board as on March 31, 2019
consists of 11 Directors, the composition of Board was
asunder:

S.No Name Designation

1 Thiru K.V Rama Moorthy Majority — Banking

2 Thiru S.Annamalai Minority

3 Thiru P.C.G. Asok Kumar Majority-SSI

4 Thiru S.R Ashok Minority

5 Tmt S.Ezhil Jothi Majority — Corporate Law

6 Thiru N.Gopal RBI Nominee

7 Thiru B.S. Keshava Murthy Majority — Banking

8 Thiru K. Nagarajan Majority — Law, Agriculture and Rural
economy (Independent Director)

9 Thiru D.N.Nirranjan Kani Minority

10 Tmt A.Sivagami RBI Nominee

" Thiru B.Vijayadurai Majority — Accountancy
(Independent Director)

All Directors, other than Managing Director
and CEO are non-executive Directors on Board.
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The composition of the Board of Directors is
governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Code of Conduct on
Corporate Governance adopted by the Bank. The
Board comprises of 11 Directors as on 31.03.2019,
with rich experience and specialized knowledge in
various areas of relevance to the Bank, including
banking, accountancy, small scale industry,
agriculture, Excluding the MD & CEO, all other
members of the Board are non-executive directors and
two directors out of the total eleven Directors are
Independent Directors Declaration has been obtained
from the Independent Directors as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

The remuneration and other benefits paid to
MD & CEO of the Bank and other Non-Executive
directors during the financial year 2018-19 are
disclosed in Corporate Governance Report.

22. Changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel

During the year, Smt Shivavel Ezhil Jothi (DIN:
07772888), Thiru S.R.Ashok (DIN: 07933713) and
Thiru D.N. Nirranjan Kani (DIN: 00455352) were re -
appointed as the Additional Directors of the Bank with
effective from October 11, 2018 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
after automatic vacation of office of additional director
on September 30, 2018.

RBI had appointed Tmt A Sivagami as an
Additional Director vide their letter dt.11.09.2018 in the
place of Thiru K.V Rajan who had retired in the Board
meeting dated 10.07.2018. RBI had appointed Thiru N.
Gopal as an Additional Director vide their letter
dt.04.10.2018 in the place of Thiru Anup Kumar, whose
nomination was withdrawn by appointing authority
(RBI)vide their letter dated 04.10.2018.

Thiru A.Shidambaranathan, Independent
Director of our Bank had resigned from the directorship
inthe Board meeting dated 10.12.2018.

Thiru B.S Keshavamuthy's tenure as
independent director of the Bank came to an end on
28.01.2019 and subsequently the Board in their
meeting held on 04.02.2019 has appointed him as an
additional director of our Bank.
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Thiru C Sukumaran was appointed as a Chief
Financial Officer of the Bank with effect from 21
March, 2019 in compliance of Section 203 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

23. Appointment of independent directors

In tune with the definition of Independent
Director as prescribed under Section 149(6) of
Companies Act, 2013 and based on the
confirmation/disclosures received from the Directors,
the following are Independent Directors of the Bank as
on the date of this report

1. Thiru K. Nagarajan (DIN 02274426)

2. ThiruB. Vijayadurai.(DIN 07403509)

Thiru K.Nagarajan and Thiru B.Vijayadurai
Independent Directors have given their declarations as
referred to in sub-section (7) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the effect that they meet the
criteria ofindependence as provided in the Act.

24. Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Bank had appointed Smt
Shivavel Ezhil Jothi (DIN: 07772888) as Woman
Director on the Board of the Bank.

25. Directors' Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(5)
of the Companies Act 2013, itis hereby confirmed that

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for
the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the
applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b) the accounting policies adopted by the Bank
has been applied consistently and judgments
and estimates made are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Bank at the end of the
financial year 2018-19 and of the profit of the
Bank for that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
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accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual
accounts for the financial year ended on
March 31,2019, on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Bank and that
such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively; and

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

26. Details of contracts or arrangements with
related parties

No contracts or arrangements in the nature
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 read with
Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 were entered into by the Bank
with related parties during the year under review. The
details of remuneration paid to the Managing Director
& CEO forms part of the 'notes to accounts' pursuant to
the requirement of Accounting Standard — 18.
However, as the office of Managing Director is not a
place of profit as defined in Section 188, no disclosure
with regard to the said payment of remuneration is
annexed to this report.

27.Board Level Performance Evaluation

The Companies Act, 2013 stipulates
evaluation of the performance of the Directors
including Chairman, Board and its Committees. In
terms of the said provisions, the formal performance
evaluation of the directors has been done.

The Committee of Independent Directors at
their separate meeting evaluates the performance of
MD & CEO, Non-Independent Directors including
Chairman of the Bank and the Board as a whole. The
Board evaluates the performance of the Independent
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Directors wherein the director who is evaluated is
excluded. The Board also evaluates the performance
of Board level committees.

28. Bank's policy on directors' appointment and
remuneration

The Bank has a Board approved
compensation policy which deals with the
compensation & benefits of the employees of the Bank
and Managing Director & CEO.

As a banking company, the bank is required to have not
less than fifty-one percent of its directors, fulfilling the
specified eligibility criteria referred to in Section 10 A
(2) of Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Further, for
determining the independence of directors the Bank
strictly follows the criteria laid down in sub-section (6)
of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration of the MD & CEO s
recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC) to the Board for approval after
considering the factors prescribed under the
Compensation Policy. The Board considers the
recommendations of NRC and approves the
remuneration, with or without modifications, subject to
shareholders' and regulatory approvals. The
remuneration payable to MD & CEOQ is subject to prior
approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).
Therefore, the remuneration or any revision in
remuneration to MD & CEO is payable only after
receipt of the approval from RBI.

The other non-executive directors are paid
only sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and its Committees. None of the directors including the
MD & CEO receives any profit linked remuneration.
The sitting fees payable to the non-executive directors
did notundergo any change during the year 2018-19.

29. Board/Committee meetings

The Bank's Board met 21 times, and its sub-
committees including the Committee of Directors held
a total of 79 meetings during the year 2018-2019. The
date of Board meeting conducted are as detailed
below:
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Date of Board Meeting
28.04.2018 27.07.2018 11.12.2018
16.05.2018 16.08.2018 04.01.2019
23.05.2018 05.09.2018 22.01.2019
24.05.2018 11.10.2018 04.02.2019
18.06.2018 26.10.2018 28.02.2019
25.06.2018 12.11.2018 21.03.2019
16.07.2018 10.12.2018 28.03.2019

The details of attendance of each Director at

the Board meetings and Committee meetings held
during the period from 01st April 2018 to 31st March
2019 are given below:
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No of No of No of No of
Board Board Committee committee
Directors Name meetings meetings Meetings meetings

held attended held attended
Thiru S.Annamalai 21 19 6 6
Thiru P.C.G. Asok Kumar 21 16 45 38
Thiru S.R Ashok 21 21 45 45
Tmt S.Ezhil Jothi 21 19 13 12
Thiru N.Gopal 11 8 10 9
Thiru B.S. Keshava Murthy 21 21 37 37
Thiru K. Nagarajan 21 21 59 58
Thiru D.N.Nirranjan Kani 21 20 27 27
Tmt A.Sivagami 11 8 10 9
Thiru B.Vijayadurai 21 21 63 63
Thiru K.V Rajan 6 5
Thiru Anup Kumar 10 10
Thiru A Shidambaranathan 14 14 38 38

30. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board is chaired
by Thiru B.Vijayadurai, who is a Chartered Accountant
and an independent director. The other members of the
committee are Thiru B. S. Keshava Murthy, Thiru K.
Nagarajan (Independent Director), and Thiru N.Gopal,
Tmt A.Sivagami (RBI Nominee Directors). The
constitution of the Committee is in compliance with the
regulatory requirements. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are as per the Companies Act, 2013
and RBI guidelines.

31. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was reconstituted with three directors as its
members including two independent directors and is in
compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the
Companies Act 2013 and RBI guidelines.
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32. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship and
Capital Planning Committee

The Bank has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Board in pursuance of
the requirements of Section 135 and a Stakeholders
Relationship and Capital Planning Committee of the
Board in pursuance of the requirements of Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR Committee met
once during the year under review.

33. Annual General Meetings

The desire and the efforts of the Bank to
conduct its 94", 95", 96" and 97" Annual General
Meeting for the years 2015-16, 2016-17 , 2017-18 and
2018-19 has not materialised so far because the
bank's petition before the division bench of Madras
High Court for holding AGMs is yet to be heard . Bank
has advised the legal counsel to expedite early listing
of the case in order to hold AGMs of the bank. The
Board in its meeting held on 30.05.2019 decided to
convene all the pending AGMs at the earliest and
accordingly approach the High Court of Madras for
early listing of the case.

34. Corporate Governance

The Bank's Corporate Governance philosophy is
woven around its total commitment to ethical practices
in the conduct of its business, while striving hard to
enhance the stakeholders' value. Your Bank has
endeavored to adopt the best corporate governance
practices across the spectrum of its activities. It also
adheres to the principles of transparency and
accountability in transactions, disclosure of
information, integrity, social responsibilities and
statutory compliance. The Bank has followed the
directions and guidelines issued by RBI from time to
time regarding Corporate Governance. Further, the
Bank also adheres to its time tested traditional values
based on business ethics and contribution to society
as aprinciple.

It has also complied with the various
requirements of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Companies Act, 2013 with regard to corporate
governance.
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The Bank has set up the following committees of
the Board for focused governance in the important
functional areas and for effective control of the affairs
of the Bank.

Sl. No Name of the Committee
Management Committee

Information Technology Strategy Committee

Audit Committee

NPA Monitoring Committee

Fraud Monitoring Committee

Customer Service Committee

HRM Committee

Disciplinary Committee (Appellate Authority for Officers)
Risk Management Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Stakeholders Relationship and Capital Planning Committee
Share Transfer Committee

Independent Directors Committee

Review of Willful Defaulters Committee
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The Bank has been exhibiting its keenness to
attain and maintain high standards in corporate
governance by constituting various committees, both
mandatory and non-mandatory, to guide the bank in
crucial aspects of banking business. As a mark of its
urge to embark on the path of excellence in corporate
governance, the Bank has chosen voluntarily to
selectively adhere to the provisions of SEBI (Listing
obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations,
2015. The Bank considers shareholders' rights as
paramount and takes all efforts to protect that right as
well as facilitate the participation of shareholders to
exercise therights.

35. Compliance Function

The bank has embraced compliance as a part
of good governance and not with the intention of being
purely regulatory in its approach. Hence, the Bank has
institutionalized a strong compliance culture and
mechanism across the organization, founded on the
principles of transparency and trust by involving all the
stakeholders The Bank has a dedicated Compliance
Department headed by Deputy General Manager for
ensuring regulatory compliance, across all its
businesses and operations. The key functions of this
department includes, dissemination of key regulatory
updates affecting the various business verticals of the
Bank, review of processes from a regulatory
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compliance perspective, provide guidance on
compliance-related matters, among others.

36. Compliance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013

The Bank has complied with the various
provisions of the Companies Act,2013 to the extent
that they are applicable to the Bank. Due to non
conduct of AGMs , the Bank is unable to comply with
the Provisions of Section 96 of the Companies Act and
the related provisions on AGMs.

37.Internal Auditors

The Bank is required to appoint an internal
auditor as per the requirements of Section 138, of The
Companies Act, 2013, who should either be a
chartered accountant or a cost accountant, or such
other professional as may be decided by the Board to
conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of
the Bank.

As the Bank already has concurrent auditors,
internal inspecting officers, compliance department
etc. pursuant to the various requirements applicable to
a banking company, performing all the activities
expected to be done by the Internal Auditors, the
functions of internal audit is already enabled. Hence
the requirement of internal audit is deemed to be
complied.

38. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Maharaj N R Suresh and Co., Chartered
Accountants, Chennai has vacated their position as
the Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank after
completing 4 years of continuous service. The board of
directors placed their appreciation to M/s. Maharaj N R
Suresh & Co for service rendered. The Board of
Directors has recommended the appointment of M/s
G.Balu Associates LLP, Chennai as the Statutory
Central Auditors of the Bank for the year 2018-19, to
Reserve Bank of India. Reserve Bank of India vide its
letter dated 16.10.2018 has approved the same. Their
appointment is subject to the approval of members at
the Annual General Meeting.

The proposed Auditors have confirmed their
eligibility to be so appointed in terms of Section 141 of
CompaniesAct, 2013.
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39. Comments on Auditors' Report

The Notes on Accounts and the Significant
Accounting Policies referred to in the Auditor's Report
and forming part of the annual accounts and the
references made by the Auditors in their Report are
self-explanatory. The Auditors have not made any
observations or adverse comments warranting any
explanation on the part of the Board as referred to in
Section 134 (3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013.

40. Details in respect of frauds reported by
auditors

There was no fraud reported by auditors under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act,
2013.

41. Secretarial Audit

As the Bank is a public company having a
turnover of more than 250 crore, in terms of Section
204 of Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial audit has to
be conducted and a report as prescribed in Form MR-
3 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is required to be
annexed to this report.

The Bank had appointed M/s P Sriram &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,
Chennai as its Secretarial Auditors to conduct the
secretarial audit of the Bank for the FY 2018-19. The
report of the Auditoris annexed as Annexure 2

There are no material remarks or observations
in the report which require any explanation on the part
of the Board, except the following:

(i) Regarding compliance with Section 12 (1) of
Banking Regulation Act, 1949: -.

The Bank is taking effective steps to comply
same by conducting Annual General Meeting
of the Bank.

(i) Regarding non conduct of AGM: -The Board in its
meeting held on 30.05.2019 decided to
convene all the pending AGMs at the earliest
and accordingly approach the High Court of
Madras for early listing of the case.
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(iii) Other observation except point no 6 made by the
Secretarial Auditor will be complied in due
course.

(iv) RBI levied penalty of ¥ 6 crore and % 1 crore that
were paid by the Bank on 26.06.2018 and
13.03.2019 respectively and the bank will
ensure that in future such type of
noncompliance shall not occurred.

42. Compliance to Secretarial Standards

The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)
and adopted by MCA have been complied with by the
Bank.

43. Funding sources of renewable energy

The Bank has been supporting and financing
various activities for development of alternative energy
generation. The Bank recognizes wind and solar
energy as main sources of best renewable and
pollution free energy throughout the year and
considers funding these initiatives as its contribution to
the worldwide effort against global warming.
Accordingly, bank encourages setting up of solar
panels by financing solar energy generation plants.
The Bank has also taken various steps to conserve
energy inits own premises.

44. Corporate Social Responsibility

As stated elsewhere, the Bank has constituted
a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
and has also adopted a CSR Policy. The policy
document is available on the Bank's website. The
disclosure in respect of the CSR activities of the Bank
as required to be made as per the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is given
in Annexure 3.

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013
and Rules thereunder, we have to spend a sum of 2

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

7B
Boa step ahead i fe
Sl LmIsemer eflewgeded HLSHSHUSDE 61&60T6m60T
s wipdoaipsems SaEms ey
QELIWILILIL (BeTTe gl
. 05 WS HeutllsemaWI e ellflewms erevor. 6 Helly
GupesTeTeTLLLL 6 6m60TW & 6)60f LI L & @5 LD
(PEOOILITE HewLLILNsa&LILIBLD
8w Merel eurSwned effsslurL SIUFTHLD
¢ah.6CaMY LOHMIL 1G&MR HLDG 6lm S wme
26.06.2018 mm|Ld 13.03.201960 QFQISSLILIL LS
Gweb S5GuneTm etor B eUImSHLIR LUMTES!

e\sneTemIL@BLD

42. QF WS SHIBene0SHEHEE S60umhIGSHeD

BmieuersBetr sbeaLe aFweneriser (ICSI)
Boienerd womb MCA-6 ewpmsLlLLL
QBHMLIYDLW 6FWEDE ST BemEHET 6)IMI& LIT6D

Benevo1s6LILBS60TDET

43. Shhmed USHILNGE&H5558 BH ShHMIRIGHET

LIOHM| SpHmed 2_MHusHemw GLobUBSSIUSDESTES
aumd uGeaum| HLElRGmEEMET Sh5f5HE aImBEDE!.
yel Q@eulubwiDnsa&EE aHImes 2 e &e6rmedw
QYuUHAES Sgen uRsaIUTs 8bs WPWDHEES
SbevoT(® (PLpeugId AnHS HSILULNE6566 I&LGSSILD
8eoeus ShHPQGHTEOT PHBEW SHHMNILONS STHM)
WOMILD &l SpHMed eumId SleflssLLGBng S56oTLle
&l SpHMed 2_HUSHS SHewe&EEHES BE Slerflliugeor
epeob Hlw @eflwined ShHMed SlewD&HSH 6lnl S
orsHDEGEDS. SHEOT UTTHESHH D S MM 6w e
UNg&ETeEs LGeum| HL6)IRE6nsE&EemeTLLD 6lnblié
T BHSIETONEI.

44. 6U6DT &eLp& GILIMMLIL] :

oD SLmseled GUIUALLES GureTn eumid Qb
FepsH OUMMILIL 6006 & (D6eM6N & 6mLDS &l6T6m .
Gl Q@b FeLps OLIMMILILETONTE) Cl&METEn&EEmII DM
Q&MeoT(B6TENG. OHMETEN S Sh6)6DUTLD 6 Ml & Ul 6d
BemevorsHeTSHH6D 2 6engl. BmieuerTRIS6T 68 & 6T
20146 U Beweorliy 360 UM BUIET Feps

QUTMILIL|ETOTITEY [FLEIRSHEMSHHEET GSUILILILLILLB6Tergl.



97th Annual Report 2018-2019

900.24 lakhs for the Corporate Social Responsibility
activities for the financial year 2018-19 and the bank
has spentthe same.

The balance unspent amount for the last
financial years are as under:

2015-16 -3893.491akhs
2016-17 -3895.92lakhs
2017-18 -3834.211akhs

MCA vide its letter Ref.No.18(P)/23/2018-CSR
dt.23.05.2018 called for information to further examine
the CSR compliance for the Financial Year 2015-16.
In response, we had replied vide our letter dated
02.07.2018. Also we had received another letter
Ref.18(P)/23/2018-CSR dt.15.02.2019 from Ministry
of Corporate Affairs CSR-Cell asking about a concrete
plan for utilization of unspent amount for the financial
year 2015-16 in accordance with the Schedule VII of
the Act by the end of financial year 2018-19. The
unspent amount for the financial year 2015-16 was
spent and the same was informed to Ministry of
Corporate Affairs by the CSR Cell on 27.03.2019. The
unspent amount for the financial year 2016-17 and
2017-18 will be spent during the financial year 2019-
20.

45. Extract of annual return

Extracts of Annual Return Pursuant to
provision of sec 134(3)(a) and sec 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 the extract of the Annual Return as at 31st March
2019 is given as Annexure 4 of this report and also
uploaded in Bank's website. The same can be
accessed at https://www.tmb.in

46. Number of cases filed, if any, and their disposal
under section 22 of the sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Bank has zero tolerance towards any act on
the part of any executive/employees which may fall
under the ambit of 'Sexual Harassment' at workplace,
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02.07.18 GpHWILL Tm&G6T HRHHH6OTLIQ
uBeellsGasnbb. srTLUUGrL efeusnym &er
SlenLFFHSSLLOBHS! LDHEODN(H HeHLD 15.02.20196d
aubsHE. 2015-16 BHwimevoriped Qlse0NMLLILLIS
AsMem&HemW L LWeTUGSSI6USMHESTEOT 2 M) & Wimeor
BLLHMS Upml 2018-1960 GaL&LULLLE. 2015-161D
BHwneoTigMBETEOT AFONLULLITS 65HT6ems
aseoelLLLLGeTengl, D16 Gumed smrUUGTL eNleusny
SemLEFHEHENDSG 27.03.2019 Slearm
asflefsslurBereng. 2016-17 WwHMILD 2017-181D
BHWIMetoTeH&EMe0T 1FMLLILLTS 65Tems 2019-20
SpLb Bwimevoriged Q15606 LILIBLD.

45. eUBLNHET LILSILD :

uigeutb MGT-9 Wfley 92(3) wHmILD 134(3) (@)
WMey Bmieuermsefieor ( GLDedmetOTEWLD LD HMILD
BrieunsLd) efdpemmaer, 2014 LR SewevorLil 4-6d
8hs SNsens SeweorssLliLLBeTeng. GLDeLD
U m & uler SemeorlHoeTHS QLD & gl
LUBCeUDDLILIL(BETENS.

46. Gauemed BMIGHHLD (HBLIL. HewL HMID HEHELD)
FLLLD, 2013 860 6LcvorHeMedr LImedluled &I60TLM|5 860

Wifley 22-601 1) g@HeMID QIh ULPHE, HTHBHED

QFWILILILIL L. 6ULDESE&S6IM60T 6T600T6001E&H6mS
ueoofluiLgHed Lmedlwied gleoT mISSHed LmBLiLfleor

BLD eu@BLd 6THs @db Breumdu|d , 2eTLSIWIf& ErbLd.
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and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the
dignity of every woman working in the Bank. The Policy
provides for prevention and protection against sexual
harassment of women at workplace and for and
redressal of such complaints. All the employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy.

Number of complaints pending as at the
beginning of the financial year - One

Number of complaints filed during the financial
year - Nil

Number of complaints pending as at the end of
the financial year - Nil.

47.Unclaimed dividend and shares

Your Bank, in compliance with the provisions
of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 together
with the applicable rules and circulars issued
thereunder by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, has
transferred 1,53,807 equity shares to the IEPF
Authority, in respect of which no claim of dividend has
been made continuously for a period of seven years.
Further, in terms of the said provisions, consequent to
expiry of seven years period:

a. Unclaimed amounts pertaining to Dividend declared
during FY 2011-12 has been transferred to IEPF

during the financial year under review, and

. Unclaimed amount pertaining to Dividend declared
during FY 2012-13 together with shares will be
transferred during financial year 2019-20 within the
stipulated time.

48. Strictures and Penalties

During the last financial years, no penalties or
strictures imposed/passed against the Bank by the
MCA and/or any other statutory authorities on matters
relating to Share Capital except the following.

For the year 2018-19, RBI by an order dated
June 19, 2018, in terms of Section 47A(1)(c) read with
Section 46(4)(i) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
has imposed a penalty of 6 crores for non-compliance
with the directions issued by RBI with regard to the
action of the bank in issuing Bonus shares in favour of
6 non — resident entities holding 46862 original shares

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd
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whHhaw s8USHOTeDDWDN, HLEIQSESDS
TGHHLULUGLD. OHMID eum Sufed U eooflwmmbmLb
66I6IEUT(H 61LI6TOTE00NE0T &600T600AULISHENS (LP(LDEMLDILIME
upnwféss sLemWUUL G6Terg . UevoflLrflujLb
CILIGU0TE ETh & GTHTM60T LIMEdlIEd SHI6TLMISHSH0 LDHMILD
SHHmaHW Usnisemer HeGeusD& aTdIns sGLLY
LDOMILD LUNSISTUINDETET C\BTETEnSHEHEW6N EULDRIGSEDSI.
SleweuHg Lievoflwineniasebld (Brbsr. eUUbsS. Shenedls,
vwIpd aumGeuniser) &b QOsMaTenHUI6IT SLP
©_6iTerenTIT.

BHWIMETOTIZET QASHMTLESHSH6D [Henl6meuufey 6Term
L&MTaerfenT erevoTevofisema - 1.

BHwnevoriped FWILUEN&ESLUILLL L& TT s 6rfl 60
6T6v0TEU0NSH6me — E6D6meD.

BBwimevorigett @miBulied B enlemeuud gy 6irer
L&mTeeredr eTevoTevollsemss — EedemeD.

47. GanuluLng LRSI (BSESTens LHMILD LIMRIEGSET:

BmieuerrssLLLD 2013, Wifley 12560 LQuyLD,
sTIUUGTL eNeu&MIMRI&6T Sl6emLD&F& T em 6 U 607
sEDDU&ensHaiedr LIQU|D, 2 MRI&6T 6l & W6l
QBMLTEAWNG gD UBLMIGTTE LRIELGSHSTns
GaMyuuLns 1,53,807 URIGSED6T (PSEOLLTETTE6T
sevel LMD ungismiy BH&@ wrpmlu|eTergl. GLoayb
GmaevorL. eX@serfleoTLilg,

&) 2011-12 BHwnevoriged SiPleN&sLLLL
URIGeoTusasnensuied CampuuLns
UMIGEOMUSESTEnSIITETS! (LPSHEOLLTENT &Hed6x
LOMILD UNHISTLIL BHulled OFQISHSLILILLSI.

&) 2012-13 BHwinevoriged SiPlefs&sUIuULL UMIG
omTusesnemsuled CampluuLTs
URIGeOmTusSasnenswnerg, 2019-20
BAWIME00TIEED EUEDTILIMISSLILILL. SHTEOSBMHE 6,
WPBEOLLTeNT &edefl LoHMILD LGSy BHuded
Q5 HSLILIBLD.

48. 5600IeLIL&6T LDMHMILD SIUTTSHBIGHET:

&LHS euddLWb, snruuBpL efeusny
SlemLDFETemEUINEILD WM srLfdwiner SiBamyb
UeWLSH SlewblUsenmeayld eumBSuienr GLbed
BhserLeupenn H6efly Geum SlUDTS M &er
N B&&LILIL6X6D6m6D.

2018-19 euBLHP6D. UMTs MH&mel eurmiSuwImed,
19.06.2018 CaulLL SyemevoruliedmLlp, 6UMRI&H
QRLEIGWennFFLLLD 19fley 47AM)(C) wHmi Nfey
46(4)() up, 46,862 UMIGS6T MUSHBHEGLD 6
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which was termed as violation of the permission
granted under FEMA. Further, RBI by an order dated
25.02.2019, in terms of Section 47A(1)(c) read with
Section 46(4)(i) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
has imposed a penalty of 1 crore for non —compliance
with and contravention of directions, contained in the
RBI circular DBS.CO. CSITE/ 4493/ 31.01.015/2017-
18 dated February 20,2018 on 'Time bound
implementation and strengthening of swift related
operational controls' that were observed during the
compliance assessment conducted by RBI between
May 8and 10, 2018.

49. Others

As the Bank has no activity relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption,
such particulars are not required to be furnished under
sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act 2013 read with Rule (8)(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

1. The statement containing particulars of the
employees as required under Section 197(12) of the
act read with rule 5(2) of the companies (Appointment
of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

2. Top ten employees in term of remuneration drawn -
Annexure —I

3. Secretarial Audit Report-Annexure —II

4. Annual Reporton CSRActivities - Annexure IlI

5. FormNo.MGT-9 - Annexure IV

50. Acknowledgment

The Board places on record its appreciation of
the valuable patronage, co-operation and goodwill
received by your Bank from customers, fellow bankers,
financial institutions and Non-Resident Indians. The
continued support and co-operation of the employees
and customers have been a constant source of
strength for the Bank in all its endeavours.
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GeuafiBr(B Bmi6leT & EhsE GLTETsn L& & 6T
QUMRBIBWITE eUPMmIGLILLLE, SAbBEul GLbemeooremnLd
FLLSBe0T S eupRISLILLL Slgnbdemwl BHWgnss
SGSUULG, epUmil. 6 Game Sugnsb eNS&ssLULrLgl.
Geyb uMps Mamel eumiBuleor 25.02.19 CaHulLL
S emevoTUNedTLIR 6UMRIS 6(LDMIGWPewmEsFLLLD ey
47A()(c) wpmib 46(4)() b, ungs Merel
aumBuierr 20.02.2018 GaBul L &FOHDHSem&UNed
QFMEDEOLILILL 2 608 6UMRISE EhSHS6mL GUILITET &&616D
ufllonhwsBed HewL(pemmuied 2 _emem &LBLLMGSm6T
LIeoLIL(BSSHeUD&ETE0T eULD(LPenMEHEm6T SHLDEDLIBSSI6US6D
GeOUTH&HLD HMeOOTLULLLSTS M&Emel 6rml&éw med
SHSLILLLSTED eHUMLLT G Supngd eNsasLILLL gl

49. LbHmeme

agfleged Gy LOMWL SGMHE&Ner
QBMPlEOHILL HLENESMSSHEN60 eURS FBLLTSSTE
Wrfley (3) (&) LGP 134, sLb6Ledl FLLLD 2013, ed&eT
(8)(3) seuel (BeotrsGser) eNdaser 2014 &L
somilsaLluL G emeuuiedemnen.

SemevoriiL] - 1
1. seauel eld 5(2) 2 Ler (1967). Wifley
197(12)er 1p CoemeuliLBLD 2erislwiitaerleor
efleuImisemen 2 _eTenL &SI Anflsems (Breuns
Sgsnl) SHeHS FLLMGET, 2016
2. Wwyed uHG e flunsefien 2rguild QUMD
SIT6LD

SemevorLiL| - 2
1. 6FWeNs H6e00NsHems SMHems
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1. CSR pLeugsenssefler eudmLIbHET Snlsens

Semevoril - 4
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50. peoplujemn:

aURIBUNeT BTeUNTSEHEG (LD CUMLSHEDSIWITETTSET,
&8 eUmIB&6T, B BnieueTHS6e0 DHMILD QeuelBTL L6
afléGh ShPwnser eumduiear g emeusHdmsELb
BEOTLDALIL| LDHMILD URIBHS HEDBII SHSIMLPLIL|, 2 HeX
SEweanpBin@ ungrLigener agfleledmg. eums
o SlWAsel SWpMg 2 ewpUL DML
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The Board places on record its gratitude to
Reserve Bank of India and other regulatory authorities,
the Government of India and State Governments for
their continued guidance and support.

The staff members of the Bank have been
working with dedication and deep commitment.
Teamwork at every level, well supported by
appropriate technology architecture, has been the
hallmark of the Bank's performance. The Board
places on record its appreciation for the excellent
contribution made by each and every member of the
staff, who have made our achievements possible
through the yesteryears, and is confident that such
contribution will continue in the coming year.

Place: Thoothukudi
Date: 11.07.2019

For and on behalf of the Board
S.Annamalai
Chairman
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GUMMIRE M S UIMETE6M60T 628 GI6WLPLIL| eurRIBuledr eT6dedIT
pwhdlsefiaid 2 _MigIeneoorLng SlenLDSnEI.

eURIBUNEDT BWSHSHT GLp. LTS Mamel eurmies,
8HHW SIpsFMmIsLD WHNID MHed SIF&H&eT DHnLD
QPRIGWPEDDLILGSHSILD 6T6D60M S 6 600T LIS ETH & G LD
Slaus6T UPHISW SheTeliDGLD. AMle)6mnD s ehs&LD
mperlufiemeor FLMUNGEDS. eumSuNeoT 2eriflwime 6
W&HS F-GUTLBLE0T QFWeOLLG 6UIHBEOTMEOTT. 6TED6DIT
Bemeoufgyd o _6em 2erSluiré 6rledr 6 h Ml 6m 600T[H S
LG WPpwWpndl FGUTG CHemeuwiner ASHMLPIed HILLILD
SpBWwemer SelEURIBnIL FTHEMET LeDLHE 2 seiluig).
euRIS 2 SlTseT SHOMILD LMIBener SWeGHT & (LD
BemenTeY Eniibgl QUBRIBTOSSNILD S& OSHMLIBLD eTeiTm)
[BLOLEDSI.

8L : HIHEHIHGIR SWEGBHT & (LDe6T ShemeUoTLLIY
mreT : 1.07.2019. B Sl6T0TETOTTLDEMED

@grTLpedT
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Annexure - I1

Form No.MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1)of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule No.9 of the
Companies(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

THE MEMBERS,

TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
57, VICTORIA EXTENSION ROAD
THOOTHUKUDI TN 628002

[ have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
(hereinafter called the “Bank”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Bank and also the
information provided by the Bank, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, including the Court Orders and without expressing
any opinion on subject matter of pending litigation or matter covered in order of the
Hon'ble Court, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Bank has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2019 complied with the statutory
provisions listed here under and also that the Bank has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

made hereinafter:

Tamilnad

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Bank for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2019 according to the provisions

of:

1) TheCompaniesAct,2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent
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applicable;

3)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings.

Other Specific Laws applicable to the Bank
1) Inrelation to the other laws we have relied on the representation made by the Bank's Audit's
Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Bank for compliances under applicable
Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the Bank.
(a) Bankingregulation Act, 1949 read with rules made thereunder
(b) Reserve Bank of India, 1934 read with circulars, notifications & rules made
thereunder
(c) Securitization and reconstruction of Financial Assets and enforcement of Security
Interest Act,2002
(d) The Bankers Book Evidence Act, 1891
(e) Banking Companies Rules, 1949

(f) Prevention of Money LaunderingAct,2002 read with rules made thereunder

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Bank has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The subscribed capital and paid -up capital of the Bank is not in compliance to
provisions of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 which requires the subscribed capital of
the Bank should be notbe less than one-half of the authorised capital, and the paid- up
capital should notbeless than one-half of the subscribed capital.

2. The Bank during the financial year under review has kept in abeyance a dividend of
Rs.17,91,33,408/-inrespect0f5,59,79,190 shares onaccountofdisputes/otherissues.

3. The Bank has not convened Annual General Meetings (AGM) for the financial year
ended 31" March 2016,31" March 2017 & 31" March 2018 and has approached (as per
details provided) Hon'ble High Court seeking directions for holding Annual General
Meetings for the years 2016,2017,2018 along with 2019. However, the matter has not
been taken up for hearing till date. The Bank has represented that, based on
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multiplicity of the litigations covering shareholdings and percentage of shares held by
different group which is pending before the Hon'ble High Court and due to pendency of
its application as indicated above, the Bank could not convene AGMs for the Financial
year ended 31" March, 2016, 31st March, 2017 & 31" March 2018 pursuant to Section
92 & Section 129 of the Companies Act,2013.

4.  The provision of Companies Act, 2013 which mandates retirement of minimum
one-third of Directors at each AGM. However, as stated in clause 3 of the report, the
AGM for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2016, 31st March 2017 &31* March
2018 has not been held and hence re-appointment of Directors those who ought to

have been retired by rotation at the AGM had not taken place.

5.  The Board has approved the appointment and remuneration of Mr. Rama Moorthy
Kumarabommarajpuram Venkata as Managing Director & CEO with effect from
9thJuly 2017 /4th September 2017 and same was also approved by Reserve Bank of
India. However, the said appointment and remuneration of the Managing Director has
not yetapproved by the shareholders as contemplated under Section 196 & 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

6. During the period under review, the RBI had levied a penalty of Rs. 1 Crore for non-
compliance with various directions on time-bound implementation and strengthening of
SWIFT operations and a penalty of Rs. 6 Crores towards failure of the bank to adhere to

the directions while issuing bonus shares to certain non-resident entities.

7. During the year under review, the Bank has received a Notice from the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs seeking clarification on the non-spending of Corporate Social
Responsibility and necessary clarification in this regard was made by the Bank.
Wherever notice was received by the Bank from RBI or wherever clarification were
sought, the Bank had duly replied to them within reasonable time and same was also

placed before the Board.

Ifurtherreportthat

The Board of Directors of the Bank is duly constituted pursuant to Interim order passed by
Hon'ble Division Bench, High Court, Madras declaring the appointment of Directors, with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The

I N
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subsequent changesin the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period

under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act/RBI directives.

Adequate notices were given to all the directors for the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting. The Minutes of the Meetings have recorded the discussions,
observations, directions and resolutions of the Board/Committees of the Board. All decisions were
carried out with requisite majority approval of the Board and there was no instance of dissent

voting by any member during the period under review, was seen in the minutes of the meeting.

[ have examined the systems and processes of the Bank in place to ensure the compliance with
general laws like Labour Laws, Employees Provident Funds Act, Employees State Insurance Act,
considering and relying upon representations made by the Bank and its Officers for systems and
mechanisms formed by the Bank for compliance under these laws and other applicable sector
specific Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations applicable to the Bank and its observance by them.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Bank commensurate with
the size and operations of the Bank to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

Ifurther reportthatduring the audit period, there were no instances of:
i Public / Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity.
ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities.
iii. ~ Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies
Act,2013.

iv. = Merger /amalgamation / reconstruction etc.

V. Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: Chennai Signature:
Date: 1% ]July, 2019 (P.Sriram)
P. Sriram & Associates
FCSNo0.4862/CPNo:3310
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Annexure A

To
THE MEMBERS,
TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANKLIMITED
57,VICTORIA EXTENSION ROAD
THOOTHUKUDITN 628002

My reportofeven date is to be read along with this supplementary testimony.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Bank. My
responsibility is to expressan opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the
processes and practices, the Bank had followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.Thave notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
ofthe Bank.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

Place: Chennai Signature:
Date: 1%July,2019 (P.Sriram)
P. Sriram & Associates

FCSNo0.4862/CPNo:3310




i

97th Annual Report 2018-2019 T\ B ==

Be a step ahead in life
Annexure- lll

Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. A brief outline of the bank’s CSR policy:

The CSR Policy of the bank outlines the type and scope of activities to be
undertaken as part of the Bank’s commitment to contributing to the overall progress
of the society, people and the environment while aligning the same with the general
policy prescriptions of the Government of India in the matter of growth and
development. It also aims at complying with the requirements of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules,
2014 and allied notifications issued by the Government of India. The CSR Policy as
recommended by the CSR Committee and as approved by the Board is available on
the Bank’s website viz.,

http://www.tmb.in/policy csr/know about our corporate social responsibility policy.html

The specific activities to be undertaken by the Bank within the parameters as specified in
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

i. Financial inclusion — to cover under clause (ii) of Schedule VII,
ii. Provision of solar powered street lights — to cover under clauses (iv) and (x)

iii. Provision of food to orphanages/old age homes - clause (i)

iv. Planting of trees/saplings — clause (iv)

v. Donations to schools, vocational institutions etc. — clauses (ii) and (iii)

vi. Organising blood donation camps, eye testing camps etc. — clause (i)

vii. Donating bicycles, sewing machines etc. — clause (ii)

viii. Setting up a library for the public — clause (v)

ix. Providing RO plants to schools, old age homes etc. — clause (i)

x. Construction of toilets etc. — clause (i)

xi. Training centre for promotion of nationally recognised sports — clause (vii)

xii. A vocational training/empowerment/skill building institute in the line of RSETI (Rural
Self Employment Training Institute) or so could be started by the Bank for imparting
training to various sections of people in the society especially rural youth and
women. Providing financial assistance to ITls also could be considered — clause (ii)

xiii. Setting up bore wells, water treatment plants, fresh water disposal plants including
RO plants etc. in villages, schools etc. — clause (i).

xiv. Developing rural market places— clause (iii), (x) and (xi)

xv. Provision of infrastructure and aiding machinery for differently abled people, like
wheel chairs, cycles, ramps etc. — clause (ii) and (iii)

xvi. Electrification of villages, especially through solar energy — clause (x)

xvii. Healthcare and sanitation facilities for villagers especially womenfolk— clause (i)
xviii. Provision of free medical camps, medical consultancy, clinics etc. — clause (i)

xix. Setting up of creches and day care centres— clause (iii)

xx. Providing ambulances— clause (i)

xxi. Providing financial assistance for fees, maintenance expenses and provision of
various amenities to the schools and charitable trusts meant for the specially
abled/differently abled/mentally unsound children— clause (ii).
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2.

6.

The Composition of the CSR Committee of Board:
Thiru K. V. Rama Moorthy, MD & CEO
Thiru S. Annamalai
Thiru S. R. Ashok
Thiru D.N. Nirranjan Kani

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
Rs. 450.12 lakh

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs.
900.24 lakh

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
As per Annexure

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the
last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for
not spending the amount in its Board report.

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules thereunder, we have to spend
a sumof 900.24 lakhs for the Corporate Social Responsibility activities for the financial
year 2018-19 and the bank has spent the same.

The balance unspent amount for the last financial years are as under:

2015-16 - ¥893.49 lakhs
2016-17 - 895.92 lakhs
2017-18 - ¥834.21 lakhs

MCA vide its letter Ref.N0.18(P)/23/2018-CSR dt.23.05.2018 called for information to
further examine the CSR compliance for the Financial Year 2015 - 16. In response, we
had replied vide our letter dated 02.07.2018. Also we had received another letter
Ref.18(P)/23/2018-CSR dt.15.02.2019 from Ministry of Corporate Affairs CSR- Cell asking
about a concrete plan for utilization of unspent amount for the financial year 2015-16 in
accordance with the Schedule VII of the Act by the end of financial year 2018 -19. The
unspent amount for the financial year 2015-16 was spent and the same was informed to
Ministry of Corporate Affairs by the CSR Cell on 27.03.2019. The unspent amount for the
financial year 2016-17 and 2017-18 will be spent during the financial year 2019-20.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
company.

It is hereby certified by the CSR Committee of the Board as well as the Board of Directors
that the sum incurred towards various activities under the CSR initiatives of the bank
during the year 2018-19 are in conformity with the CSR policy guidelines of the bank and
it is monitored as envisaged in the said policy.

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd
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(1) 2) (3) 4) () (6) () (8)
Sl CSR project or | Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount spent on | Cumulative | Amount
No | activity which the | programs outlay the projects or | expenditure | gpent:
identified Project is | (1) Local area | (budget programs upto the | Direct or
covered or other project or | Sub-Heads: reporting through
(2) Specify the | programs (1) Direct period implement
State and | wise expendit .
district ure on ing
where projects agency
projects or or
programs programs
was (2) Overhea
undertaken ds
1 Providing RO | Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 514575 514575 514575 Direct
plants to

schools, old
age home etc

2 Construction Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 1600000 1600000 2114575 Direct
of toilets etc..

3 Setting up | Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 50000 50000 2164575 Direct
bore-wells in
schools etc.

4 Healthcare Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 2080600 2080600 4245175 Direct
and sanitation West Bengal
facilities
5 Provision  of | Clause (I) | Punjab, 10000 10000 4255175 Direct
free clinics,
medical
consultancy
etc

6 Donations to Clause (ii) | Tamilnadu 11443140 11443140 15698315 Direct
schools etc.

7 Setting up of | Clause Tamilnadu, 900000 900000 | 16598315 Direct
homes and | (iii)
hostel for
women  and
orphans, old
age homes etc

8 Provision  of | Clause Tamilnadu 520000 520000 17118315 Direct
infrastructure (iii)
and aiding
machinery for
differently
abled people
9 Setting up a | Clause (v) | Tamilnadu 550000 550000 17668315 Direct
library for the
public
10 | Providing Clause (ii) | Tamilnadu 500000 500000 18168315 Direct
financial
assistance to
Charitable
trusts meant
for the
differently
abled etc
11 Providing Clause(ii) | Tamilnadu 820000 820000 18988315 Direct
bicycles,
sewings
machines etc
12 | Development Clause Tamilnadu 110000 110000 19098315 Direct

of relief and (viii)
welfare of the
SC/ST, other
backward
classes etc

Total | 19098315 19098315
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Annexure - IV
Form No.MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31/03/2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. Registration and other details:

1| CIN U65110TN1921PLC001908

2 | RegistrationDate May 11, 1921

3 | Name of the Company Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited

4 | Address of the Registered office and | 57, V. E. Road, Thoothukudi,
contact details Tamil Nadu — 628 002

5| Category / Sub-Category of the | Public Company/Limited by Shares
Company
Whether listed company Yes / No No

7 | Name, Address and Co ntact details of | None
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated:

SI.No. Name and NIC Code of the % total turnover of the
Description of main Product / service company
products/ services

1 BANKING NA 100

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE

COMPANIES -
S.NO. NAME CIN/ GLN| HOLDING/ %OF APPLICABLE
AND SUBSIDIARY | SHARES SECTION
ADDRESS / HELD
OF THE ASSOCIATE
COMPANY
1 NONE
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding Cumulative holding
during the year
No. of shares % of Increase/
at the total Decrease in
beginning/end | shares Date shareholding | Reason No. of
SI. | Name of the year of the shares Percentage
No. Bank
1 ROBERT AND 7054080 4.94983 | - - - 7054080 | 4.94983
ARDIS JAMES
COMPANY
LIMITED
2 STARSHIP EQUITY | 6727500 4.72067 | - - - 6727500 | 4.72067
HOLDINGS LTD
3 SUBCONTINENTAL | 6617709 4.64363 | - - - 6617709 | 4.64363
EQUITIES
LIMITED
4 EAST RIVER 5305089 3.72257 | - - - 5305089 | 3.72257
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
5 SWISS RE 5072124 3.55910 | - - - 5072124 | 3.55910
INVESTORS
(MAURITIUS)
LIMITED
6 FI INVESTMENTS 2704899 1.89802 | - - - 2704899 | 1.89802
(MAURITIUS)
LIMITED
7 C.S.RAJENDRAN 2079849 1.45872 | Purchase 3555 Purchase | 2083404 | 1.46192
8 HIBISCUS 1993479 1.39882 | Purchase 22545 Purchase | 2016024 | 1.41464
ENTERPRISES LLP
9 MEENAKSHI.R. 1899792 1.33308 | - - - 1899792 | 1.33308
10 | SENTHIL.M.G 1899792 1.33308 | - - - 1899792 | 1.33308

(ii)Share holding of Promoters:

There were ten persons who promoted the Bank in the year 1921 by subscribing to its
Memorandum of Association, collectively holding 11505 equity shares of Rs.10 each. Since
all these persons are deceased now, we have not made any attempt to identify the promoter
group at present. Some of the descendants of these persons might be holding some shares
in the bank still. Since we are an unlisted company we have not formally categorized the
bank’s shareholders into promoter group and non-promoter group.
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(ii)Change in Promoters’ Share holding (please specify, if there is no change)- Not Applicable

(iv)Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding Cumulative holding
during the year
No. of shares % of Increase/
at the total Decrease in
beginning/end | shares Date shareholding | Reason No. of
SI. | Name of the year of the shares Percentage
No. Bank
1 Shri K.V Rama - - - - - - -
Moorthy
(MD&CEO)
2 Shri S.Annamalai 342684 0.240 - - - 342684 0.240
3 Shri S. R.Ashok 47595 0.03340 | - - - 47595 0.03340
4 ShriP. C. G. Asok | 1577649 1.107 - - - 1577649 | 1.10703
Kumar
5 Shri B. S. Keshava | - - - - - - -
Murthy
6 Shri K. Nagarajan | 7014 0.004 - - - 7014 0.004
7 Shri D.N 935367 0.65634 | - - - 935367 | 0.65634
NirranjanKani
8 Shri K.V. Rajan - - - - - - -
9 Shri Anup Kumar | - - - - - - -
10 | ShriA. 9018 0.006 10.04.2018 | 1503 Transmission | 10521 0.007
Shidambaranathan
11 | Shri B. 1503 0.001 15.07.2017 | 2500 Purchase 4003 0.002
Vijayadurai
12 | Tmt S.Ezhil Jothi - - - - - - -
13 | Tmt A.Sivagami - - - - - - -
14 | Thiru N Gopal - - - - - - -
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Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for

payment
(Rs.in crore)
Secured Unsecured . Total
Loans excluding deposits| | oans Deposits Indebtedness
Indebtedness
at the beginning
of the financial year Nil Nil 32,42833 32,42833
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
- i 32,428.33 32,428.33
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil
Change
in Indebtedness during the
Financial Nil Nil 2,707.92 2,707.92
year
- Addition
- Reduction
Net Change Nil Nil 2,707.92 2,707.92
Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year
Nil Nil 35,136.25 35,136.25
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil 35,136.25|  35,136.25
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VI. Remuneration of Directors and key managerial personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager during
2018-19:
(Amount inX)

S.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / WTD

Shri.K.V.Rama Moorthy
(MD&CEO)
(01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019)

1. | Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions contained 45,00,000.00
in section17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

1961

(b)Value of perquisites under section 5,07,701.00

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section -
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option

3. | Sweat Equity

4. | Commission

- as % of profit

- Others, specify...
5. | Others

PF -
Gratuity -
PL Encashment -
Hospitalisation Expenses 1,71,626.40

Total (A) 51,79,327.40
Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors: ]
(Amount in )

SI.No. | Name of Directors Sitting Fees Commission Total

1 Shri.K.V.Rajan 255000 Nil 255000
2 Shri.S.Annamalai 690000 Nil 690000
3 Shri.S.R.Ashok 1350000 Nil 1350000
4 Shri.P.C.G.Asok Kumar 1050000 Nil 1050000
5 Shri.S.Ezhil Jothi 750000 Nil 750000
6 Shri.B.S.Keshavamurthy 1215000 Nil 1215000
7 Shri.K.Nagarajan 1500000 Nil 1500000
8 Shri.D.N.Niranjan Kani 1020000 Nil 1020000
9 Shri.B.Vijayadurai 1635000 Nil 1635000
10 Shri.A.Shidambaranathan 1020000 Nil 1020000

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

MD / MANAGER / WTD
(Amount in )
Sl. no Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company CFO* Total
Secretary

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained - 10,85,006.75 - 10,85,006.75
in section 17 (1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites under 3 1,72,795.00 - 1,72,795.00
section 17 (2) Income tax Act,1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under i - } -
section 17 (3) Income- tax Act,1961
Stock Option - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - -

4. Commission
- as % of profit - - - -
-others, specify...

5. Others, please specify
Closing Allowance - 4,000.00 - 4,000.00
Exgratia - 1,43,853.59 - 1,43,853.59
PL Encashment _ 93,599.72 - 93,599.72
Apparel Allowance 37,500.00 37,500.00

Total - 15,36,755.06 - 15,36,755.06

* CFO has been appointed w.e.f. 21.03.2019 and salary paid to him from the month of April 2019.
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal
Companies Description Penalty / [RD/NCLT made,
Act Punishment/ | / COURT] if any
Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A.COMPANY
Penalty 1. RBI in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 47A (1)© read with

Section 46 (4)(i) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 has imposed a penalty of
Punishment |Rs.6 Crore vide their letter dated 19.06.2018 for contravention of the
instruction/guidelines stipulated by RBI regarding issue of Bonus Shares to six
non-resident entities.

Compounding| 5 Rp has by an order dated 25.02.2019, in terms of Section 47A(1)(c) read with
Section 46(4)(i) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 has imposed a penalty of
Rs.1 crore for non— compliance with and contravention of directions, contained
in the RBI circular DBS.CO. CSITE/ 4493/ 31.01.015/2017-18 dated February
20,2018 on ‘ Time bound implementation and strengthening of swift related
operational controls’ that were observed during the compliance assessment
conducted by RBI between May 8 and 10, 2018

B.DIRECTORS \
Penalty NONE

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NONE

Punishment

Compounding
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Basel lll - Pillar 3 Disclosuresas on March 315, 2019

1. Scope of Application and Capital Adequacy

Table DF-1- Scope of application

Name of the head of the banking group

to which the framework applies:- Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Ltd.,

Qualitative Disclosures

Applicability to our Bank

a. List of Group entities considered for consolidation.

The Bank does not belong
to any group and does not
have any associate,
subsidiaries, joint venture,
etc.

b. List of Group entities not considered for
consolidation both under the accounting and regulatory
scope of consolidation.

Not Applicable

Quantitative Disclosures

c. List of group entities considered for consolidation

The Bank does not belong
to any group and does not
have any associate,
subsidiaries, joint venture,
etc.

d. The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all
subsidiaries which are not included in the regulatory
scope of consolidation i.e. that are deducted and the
name(s) of such subsidiaries.

Not Applicable

e. The aggregate amounts (e.g. Current book value) of
the bank’s total interests in insurance entities, which
are risk-weighted.

Not Applicable

f. Any restriction or impediments on transfer of funds or
regulatory capital within the banking group.

Not Applicable

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

head in life
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Table DF -2-Capital Adequacy

Qualitative Disclosures

A. A summary discussion of the Bank's approach to assessing the adequacy
of its capital to support current and future activities.

The Bank is following standardized approach, Standardized Duration approach and
Basic Indicator approach for measurement of capital charge in respect of credit risk,
market risk and operational risk respectively.

The computation of Capital for credit risk under Standardized Approach is done
granularly borrower & account wise based on the data captured through Core
Banking Solution. Bank is also taking efforts on an ongoing basis for the accuracy of
the data.The various aspects of NCAF norms are imparted to field level staff
regularly through circulars and letters for continuous purification of data and to
ensure accurate computation of Risk Weight and Capital Charge. The Bank has
used the credit risk mitigation in computation of capital for credit risk, as prescribed
in the RBI guidelines under Standardized Approach.

The capital for credit risk on Loans and Advances, market risk and operational risk
as per the prescribed approaches are being computed at the bank’s Head Office and
aggregated to arrive at the position of bank’s CRAR. The bank has followed the RBI
guidelines in force, to arrive at the eligible capital funds, for computing CRAR.

Besides computing CRAR under the Pillar | requirement, the Bank also periodically
undertakes stress testing in various risk areas to assess the impact of
stressed scenario or plausible events on asset quality, liquidity, profitability and
capital adequacy.

Thebank conducts Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) on an
annual basis to assess the sufficiency of its capital funds to cover the risks specified
under Pillar- Il of Basel guidelines.The adequacy of Bank’s capital funds to meet the
future business growth is also assessed in the ICAAP document, which is approved
by the Board.While the surplus CRAR available at present acts as a buffer to support
the future activities, the headroom available for the bank for mobilizing Tier 1 and
Tier 2 capital (subject to approval by the competent authorities) is also assessed to
meet the required CRAR against future activities.
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The Bank is having high quality Common Equity Tier 1 capital, as the entire
components of CET1 capital comprises of Paid up Capital, Reserves & Surplus and
retained earnings.

Minimum capital requirements under Basel-III:
Under the Basel Ill Capital Regulations, Banks are required to maintain a minimum

Pillar 1 Capital (Tier-l + Tier-1l) to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of 9% on an
on-going basis. Besides this minimum capital requirement, Basel Il also provides for
creation of capital conservation buffer (CCB). The transitional period of full
implementation of Basel Ill capital regulation in India is extended up to 31 March
2020. Accordingly the CCB requirements were implemented from 31 %March 2016
in phases and are to be fully implemented by March 31, 2020 to the extent of 2.50 %
of Risk weighted Assets. The banks are required to maintain minimum CRAR of
10.875% (including CCB of 1.875 %) as on 31.03.2019.

The total regulatory capital funds under Basel-lll norms consist of the sum of the
following categories and banks are required to maintain 10.875% of Risk Weighted
Assets (9% +1.875%) by March 2019 with the phase in requirements under CCB
from 2016.

» Tier 1 Capital comprises of:-
o Common Equity Tier 1 capital (with a minimum of 5.50%)
o Additional Tier 1 capital (1.50%)
o Total Tier 1 capital of minimum 7%

» Tier 2 Capital (2%)
o Total Tier 1 + Tier 2 should be more than 9%

+ Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) (with a minimum of 1.875%)
o Total capital including CCB should be 10.875%

In line with the RBI guidelines for implementing the New Capital Adequacy Frame
Work under Basel lll, the bank has successfully migrated since April 01, 2013.

Component of Capital:

(X in millions)

Particulars Amount
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital 35637.60
Tier 1 Capital 35637.60
Tier 2 Capital 1496.05
Total Capital 37133.65
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Quantitative Disclosure

(T in millions)
Particulars Amount
a) | Capital requirement for Credit Risk:
(@9% on risk Weighted Assets)
+ Portfolios subject to Standardised Approach 16785.35
+ Securitisation exposures Nil

b) | Capital requirements for Market Risk @ 9 % :

» Standardised Duration Approach 1288.55
o Interest Rate Risk 1218.48
o Equity Risk 52.22
o Foreign Exchange Risk 17.85
c) | Capital requirements for Operational Risk @
9% :
» Basic Indicator Approach 2595.78
d) | Capital required under CCB (1.875%) 4306.18
e) | Total Capital required 24975.86
f) | Total Capital funds available 37133.65
g) | Total Risk Weighted Assets 229663.12
Common Equity Tier | CRAR 15.52%
Tier | CRAR 15.52%
Tier Il CRAR 0.65%
h) | Total CRAR 16.17%

2. Risk exposure and Assessment

Risk is an integral part of banking business in an ever dynamic environment, which is
undergoing radical changes both on the technology front and product offerings. The
main risks faced by the bank are credit risk, market risk and operational risk. The
bank aims to achieve an optimumbalance between risk and return to maximize
shareholder value. The relevant information on the various categories of risks faced
by the bank is given in the ensuing sections. This information is intended to give
market participants a better idea on the risk profile and risk management practices of
the bank.

The Bank has a comprehensive risk management system in order to address various
risks and has set up an Integrated Risk Management Department (RMD), which is
independent of operational departments. Bank has a Risk Management Committee
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of Board functioning at apex level for formulating, implementing and reviewing bank’s
risk management measures pertaining to credit, market and operational risks. Apart
from the Risk Management Committee of the Board at apex level, the Bank has a
strong Bank-wide risk management structure comprising of Risk Management
Committee of Executives (RMCE) and Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) at senior management level.

The Bank has formulated the required policies such as Loan Policy, Credit Risk
Management Policy, Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management
Policy, ALM Policy, Operational Risk Management Policy, Investment Policy, Foreign
Exchange Risk Management Policy, Policyguidelines for Hedging Foreign Currency
Exposure, Concurrent Audit Policy, Inspection Policy, IS Audit Policy, KYC policy,
Credit Audit Policy, Stock Audit Policy, Outsourcing Policy, IT Business Continuity
and Disaster Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP), Risk Based Internal Audit Policy, Stress
Testing Policy, Disclosure Policy, ICAAP Policy, etc., for mitigating the risks in
various areas and monitoring the same. The bank continues to focus on refining and
improving its risk measurement and management systems.

Table DF-3- CREDIT RISK: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality
of borrowers or counter-parties. In a Bank’s portfolio, Credit Risk arises mostly from
lending activities of the Bank, as a borrower is unable to meet his financial
obligations to the lender. It emanates from potential changes in the credit quality /
worthiness of the borrowers or counter-parties.

Credit Rating & Appraisal Process

The Bank has well structured internal credit rating framework and well-established
standardized credit appraisal / approval processes. Credit Rating is a decision
enabling tool that helps the bank to take a view on acceptability or otherwise of any
credit proposal. In order to widen the scope and coverage further and to strengthen
the credit risk management practices, the bank has developed risk sensitive in-
house rating models during the year 2008-09 and 2009-10.

The parameters in internal rating take into consideration, the quantitative and
qualitative issues relating to management risk, business risk, industry risk, financial
risk, credit discipline, and also risk mitigation, based on the collaterals available.
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Credit rating, as a concept, has been well internalized within the Bank. The rating for
eligible borrower is reviewed at least once in a year. The Bank uses the credit
ratings for deciding the interest rates on borrowal accounts. The advantage of credit
rating is that it enables to rank different proposals and to do meaningful comparison.

With the view to migrate to advanced approaches in credit risk, the Bank has
implemented the system driven rating using web based rating model solutions (RAM
CRRM & CRESS) acquired from M/s.Crisil Risk & Infrastructure solutions Ltd.

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for
sanction of loans. New Business Group (NBG) has been constituted at HO for
considering in principle approval for taking up fresh credit proposals above a
specified cut-off.

Credit Risk Management Policies:

The Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management Policy duly
approved by the Bank’s Board. The Policy document defines organization structure,
roles& responsibilities and, the processes whereby the Credit Risks carried out by
the Bank can be identified, quantified & managed within the framework that the Bank
considers consistent with its mandate and risk tolerance.

Credit Risk is monitored on a bank-wide basis and compliance with the risk limits
approved by Board/Risk Management Committee of Board is ensured.

The Bank has taken earnest steps to put in place best credit risk management
practices in the bank. In addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the bank has
also framed Board approved Loan Policy, Investment Policy, etc., which form integral
part in monitoring Credit risk in the bank. Besides, the bank has framed a policy on
Credit Rsk Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management which lays down the
details of securities (both Primary and Collateral) normally accepted by the Bank and
administration of such securities to protect the interest of the Bank. These securities
act as mitigation against the credit risk to which the bank is exposed.

Classification of Non-Performing Assets
The Bank follows the prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of non-

performing assets as under,
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vii)

interest and/or installment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than
90 days in respect of a term loan.

the account remains ‘out of order if the outstanding balance remains
continuously in excess of sanctioned limits / DP for more than 90 days in respect
of Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills
purchased and discounted.

the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop
seasons for short duration crop.

the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop
season for long duration crops.

in respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing
positive mark-to-market value of a derivative contract, if these remain unpaid for
a period of 90 days from the specified due date for payment.

an account where the regular / adhoc credit limits have not been reviewed /
renewed within 180 days from the due date / date of adhoc sanction will be
treated as NPA.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days
from the end of the quarter, the account is classified as-non performing. A non
performing asset ceases to generate income for the bank.

b.

Gross Credit Risk exposures as on 31'March2019

(Rin millions )

Category Gross Credit Exposure
Fund Based ' 338169.94
Non Fund Based? 21491.30
Total 359661.24

1. Fund based exposure includes advances, un-availed portion (including credit
card un-availed) of fund based advances.

2. Non-Fund Based exposure includes outstanding Letter of Credit,
Acceptances, Bank Guarantee Exposures and credit equivalent of Forward
Contracts.
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c. Geographical Distribution of Gross Credit Exposures as on 315March 2019
(T inmillions )

Treasury Corporate / Retail Banking Total credit Exposure
Exposure Wholesale banking
Distribution FB NFB FB NFB FB NFB
Domestic 91924.51 | 124772.18 | 16058.74 | 213397.77 5432.55 | 338169.95 | 21491.29
Overseas 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 91924.51 | 124772.18 | 16058.74 | 213397.77 5432.55 | 338169.95 | 21491.29
d. Industry type distribution of credit exposures as on 31.03.2019
(Rin millions)
Exposures
Industry Name
Y FB NFB | Investment | Total
A. Mining and Quarrying 1218.64 522.35 0.00 1740.99
B. Food Processing 3440.63 3531.88 13.31 6985.82
C. Beverages (excluding Tea &
Coffee) and Tobacco 472.59 5.01 13.80 491.40
D. Textiles 42685.01 1925.31 0.00 44610.32
E. Leather and Leather products 230.42 4.00 0.00 234.42
F. Wood and Wood Products 2068.64 758.51 0.00 2827.15
G. Paper and Paper Products 2297.21 45.50 2.59 2345.30
H. Petroleum (non-infra), Coal
Products (non-mining) and Nuclear
Fuels 270.01 1.43 86.60 358.04
I. Chemicals and Chemical Products
(Dyes, Paints, etc.) 3193.50 36.64 34.37 3264.51
J. Rubber, Plastic and their Products 1973.19 198.90 0.00 2172.09
K. Glass & Glassware 67.01 0.00 0.00 67.01
L. Cement and Cement Products 95.42 0.00 0.00 95.42
M. Basic Metal and Metal Products 4271.38 298.40 285.06 4854.84
N. All Engineering 2248.51 783.97 2.49 3034.97
O. Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and
Transport Equipments 100.93 12.93 33.92 147.78
P. Gems and Jewellery 349.67 4.82 0.00 354.49
Q. Construction 1833.70 510.01 0.00 2343.71
R. Infrastructure 14034.30 2033.46 3181.10 19248.86
S. Other Industries, pl. specify 14132.77 1323.32 0.00 15456.09
All Industries (A to S) 94983.53 | 11996.44 3653.24 110633.21
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The details of the industries wherein the bank’s exposure in the related industry has
exceeded the 5% of total gross credit exposure as on 31.03.2019 is furnished below:

(Rin millions)

Industry Fund Non Fund | % to Gross Credit
Based Based Exposures
Textile 42685.01 | 1925.31 12.40%

e. Residual Contractual Maturity Breakdown of assets as on 31.03.2019
(Rin millions)

Balance
Maturit Caalnselh Ba"‘l\'l‘zha“d Fixed | Other | Grand
y Money at | Investments | Advances
Buckets Balance Call Assets Assets Total
with rg | Call and
Short
Notice
Next day 3848.65 3320.11 15458.50 19406.89 0.00 1335.98 | 43370.13
2-7 days 177.67 7475.02 2272.00 4621.60 0.00 92.80 14639.09
8-14 days 209.79 0.00 1884.40 4020.71 0.00 0.00 6114.90
15-30 days 631.48 0.00 2798.40 7166.60 0.00 1267.49 | 11863.97
31 days
&Upto 2
months 296.18 759.00 2594.68 8820.09 0.00 28.76 12498.71
2 months&
Upto 3
months 503.98 276.00 2203.00 7668.51 0.00 24.90 10676.39
3to6
months 916.37 0.00 4170.79 15679.69 0.00 49.02 20815.87
6 months
to 1 year 3924.66 0.00 17566.40 32753.51 0.00 83.35 54327.92
1yearto3
years 5285.47 20.00 26449.50 111129.90 0.00 745.95 | 143630.82
3to5
years 893.18 0.00 5274.79 17033.30 0.00 9062.06 | 32263.33
Above 5
years 665.99 0.00 10393.40 36578.60 1383.82 3727.40 | 52749.21
Total 17353.42 | 11850.13 91065.86* | 264879.40* | 1383.82* | 16417.71 | 402950.34

(Covers Net Assets for Domestic Operations)*Net of Provisions/ depreciation

7O
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f. Amount of Gross Non-Performing Advances (NPAs)as on 31.03.2019:
(Rinmillions )

Amount of Gross NPAs

Amount of NPAs (Gross) 11681.12
. Substandard 5356.86
. Doubitful 5998.19
. Of which DF1 1887.02
. DF2 3790.57
. DF3 320.60
. Loss 326.08
Net NPAs 6365.10
NPA Ratios

. Gross NPAs to gross advances 4.32%
. Net NPAs to net advances 2.40%

d. Movement of NPAs(Gross):

(Rinmillions )

Movement of NPAs
. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2018 8682.77
. Additions 9472.35
. Reductions 6474.00
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2019 11681.12

h. Movement of provisions
a. Movement of provisions for NPAs *

(in millions)

Particulars
. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2018 3549.93**
. Provisions made during the period 4446.80
. Write off 2680.70
. Reductions 0.00
. Write back of excess provisions / Transfers 0.00
. Any other adjustments, including transfers between provisions 0.00
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2019 5316.03**

** includes floating provision and claims receivable (CGTMSE, ECGC & UIIC)
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b. Movement of Provisions of Standard Assets:-
(Rin millions)

Particulars
. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2018 975.47
. Provisions made during the period 77.81
. Write back of excess provisions --
. Any other adjustments, including transfer between provisions 181.29
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2019 871.99

c. Stock of Technical/Prudential Write-offs and recoveries made thereon;

(Rin millions)

Particulars Amount
Opening balance for recoveries of Technical/Prudential written- off 10125.17
accounts as on 01.04.2018
Add: Technical/Prudential write-offs accounts during the period 2726.24
Less: Recoveries from previously technical/ prudential written- off 413.21
accounts taken to income account during the period.
Closing balance as on 31.03.2019 12438.20

i. Non-Performing Investments (NPIs):
(Rin millions)

a. Non-Performing Investments 798.24

b. Provisions held for non-performing investments 798.24

k. Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments:

(Rin millions)

. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2018 899.21

. Provisions made during the period 1429.80
. Write-off 0.00

. Write-back of excess provisions 383.09

. Provision adjustment during shifting 1087.27
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2019 858.65




97th Annual Report 2018-2019

I. Industry wise distribution of NPAs:

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead in life

(Rin millions)

Industry Name As on March 2019 e q“a”ezro‘;’;ded BRI 27
Standard Write — Provision Standard
Gross Provision Asset off for NPA Asset
NPA for NPA Provision Provision
A. Mining and Quarrying 27.17 6.99 3.57 0.00 6.73 (0.44)
B. Food Processing 471.53 118.84 5.16 0.00 (10.37) 0.11
C. Beverages (excluding Tea
& Coffee) and Tobacco 2.24 0.58 1.15 0.00 (0.56) (0.33)
D. Textiles 1232.06 525.71 95.92 0.00 (72.90) 10.95
E. Leather and Leather
products 0.25 0.12 0.55 0.00 (0.07) 0.07
F. Wood and Wood Products 60.78 32.75 11.48 0.00 (6.89) 7.53
G. Paper and Paper Products 592.50 314.27 3.78 0.00 48.33 (0.09)
H. Petroleum (non-infra), Coal
Products (non-mining) and
Nuclear Fuels 0.30 0.30 0.64 0.00 0.00 (0.04)
I. Chemicals and Chemical
Products (Dyes, Paints, etc.) 19.72 5.31 5.14 0.00 (0.64) 0.08
J. Rubber, Plastic and their
Products 5.93 2.64 4.87 0.00 (11.30) (0.34)
K. Glass & Glassware 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.00 0.00 0.02
L. Cement and Cement
Products 0.00 0.00 0.21 0.00 0.00 0.02
M. Basic Metal and Metal
Products 9.93 3.41 7.83 0.00 (2.18) 0.51
N. All Engineering 16.73 6.70 6.50 0.00 0.77 0.13
O. Vehicles, Vehicle Parts
and Transport Equipments 1.25 0.50 0.18 0.00 (498.77) 0.01
P. Gems and Jewellery 0.58 0.23 0.80 0.00 0.00 0.00
Q. Construction 24.39 11.85 4.59 0.00 2.47 1.40
R. Infrastructure 4181.36 1774.81 33.95 0.00 (1093.14) 1.48
S. Other Industries, pl. specify 260.07 93.59 28.33 0.00 (18.19) 1.09
All Industries (A to S) 6906.79 2898.60 214.79 0.00 (1656.71) 22.16
All others 4774.33 2034.11 656.45 0.00 (319.48) 57.42
Total 11681.12 | 4932.71** 871.24* 0.00 (1976.19) 79.58

* Excess provision of ¥ 0.75millionskept under standard asset provision
(CGTMSE& ECGC) - X

**Excludes floating provision and claims

383.20millions)

receivable
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m. Geographic distribution of NPAs:
(Rinmillions)

Particulars Domestic Overseas Total
Gross NPA 11681.12 0.00 11681.12
Provisions for NPA* 5315.91* 0.00 5315.91*
Provision for Standard assets 849.78 0.00 849.78

*Includes floating provision and claims receivable (CGTMSE, ECGC & UIIC)- X 383.20
millions)

Table DF — 4

CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE
STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:

a) General Principle:

In accordance with RBI guidelines, the Bank has adopted Standardized Approach
of the New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) for computation of capital for
Credit Risk with effect from 31.03.2009. Bank has assigned risk weights to different
assets classified as prescribed by the RBI for computation of capital.

External Credit Ratings:

Rating of borrowers by External Credit Rating Agencies (ECRA) assume importance
in the light of guideline for implementation of the New Capital Adequacy Framework
(Basel-Il). Exposures on Corporate / PSEs / Primary Dealers are assigned with risk
weights based on the external ratings. For this purpose, the Reserve Bank of India
has permitted Banks to use the rating of the seven domestic ECRAs namely (a)
Credit Analysis and Research Ltd., (CARE), (b) CRISIL Ltd., (c) Fitch India, (d) ICRA
Ltd., (e) Brickwork Ratings India P Ltd., (Brickwork), (f) ACUITE Rating s and
Research Limited (SMERA) and (g) INFOMERICS Valuation and Rating Pvt Ltd.,
(INFOMERICS). In consideration of the above guidelines, the bank accepts the
ratings assigned by all these ECRAs.

The bank has well-structured internal credit rating mechanism to evaluate the credit
risk associated with a borrower and accordingly the systems are in place for taking
credit decisions with regard to acceptability of proposals, and level of exposures and
pricing.
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In case of bank’s investment in particular issues of Corporate / PSEs, the issue
specific rating of the approved ECRAs are reckoned and accordingly the risk weights
applied after a corresponding mapping to rating scale is provided.

With regard to the coverage of exposures by external ratings as relevant for capital
computation under Standardized Approach, the process is being popularized among
the borrowers so as to take the benefit of capital relief available for better rating of
customers.

* Rating assigned by one rating agency can be used for all the types of claims
on the borrowing entity.

* Long term ratings are used for facilities with contractual maturity of one year &
above.

« Short term ratings are generally applied for facilities with contractual maturity
of less than one year.

Quantitative Disclosures

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach,
amount of a bank’s outstanding (rated and unrated) in the following three major risk
buckets as well as those that are deducted as per risk mitigation are given below;

(% in millions)

Risk Weight Rated Unrated Total *
Below 100% 11509.07 166396.79 177905.86
100% 19745.81 109546.06 129291.87
More than 100% 32736.50 57799.62 90536.12
Total Exposure before mitigation 63991.38 333742.47 397733.85
Deducted (as per Risk Mitigation) 2976.51 67358.31 70334.82
Total outstanding after mitigation 61014.87 266384.16 327399.03

* This includes total gross credit exposure i.e. (FB+ NFB (including 2% of
Forward Contract) + undrawn or partially undrawn fund based facility)
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Table DF - 5

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED
APPROACHES

Qualitative disclosures:

Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardized Approach:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the comprehensive approach relating to
credit risk mitigation under Standardized Approach, which allows fuller offset of
securities (primary and collateral) against exposures, by effectively reducing the
exposure amount by the value ascribed to the securities. Thus the eligible financial
collaterals are fully used to reduce the credit exposure in computation of credit risk
capital. In doing so, the bank has recognized specific securities namely (a) bank’s
own deposits (b) Gold/Ornaments (c) Life Insurance Policies (d) Government
Securities (e) NSC/KVP etc and (f) Units of Mutual Funds, in line with the RBI
guidelines on the subject.

Besides, other approved forms of credit risk mitigation are “On Balance Sheet
netting” and availability of “Eligible Guarantees”. On balance sheet nettings has
been reckoned to the extent of the deposits available against the loans /advances of
the borrower (to the extent of exposure) as per the RBI guidelines. Further, in
computation of credit risk capital, the types of guarantees recognized for taking
mitigation, in line with RBI guidelines are (a) Central Government Guarantee (0%)
(b) State Government (20%) (c) CGT MSE (0%) (d) ECGC (20%) (e) Bank
Guarantee in the form of bills purchased / discounted under Letter of credit (20%)
and (f) Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Trust for Low Income Housing (CRGFTLIH)
(0%). The Bank has ensured compliance of legal certainty as prescribed by the RBI
in the matter of credit risk mitigation.

Concentration Risk in Credit Risk Mitigation:

All types of securities eligible for mitigation are easily realizable financial securities.
As such, presently no limit/ceiling has been prescribed to address the concentration
risk in credit risk mitigants recognized by the Bank.
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(T in million)

a. For each separately disclosed credit risk portfolio, the total exposure
(after, where applicable, on-or off balance sheet netting) that is covered by
eligible financial collateral (FCs) after the application of haircuts is given

below:

Portfolio category Financial collateral Quantum of exposure

covered

1. Funded - Credit Bank’s own deposits 30965.03
2. Funded — Credit Gold jewels 69361.93
3. Funded - Credit Life Insurance policies 421.73
4. Funded - Credit NSC/KVP 41.07
4. Non Funded Bank’s own deposits 6023.90

b. For each separately disclosed portfolio, the total
balance sheet netting) that is covered by Guarantees:

exposure (after, on

1. Funded - Credit ECGC 800.00
2. Funded — Credit CGTMSE 321.27
Table DF - 6

Securitization: Disclosure for standardized approach

Qualitative Disclosures

The bank has not undertaken any securitization activity.

Quantitative Disclosures:

MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK

NIL

Table DF-7

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Market Risk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a bank in-on balance sheet and
off-balance sheet positions caused by the changes / movements in the market
variables such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and
commodity prices. Bank’s exposure to market risk arises from domestic investments
(interest related instruments and equities) in trading book (both AFS and HFT
categories), the Foreign exchange positions (including open position in precious

metals) and trading related derivatives.

The objective of the market risk
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management is to minimize the impact of losses on earnings and equity capital
arising from market risk.

Policies for management of Market Risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy
and Investment Policy for effective management of market risk in the bank. The
policy sets various risk limits for effective management of market risk and ensuring
that the operations are in line with Bank’s expectation of return to market risk through
proper Asset Liability Management. The policy also deals with the reporting
framework for effective monitoring of market risk.

The ALM policy specifically deals with liquidity risk management and interest rate
risk management framework. As envisaged in the policy, Liquidity risk is managed
through the mismatch analysis, based on residual maturity / behavioral pattern of
assets and liabilities, on a daily basis based on best available data coverage, as
prescribed by the RBI. The bank has put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic
liquidity management and contingent funding plan. Prudential (tolerance) limits are
prescribed for different residual maturity time buckets for efficient asset liability
management. Liquidity profile of the bank is evaluated through various liquidity
ratios. The bank has also drawn various contingent measures to deal with any kind
of stress on liquidity position. Bank ensures adequate liquidity managed on a real
time basis by Domestic Treasury through systematic and stable funds planning.

Interest Rate Risk is managed through use of GAP analysis of rate sensitive assets
and liabilities and monitored through prudential (tolerance) limits prescribed. The
bank has also put in place Duration Gap Analysis framework for management of
interest rate risk. The bank estimates Earnings at Risk (EaR) and Modified Duration
Gap (DGAP) periodically against adverse movement in interest rate (as prescribed in
the Policy) for assessing the impact on Net Interest Income (NII) and Economic
Value of Equity (EVE) with a view to optimize shareholder value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) /Risk Management Committee
of Board (RMCB) monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and
determines the strategy in the light of the market condition (current and expected) as
articulated in the ALM policy.

Quantitative Disclosures:

b) In line with the RBI’s guidelines, the bank has computed capital for market risk
as per Standardized Duration Approach (SDA) framework for maintaining capital.
The Capital requirements for market risk in trading Book as on 31.03.2019.
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(Rin millions)

* Interest Rate Risk 1218.48
» Equity Position Risk 52.22
* Foreign Exchange Risk 17.84
Total 1288.54
Table DF — 8

OPERATIONAL RISK

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Operational Risk:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Operational risk includes
legal risk but excludes strategic and reputation risks.

Policies on management of Operational Risk:

The Bank has framed Operational Risk Management Policy duly approved by the
Bank’s Board. Other policies adopted by the Board which deal with management of
Operational risk are (a) Information Systems Security Policy, (b) Foreign Exchange
Risk Management Policy (c) Policy document on Know Your Customers (KYC) and
Anti Money Laundering (AML) Procedures (d) IT Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP).

The Operational Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank outlines organization
structure and detail processes for management of operational risk. The basic
objective of the policy is to closely integrate operational risk management system
into the day-to-day risk management processes of the bank by clearly assigning
roles for effectively identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling / mitigating
operational risk and by timely reporting of operational risk exposures, including
material operational losses. Operational risks in the Bank are managed through
comprehensive and well-articulated internal control frameworks.

Quantitative Disclosures:
b) In line with the final guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank has adopted the

Basic Indicator Approach for computing capital for Operational Risk. As per the
guidelines, the capital charge for Operational Risk is equal to the 15 % of the
previous three years (2016-17, 2017-18& 2018-19) average positive annual Gross
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income as defined by RBI. As per such estimate, the capital requirement for
operational risk as on 31.03.2019is ¥ 2 595.78 mn.

Table DF - 9

INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book:

Interest Rate Risk is the risk where changes in the market interest rates might affect
a bank’s financial condition. Changes in interest rates affect both the current
earnings (earnings perspective) as also the net worth of the Bank (economic value
perspective). The risk from earnings perspective can be measured as impact in the
Net Interest Income (NII) or Net Interest Margin (NIM). Similarly, the risk from
economic value perspective can be measured as drop in the Economic value of
Equity (EVE).

The Bank identifies the risks associated with the changing interest rates on its-on
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures in the banking book from a short
term (Earning perspective) and long term (Economic value perspective).

The impact on income (Earning perspective) is measured by using Earnings at Risk
(EaR) with the assumption that the- re pricing dates of assets and liabilities are
evenly spread across the respective time buckets and the change in interest rate is
uniform across the maturity spectrum. The prudential limit on EaR will be 10% of the
previous year Net Interest Income (NII). For the calculation of impact on earnings,
the Traditional Gap is taken from the Rate Sensitivity Statement and based on the
remaining period from the mid point of a particular bucket the impact for change in
interest rates upto 100 bps is arrived at. The same is reported to ALCO /Risk
Management Committee of Board (RMCB) periodically along with the Rate
Sensitivity statement on monthly basis.

The Bank has adopted Traditional Gap Analysis combined with Duration Gap
Analysis for assessing the impact (as a percentage) on the Economic value of Equity
(Economic Value Perspective) by applying a notional interest rate shock of 200 bps.
As per the Guidelines on Banks” Asset Liability Management Framework-Interest
Rate Risk issued by the RBI (DBOD.No.BP.BC.59/21.04.098/2010 11 dated
04.11.2010), the Bank calculates Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) & the impact on the
Economic Value of equity (EVE). Assets and Liabilities are grouped as perinterest
Rate Sensitivity Statement & bucket wise Modified Duration is computed for these
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groups of Assets and Liabilities using account level coupon and yield as per yield
curves suggested by RBI, actuat Re price date of the individual account is
considered for bucketing, Weighted average Modified duration is calculated at
account level by using “Market value”, the yield is taken as per the internal rating
and external rating mapping at account level, Modified duration is calculated
individually for each forward and swap contracts. For investment portfolio, the
Modified Duration of individual items are computed and taken. The DGAP is
calculated by the Bank once in amonth and is reported to ALCO/ Risk Management
Committee of Board (RMCB).

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) / Risk Management Committee
of Board (RMCB) monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and
determines the strategy in the light of market conditions (current and expected).

Quantitative Disclosures:
The increase or decrease in earnings and economic value for upward and downward

rate shocks based on the assets and liabilities outstanding as on 31.03.2019are as
follows.
1. The impact of change in Interest Rate i.e Earnings at Risk for increasing 100
Basis points interest rate shock isT 513.20 mn (4.24 % of previous year Net
Interest Income).

2. Change in Market Value of Equity for 200 basis points interest rate shock isI
3426.49 mn (9.47% of Net worth)

TABLE DF - 10

General disclosures for exposures related to counterparty credit risk

Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) is the risk that a counter party to a transaction could
defaultbefore the final settlement of the transaction cash flows. Unlike a firm'’s
exposure to credit riskthrough a loan, where the exposure to credit risk is unilateral
and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, CCR creates a bilateral risk of loss
to either party.

Counterparty credit risk in case of derivative contracts arises from the forward
contracts. The subsequent credit risk exposures depend on the value of underlying
market factors (e.g., interest rates and foreign exchange rates), which can be volatile
and uncertain in nature. The Bank does not enter into derivative transactions other
than forward contracts.
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Credit exposures on forward contracts
The Bank enters into the forward contracts in the normal course of business for

proprietary trading and arbitrage purposes, as well as for our own risk management
needs, including mitigation of interest rate and foreign currency risk. Derivative
exposures are calculated according to the current exposures method.

Counterparty Credit exposure as on March 31, 2019

( Tinmillions)

Current Credit . Total Credit
. Potential Exposure
Notional Exposure .
Nature o Future Credit | under Current
Amount (positive mark to E E
market value) Xposure Xposure
Method (CEM)
Forward
contracts 50746.55 435.58 1073.21 1508.79

Composition of Capital Disclosure Templates

TABLE DF — 11: Composition of Capital

Part I: Template to be used only from March 31, 2017

(T In Millions)
Basel lll common disclosure template to be used from March 31,

2017
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves Ref No.
1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital 1425.11

plus related stock surplus (share premium)

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other 34212.49
reserves)
4 | Directly issued capital subject to phase out To be disclosed half yearly,
from CET1 (only applicable t o non-joint stock & yearly
companies)

5 | Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and
held by third parties (amount allowed in group
CET1)

6 | Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory 35637.60
adjustments

Common Equity Tier 1 capital : R egulatory adjustments

7 | Prudential valuation adjustments

8 | Goodwill (net of related tax liability)

9 | Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net
of related tax liability)
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10 |Deferred tax assets

11 |Cash-flow hedge reserve

12 |Shortfall of provisions to expected losses

13 |[Securitization gain on sale

14 |Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
on fair valued liabilities

15 |Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

16 |Investments in own shares (if not alr eady n etted off]
paid-up capital on reported balance sheet)

17 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity

18 |[Investments in the ca pital of b anking, f inancial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

19 [Significant investments in the common stock of
banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of r egulatory consol idation, netof
eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)

20 |Mortgage servicing rights(amount above 10%

21 |Deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of
related tax liability)

22 |Amount exceeding the 15% threshold

23 |of which : significant investments in the common
stock of financial entities

24 |of which : mortgage servicing rights

25 |of which : deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences

26 [National specific regulatory adjustments
(26a+26b+26c+26d)

26a |of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

26b |of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated non- financial subsidiaries

26¢c |of which : Shortfall in the equity capital of majority
owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank

26d |of which : Unamortised pension funds expenditures
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27 |Regulatory adjustments applied to Common
Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1
and Tier 2 to cover deductions

28 |Total regulatory adjustments to Common eq uity
Tier 1

29 |Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 35637.60
Additional Tier 1 capital : instruments

30 |Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1
instruments plus related stock surplus (share
premium) (31+32)

31 |of which : classified as equity under applicable
accounting standards (Perpetual Non-Cumulative
preference Shares)

32 |of which : classified as liabilities under
applicable accounting standards (Perpetual debt
Instruments)

33 |Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out
from Additional Tier 1
34 |Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments

not included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and
held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT1)

35 |of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to
phase out

36 Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory
adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

37 |Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments

38 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1

instruments

39 |Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory co nsolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued common share capital of the entity (amount above
10% threshold)

40 |Significant inv estments in the capital o f banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the
scope of r egulatory consolidation (neto f eligible
short positions)

41 |National specific regulatory adjustments (41a+41b)

41a |Of which : Investments in the Additional Tier 1
capital of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries
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41b |Of which:- Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of
majority owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank.

42 |Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to
insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions

43 |Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1

capital

44 |Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)
45 |Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + Admiss ble AT1) (29 + 44)] 35637.60
Tier 2 capital : instruments and provisions
46 |Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus
related stock surplus
47 |Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out
from Tier 2
48 |Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instrum ents not
included in rows 5 or 34) issued by s ubsidiaries and held
by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2)
49 |of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to
phase out
50 |Provisions include the following
a) Investment Reserve ¥253.36 mn
b) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 3 291.60 mn
c) Provision for Standard Asset including
restructured standard assets ¥871.99 mn
d) Provision for unhedged Foreign
Currency Exposure % 31.90 mn 1496.05
e) Provision for MSME Advances T 47.20 mn
51 |Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 1496.05
(46+ 47 + 48 + 50)
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
52 |Investments in own Tier 2 instruments
53 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments
54 |Investments in the capital of banking, financial and

insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory co nsolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued common share capital of the entity (amount above
the 10% threshold)

725




97th Annual Report 2018-2019 T\ B ==

Be a step ahead in life

55 |Significant investments-in the capital banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside

the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of
eligible short positions)

56 |National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b)

56a |of which : Investments in the Tier 2 capital of
unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

56b |of which : Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority
owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank

57 |Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

58 |Tier 2 capital (T2) 1496.05
59 |Total capital (TC =T1 + T2) (45 + 58) 37133.65
60 |Total risk w eighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c) 229663.12
60a |of which : total credit risk weighted assets 186503.94
60b |of which : total market risk weighted assets 14317.16
60c |of which : total operational risk weighted assets 28842.02

Capital ratios and buffers
61 |Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted 15.52%

62 |[Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 15.52%

63 |Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 16.17%

64 |Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1
requirement plus capital conservation and
countercyclical buffer requirements plus G-SIB buffer
requirement, expressed as a percentage of risk
weighted assets)

65 |of which : capital conservation buffer requirement

66 |of which : bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement

67 |of which : G-SIB buffer requirement

68 |Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a NA
percentage of risk weighted assets)

National minima (if different from Basel lll)

69 |National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different 5.50%
from Basel Il minimum)

70 |National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel l| 7.00% 6.00%
minimum)

71 |National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel 9.00% 10.875%
[l minimum)

T30
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Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk

weighting)
72 |Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial| ___
entities
73 |Significant investments in the common stock of financial |___
entities

74 |Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)

75 |Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
(net of related tax liability)

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

76 |Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect
of exposures subject to standardized approach
(prior to application of cap)

77 |Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under
standardized approach

78 |Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach
(prior to application of cap)

79 |Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal
ratings-based approach

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only
applicable between March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2022)

80 |[Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out
arrangements

81 |Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)
82 |Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out

arrangements
83 |Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

84 |Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out

85 |Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

Notes to the template

Row No. (X in

of the Particulars Millions)

template

10 Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses 0.00

Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated 0.00
losses) net of Deferred tax liability
Total as indicated in row 10
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19

If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully
from capital and instead considered under 10% threshold for
deduction, the resultant increase in the capital of bank

of which : Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital

of which : Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital

of which : Increase in Tier 2 capital

26b

If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-
financial subsidiaries are not deducted and hence, risk weighted
then :

(i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital

(ii) Increase in risk weighted assets

50

Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital

1496.05

Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital

Total of row 50

1496.05
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Table DF-12:
Composition of Capital — Reconciliation Requirements
Step 1:
(.inmillion)
Balance sheet
Balance sheet under
- as in financial regulatory
statements scope of
consolidation
As on As on reporting
reporting date | date
A | Capital & Liabilities
" | Paid-up Capital 1425.11 N.A
Reserves & Surplus 34757.44 N.A
Minority Interest 0
Total Capital 36182.55 N.A
ii. | Deposits 351362.48
of which : Deposits from banks 0.09
of which : Customer deposits 351362.39
of which : Other deposits (pl. specify)
iii. | Borrowings 0.00
of which : From RBI 0.00
of which : From banks 0
of which : From other institutions & 0
agencies
of which : Others (pl. specify) Outside
. 0.00
India
of which : Capital instruments 0
iv. | Other liabilities & provisions 17782.92
Total 405327.95 N.A
B | Assets
i. ﬁ?j?: and balances with Reserve Bank of 17353.42
Balance with _banks and money at call 11850.13
and short notice
ii. | Investments : 91065.87
of which : Government securities 73843.77
of which : Other approved securities 0.00
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of which : Shares 168.24
of which : Debentures & Bonds 14559.60
of which : Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures /
Associates 0.00
of which : Others (Commercial Papers,
Mutual Funds etc.) 2494.26
iii. | Loans and advances 264879.40
of which : Loans and advances to banks 0.00
of which : Loans and advances to 264879.40
customers
iv. | Fixed assets 1383.82
v. | Other assets 18795.31
of which : Goodwill and intangible assets 0
of which : Deferred tax assets 594 .48
vi. | Goodwill on consolidation
vii. | Debit balance in Profit & Loss account 0
Total Assets 405327.95 N.A
Step 2:

1)As t he Bank

is not having any subsidiary,

no disclosure

relating any legal entity for regulatory consolidation is made.

2) T he entire p aid up capit al of the Bank amountingtoI 1425.11
million is included in CET I. (refer Item | of DF-11)

3) T he break up for Reserves & Surplus ¥ 3 4757.44 mn as shown
in the Bank’s financial statements is given hereunder fort he
purpose of reconciliation f or c alculation of Reg ulatory Capital in

DF-11.
(Rin Millions )

As per Balance Sheet Amount As shown in DF-11 Capital

a) Statutory Reserves 12397.79 |ncluded in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)

b) Capital Reserves 287.84 |Included in Regulatory CET I capital DF-11
(item-3)

c)Revenue and Other 19337.47 [ncluded in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11

Reserves (item-3)

d) Investment reserve 253.36 |Included in Regulatory Tier Il capital DF-
11(item-50)

e) Special Reserve u/s 1909.00 [Included in Regulatory CET | Capital (DF11-

36(1) (Viii) of IT Act 1961 item 3)

f) Balance in P&L 571.98 |Included in CET | (item 3- DF11)

34757.44
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4) a) Other Liabilities:- a)Provision for Standard assets including
restructured standard assets ¥ 871.99 mn(ltem-50 - DF- 11)

b) Provision for unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure T 31.90 mn(item-50 -DF-11)

c) Provision for MSME Advances ¥ 47.20 mn (Item — 50 — DF — 11)

However they are shown under Tier Il capit al for computation of Regulatory Capital
(DF-11) as noted in brackets as per extant RBI guidelines.

Step 3

Extract of Basel Ill common disclosure template (with added column) - Table DF-11
(Part I / Part Il whichever, applicable)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves

Source based on
Component |reference numbers  /
of regulatory |letters of the balance

capital sheet under the

reported by |regulatory scope  of

bank consolidation from step
2

1 |Directly issued qualifying common share (and
equivalent for non-joint stock companies) 142511
capital plus related stock surplus '

N

Retained earnings
3 |Accumulated other comprehensive 34212.49
income (and other reserves)

4 |Directly issued capital subject to phase out
from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock

5 [Common share capital issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties

6 |Common Equity Tier 1 capital before 35637.60
regulatory adjustments

7 |Prudential valuation adjustments 0.00

8 |Goodwill (net of related tax liability)
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Table DF-13

Main Features of Requlatory Capital

S.No Description Equity Shares
1 | lssuer Tamilnad Mf{gantile Bank
2 e erifer (e, CUSIR SN or B
3 |Governing law(s) of the instrument Indian Laws

Regulatory treatment

4 Transitional Basel lll rules Common equity Tier 1
5 |Post-transitional Basel Il rules Common equity Tier 1
6 |Eligible at solo / group / group & solo Solo
7 |Instrument type Common Shares
o Amount cconnized i equaony capial R i
9 | Par value of instrument ¥ 10 per share

10 | Accounting classification Shal%%huci)’lg ers

11 | Original date of issuance Various

12 |Perpetual or dated Perpetual

13 | Original maturity date No Maturity

14 |Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No

15 |Optional call date, contingent call dates and NA

redemption amount
16 |Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA
Coupons / dividends

17 |Fixed or floating dividend / coupon NA

18 |Coupon rate and any related index NA

19 |Existence of a dividend stopper No

20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or Fully Discretionary

21 | Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem No
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22 |Noncumulative or cumulative Non-Cumulative
23 | Convertible or non-convertible NA
24 |If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA
25 |If convertible, fully or partially NA
26 |If convertible, conversion rate NA
27 |If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA
28 |If convertible, specify instrument type convertible NA
29 | If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it NA
converts into
30 |Write-down feature No
31 |If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA
32 |If write-down, full or partial NA
33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary NA
34 |If temporary write-down, description of write-up NA
mechanism

Position in subordination hierarchy in

35 liquidation (specify instrument type SU9RIRTENSE 19 Ell G

immediately senior to instrument) claims
36 |Non-compliant transitioned features No
NA

37 |If yes, specify non-compliant features
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Full Terms and Conditions of Requlator Capital Instruments

The details of the Tier |l capital [Bonds]raised by the Bank

Remuneration Committee.

Table DF-14 : Full Terms and Conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments
Instruments Full Terms and Conditions
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Table DF-15: Disclosure Requirements for Remuneration
*Qualitative (a) |Information relating to thel The Nomination and
disclosures composition and mandate of th ¢ Rémuneration Committee has

been formed with 4 Directors
and the MD & CEO. The
mandate of the committee is to
fix remuneration in line with the
risk taken by employees.

(b)

Information relating to the
design and structure of
remuneration processes and
the key  features and
objectives of remuneration
policy.

Bank’s Compensation Policy,
containing the guidelines on
compensation of Whole time

directors/ Chief executive
officers/ risk takers, control
functionaries etc., was

approved by Board of Directors
in their  meeting dated
28.02.2019. The key principle of
the policy would be that the
compensation shall be aligned
with the type and nature of risk
taken by employees.

(c)

Description of the ways in which
current and future risks are
taken into account in the
remuneration  processes. It
should incl ude the nat ure an d
type of the key m easures used
to take account of these risks.

Regional Heads, Branch
Heads, IT department officials
and Dealers in Treasury & IBD
are paid special pay based on
risk taken by them.
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(d)

Description of the ways in which

A performance based incentive

the bank seeks to link| scheme was approved by our
performance during a| Board of Directors in their
performance measurement| meeting held on 06.10.2017.
period with levels of
remuneration.

(e) |Adiscussion of the bank's policy [There is no deferred
on deferral and vesting ofremuneration payment to
variable remuneration and alemployees.

discussion of the bank 's po licy
and criteria for adjusting
deferred remuneration before
vesting and after vesting.

(f)

Description of the different
forms of variable rem uneration
(i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and
other forms) that the bank
utilizes and the rationale for
using these different forms.

The remuneration is in the form
of cash only. There is no
remuneration in the form of
Shares, ESOP and other forms.

Quantitative
disclosures
(The quantitative
disclosures
should only
cover Whole
Time Directors /
Chief Executive
Officer / Other
Risk Takers)

(9)

*

Number of m eetings held by

Number of meetings held by the

the Remuneration| Nomination and Remuneration
Committee  during  the | committee is two
financial  year and| (12.10.2018,and  04.02.2019)
remuneration paid to its| gng remuneration paid to its
members. members is NIL.
(h) | * [Number  of  employees| Nil
having received a variable
remuneration award during
the financial year.
* INumber and total amount of | Nil
sign-on  awards made
during the financial year.
* |Details of guaranteed bonus, | Nil
if any, paid as joining / sign
on bonus.
* Details of severance pay, in | Nil
addition to a ccrued be nefits,
if any.
(i) | * |Total amo unt of outsta nding | Nil

deferred rem uneration, sp lit
into cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other
forms.
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* |Total amount of deferred | Nil
remuneration paid out in
the financial year.

(j) | * |Breakdown of amount of| Nil
remuneration awards for the
financial year to show fixed
and variable, deferred and
non-deferred.

(k) | * |Total amount of outstanding | Nil
deferred rem uneration and

retained remuneration
exposed to ex post exp licit
and / or implicit
adjustments.

* |Total amo unt of re ductions | Nil
during the financial y ear due
to ex- post explicit
adjustments.

* |Total amo unt of re ductions | Nil
during the financial y ear due
to ex- post implicit
adjustments.

Table DF — 16

Equities-Disclosure for Banking Book Positions

The bank has no exposures in equities under Banking Book.
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Table DF — 17- Leverage Ratio Disclosure

The Leverage ratio act as a credible supplementary measure to the bank based
capital requirement. The Bank is required to maintain a minimum leverage ratio of
4.5%. The Bank’s leverage ratio, calculated in accordance with the RBI guidelines is
as follows;

COMPARISON OF ACCOUNTING ASSETS AND LEVERAGE RATIO EXPOSURE

(Tinmillions )

S.No.

Particulars

Amount as
of Jun’18

Amount as
of Sep’18

Amount as
of Dec’18

Amount as
of Mar’19

Total consolidated assets
as per published financial
statements include SFTs

366416.58

374475.28

379548.15

405327.96

Adjustment for
investments in banking,
financial, insurance or
commercial entities that
are  consolidated for

accounting purposes but
outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustment for fiduciary
assets recognized on the
balance sheet pursuant
to the operative
accounting  framework
but excluded from the
leverage ratio exposure
measure

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

for
financial

Adjustments
derivative
instruments

1190.41

1117.04

1133.36

1073.21

Adjustment for securities
financing transactions
(i.e. repos and similar
secured lending)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustment  for  off-
balance sheet items (i.e.
conversion to  credit
equivalent amounts of
off- balance sheet
exposures)

22588.76

19055.22

19296.87

19551.76

Other adjustments

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Leverage ratio

exposure

390195.75

394647.54

399978.38

425952.93

d
2
d
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(Xin millions)

S.No

Leverage Ratio
Framework

Amount
as of
Jun’18

Amount
as of
Sep’18

Amount
as of
Dec’18

Amount
as of
Mar’19

On-balance sheet exposures

On-balance sheet items
(excluding derivatives and
SFTs, but including
collateral)

366416.58

374475.28

379548.15

405327.96

(Asset amounts deducted
in determining Basel I
Tier 1 capital)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total on-balance sheet
exposures (excluding
derivatives and SFTs)
(sum of lines 1 and 2)

366416.58

374475.28

379548.15

405327.96

Derivative exposures

Replacement cost
associated with all
derivatives  transactions
(i.,e. net of eligible cash

variation margin)

Add-on amounts for PFE
associated with all
derivatives transactions

1190.41

1117.04

1133.36

1073.21

Gross-up for derivatives
collateral provided where
deducted from the
balance sheet assets
pursuant to the operative
accounting framework

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(Deductions of receivables
assets for cash variation
margin provided in
derivatives transactions)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(Exempted CCP leg of
client-cleared trade
exposures)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjusted effective notional
amount of written credit
derivatives

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
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(Adjusted effective
notional offsets and add
on deductions for written
credit derivatives)

11

Total derivative
exposures (sum of lines
4 to 10)

1190.41

1117.04

1133.36

1073.21

Securities financing

transaction exposures

12

Gross SFT assets (with no
recognition of netting),
after adjusting for sale
accounting transactions

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

13

(Netted amounts of cash
payables and cash
receivables of gross SFT
assets)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

14

CCR exposure for SFT
assets

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15

Agent transaction

exposures

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

16

Total securities
financing transaction
exposures (sum of lines
12 to 15)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Other off-balance sheet expo

sures

17

Off-balance sheet
exposure at gross notional
amount

58361.84

54177.61

53931.61

50746.55

18

for
credit

(Adjustments
conversion to
equivalent amounts)

(35773.08)

(35122.39)

(34634.74)

(31194.79)

19

Off-balance sheet items
(sum of lines 17 and 18)

22588.76

19055.22

19296.87

19551.76

Capital and total exposures

20

Tier 1 capital

33509.23

33509.23

33509.23

35637.60

21

Total exposures (sum of
lines 3, 11, 16 and 19)

390195.75

394647.54

399978.38

425952.93

Leverage ratio

22

Basel lll leverage ratio

8.59%

8.49%

8.38%

8.37%

*hkkkk
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INTERNATIONAL BANKING DIVISION
NOSTRO CORRESPONDENT BANKS as on 31.03.2019
Currency

Bank Name and Address

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., 11 Penn
Plaza, 4th Floor, New York NY 10001,
ABA 026005092

Standard Chartered Bank, One
Madison Avenue, New York, NY
10010-3603 U.S.A.

Standard Chartered Bank, 1
Basinghall Avenue, London EC2V
5DD, U.K., IBAN GB12 SCBL 6091
0412 7040 21, Sort Code: 609104

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Yamato
International Nihonbashi Bldg,, 8th
Floor, 2-1-3, Nihonbashi Horidomecho
Chuo-Ku, Tokyo 103-0012, Japan

Zuercher Kantonal Bank,
Bahnhofstrasse 9, Zurich 8010,
Switzerland

Standard Chartered Bank, London,
(IBAN : GB0O5SCBL60910412722577),
Intermediary Bank: Royal Bank of
Canada (BIC : ROYCCAT2)

Standard Chartered Bank, 8 Marina
Boulevard, # 27-01 Marina Bay
Financial Centre, Singapore 018981.

Commercial Bank of Dubai, Al Ittihad
Street, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Commerzbank AG, Juergen-Ponto-
Platz 1, 60301 Frankfurt am Main,
Germany

Bank of India, Succursale de Paris, 3,
Rue Scribe, 75009 Paris, France

Commerzbank AG, Juergen-Ponto-
Platz 1, 60301 Frankfurt am Main,
Germany

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., London
Branch, One Plantation Place, 30
Fenchurch Street, London EC3M 3BD,
United Kingdom. IBAN GB97 PNBP
1656 7106 5031 62.

Standard Chartered Bank
Colombo, Sri Lanka

uSD

uUSD

GBP

YEN

CHF

CAD

SGD

AED

AUD

EURO

EURO

EURO

uSD

Account No.

2000193008674

3582 089935 001

0001270402101

99848069

CH5000700070001302132

01272257758

0106343548

AE22023000000100146106

8

400875030900AUD

4310 EUR 002006

400875030900EUR

06503162

15384878701USD
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Swift Code

PNBPUS3NNYC
SCBLUS33

SCBLGB2L
PNBPJPJX

ZKBKCHZZ80A

SCBLGB2L

SCBLSG22

CBDUAEAD
COBADEFF
BKIDFRPP
COBADEFF

PNBPGB2L

SCBLLKLX
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019
B [Bemed ML s60186& 31.03.2019

(Rinthousands)

Schedule
DL euemETT As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES :
CLPEOSEUT(PLD EILIMMYLIL|SEBLD
Capital 1 1425115 1425115
U@ eLPeOSEDTLD
Reserves & Surplus 2 34757439 32622776
Ra16EGS6IT OHMILD eTebSAUNBLILIEDEU
Deposits 3 351362481 324283322
emauliL| [BhaeiT
Borrowings 4 Nil 5130000
QDM SLEISH6T
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 17782921 15738309
851 OUNMILILSET HMILD @&16EBS6T

TOTAL 405327956 379199522
ASSETS :
&S G| &H&H6T
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 17353424 17017777
& LD ey eurmiduied 2 _eitem LD
Balanges W.Ith Bgnks ar\d.Money at Call and Short Notice 7 11850130 3017248
BzraumiBuied 2 _sitem LD
Investments 8 91065865 103636131
PSEOBE6IT
Advances 9 264879403 237687185
OENBSS SHLETTEH6T
Fixed Assets 10 1383824 1402973
1BEmEOWITEDT E\FTE SIS SH6T
Other Assets 11 18795310 16438208
BB 615155661

TOTAL 405327956 379199522
Contingent Liabilities 12 72040952 130574814
SFHSTUILIMIST JHeniFilss OMMILIL|g6T
Bills for Collection | L 8222140 8275742
Q1FAHS GILIDMISHESHTEH0TL LN60S6T
Significant Accounting Policies 17
WSS S6TTHS CBMLPEDMSET
Notes form part of Accounts 18
HEWEGSSET FLDLIHSLDTEN flerTése|enr
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
GGed GMULILG6TOT DL L 6UmETTS6IT, 6urhid SBLILBEm6 S6rTsECHMB BeWeuihs LGSWINSLD.

Sd/- S.Annamalai Sd/- K.V.Rama Moorthy
Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Sd/- P.C.G.Asok Kumar Sd/-  S.R.Ashok Sd/- S.Ezhil Jothi

Sd/- N.Gopal Sd/- B.S.Keshava Murthy Sd/- K.Nagarajan

Sd/- D.N.Nirranjan Kani Sd-  A.Sivagami Sd/- B.Vijayadurai
Directors Directors Directors

Thoothukudi

30.05.2019
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SILLENEDETT YEAR ENDED
Schedule 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
INCOME
6)(HLDITETTLD
Interest earned @uLtpuflsir epeold ELIHDE) 13 32244566 32504925
Other Income (@81 augLomeb) 14 4143411 5061222
TOTAL 36387977 37566147
I. EXPENDITURE
61F606Y&H6IT
Interest Expended esn@ssiurL e 15 19943044 20407554
Operating Expenses meLwpson assosyss 16 7602262 7098578
Provisions & Contingencies 6256866 7840853
BisEGa HHI> ST AFeaEST TOTAL 33802172 35346985
Ml PROFIT / LOSS @eomuuib/ meigL1b
Net Profit for the year &b aumLESst Bar GreoLid 2585805 2219162
Add : Profit brought forward 360389 238268
Q\F63ID UBLSBI BTeoLISHED BSOS Tens
TOTAL 2946194 2457430
Iv. APPROPRIATIONS 981680861 f\eigeme
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 780000 670000
FLLLILTeIDNe @8HEL1ME& LDMHOLILILLE]
Transfer to Other Reserves 610000 660000
ML REISHEL 1eMNG LOMHOLILILL &)
Transfer to Capital Reserve 30700 65025
ELPEVSEU RBIHSLIQDES LOMHDLILIL LS
Transfer to Investment Reserve 58300 360
PSOB REIHSL QDS LOTHMLILILL G|
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 291600 Nil
Transfer to Special Reserve 36(1)(viii) 260000 290000
Al @EISSL DS THDLILILLE
Dividend
Interim Dividend & Dividend tax paid 343610 411656
BWLESTE0 6ol LmSE eurfl © 1L
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 571984 360389
DIBES SHETMDSTENT O\STETTB E\F6LEOLILBLD L1SHTENS
Face value of the equity share is T10/-
TOTAL 2946194 2457430
Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs) 18.14 15.57
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes form part of Accounts 18
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

Sd/-  A.Shidambaranathan

Sd/- i
Vice President S .Senthil Anandan

Sd/- P.Suriaraj
Sd/- C.Sukumaran
Chief Financial Officer Sd/- D.Inbamani
Sd/- P.C.Panda Sd/-  R.Arumugapandi

Company Secretary General Managers

Thoothukudi
30.05.2019

Vide our report of even date attached

For G.Balu Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 000376S/S200073

Sd/- R.Ravisha

nkar

Partner (M.No.26819)
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rin Thousands)
SCHEDULE | - CAPITAL As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
AL 66D 1 CLPELGH6VTLD
Authorised Equity Capital Siéammid e1bn eLpeogeurid
50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each 5000000 5000000
10/~ 68igLb 50,00,00,000 LIMIGS6IT
Issued, Subscribed, Called-up and Paid-up Capital 1425115 1425115
14,25,11,454 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
QUPMISLILLLGILD QLIDHMIS O\STETETLILLLGID eh10/~
eSs1b14,25,11,454 TOTAL 1425115 1425115
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
Sl LeuenenT 2 @8I15EBS6T DHMILD eTebullqpLILIEm6Y
l. Statutory Reserves
FLLULLTOIDTET R8|6SEGS6T
Opening Balance 11617786 10947786
SpIIbL Ly
Additions during the year 780000 670000
[BLUIL| Sbetoried CEIgEEI
TOTAL 12397786 11617786
1l Capital Reserve
CLPEOSET RBIHEBSET
Opening Balance 257135 192110
SpIIbL Ly
Additions during the year 30700 65025
TBLLIL| Sp6triged CaiSsSg)
Deductions during the year Nil Nil
TBLLIL| Ob6tged HLNGSS
TOTAL 287835 257135
1l Revenue and Other Reserves
QBT LDHMILD BT RI5HEBSH6T
Opening Balance 18738466 18078106
SbIibL GBI
Additions during the year 959900 660360
TBLLIL| Syetriged Caiissg)
Less: Transfer to Provisions 107532 Nil
TOTAL 19590834 18738466
I\ Special Reserve U/s.36(1)(viii) of .T.Act
Aol 95586 - euworereur L Lilfley 36(1)(viii)
Opening Balance 1649000 1359000
SbIibL SBLLY
Additions during the year 260000 290000
BLLIL| Ohetotiged GEFISSS!
Deductions during the year Nil Nil
BLLIL| Sheiogsd HL0S58) TOTAL 1909000 1649000
\% Balance in Profit and Loss Account 571984 360389
B60ITLI [BEIPL S SH6ETTSHS6ITLIQ LGSHUITesT oD
TOTAL : (I, 1, 1ll, IV & V) 34757439 32622776
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rin Thousands)
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
Sl Leuewent 3 eneulIL|BSs6iT
Al Demand Deposits
Gl emeuliLBdser
I) From Banks 89 361
artidseflLLsBEs)
ii) From Others 28101564 27587739
pmeursefi®HE]
Il. Savings Bank Deposits 58475454 54518010

GFLILIL| SH6vTSHSSHET
. Term Deposits

&MSS &iTev mauLILBS
I) From Banks 4250000 Nil
auidserflLLslBHE)
ii) From Others 260535374 242177212
LoHmeUTS6EIL L\ ([HE
o Rl TOTAL 351362481 324283322
B. I Deposits of Branches in India 351362481 324283322
SpSwneiled BHeELD Senearserled 2_siTem eneuliLBdseiT
I. Deposits of Branches outside India Nil Nil

el G Senenserfled 2_siter enauliLBdser

SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
OILLEUWETIT 4 EILIDM &L 6TTH6IT

l. Borrowings in India
BpSwinefled eunrhiHiLl HLetTEH6IT

i. Reserve Bank of India Nil 4480000
rilgmey eurBulLLSBBSI
ii. Other Banks Nil Nil
851 emBuiLLSHHS)
iii. Other Institutions and Agencies Nil Nil
850 63 BrieuenhiseflBHS!
Il. Borrowings outside India Nil 650000
euafiBn@aserled QDM SHLetTa6IT
TOTAL Nil 5130000
Secured borrowings included in | and Il above Nil 4480000

GLGeo GMULALL HMID | G6b Il LITGISTSSLILILL SLE3TH6T
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rin Thousands)

SCHEDULE 5-OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

As on 31.03.2019

As on 31.03.2018

Il Leusnent 5 @I OLMMILILSET DDMID RISHEGSET
l. Bills Payable

QETESSLILIL Geusvorioul L1606
1. Inter Office Adjustments (Net)

BemesEHSHBMLGUI 2_siTarT [Beqemeus6iT
I1l. Interest Accrued

Q&HTBSHSLILIL GEueTITIQUI UL IQ
[\VA Deferred Tax liability

Seerfl emeussLILLL eufléasmes QmmILILSeT
V. Others ( Including Provisions )

pmenel (85I5EBS6N

TOTAL

1651200 1633540
Nil Nil
2458335 2210343
666836 570444
13006550 11323982
17782921 15738309

SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

As on 31.03.2019

As on 31.03.2018

Sl LeumeTT 6 E\IM&S GHLILLD Mamey eurmiBulled 2 eTem hLILLD
Cash in hand
eIn&s GamLiy
Balance with Reserve Bank of India in Current Account
fleitey eurudufed BLLIL| semrs@sefled 2_eter GbLiL

TOTAL

2510289 2203049
14843135 14814728
17353424 17017777

SCHEDULE 7-BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY
AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

As on 31.03.2019

As on 31.03.2018

Sl Leuenewr 7 QFT eurkiuied 2_sitar SBLILILD SMISWI STe0d;He0
SUMMRISSHFRIQUI 61SHTEMSHUILD

. In India
SpSwmefled
I) Balances with Banks
851 auhiBuiled 2_eitem @HLIL
a) In current accounts
BLLIL| &600T8&S6rll60
b) In other Deposits
DM &6v0TESS61{60
ii) Money at call and short notice
GNISI &HTVSHE QUGS C\STENs
a)With Banks
aubifserfleo
b)With other institutions
851 BuieuethiseIL LS BB
TOTAL
1. Outside India
ceuefliBn@serfieo
a) In current accounts
BLLIL| S600T8:&S6rl60
b) In other Deposits
DO SHETTHGS6fl60 TOTAL

GRAND TOTAL

157416 389405
25 25
5750000 2500000
Nil Nil
5907441 2889430
3182689 127818
2760000 Nil
5942689 127818
11850130 3017248
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Tin Thousands)

SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS

As on 31.03.2019

As on 31.03.2018

SIL L EUEmeDTT 8 (P&HEOBEHET

)] Investments in India
SnSwineded peSGEeT

i Government securities
OIy& LUSSTHRIGET

ii. Other approved securities
LHD SiRSssslIULL LSSIRISET

iii. Shares
LIMRIG &6
iv. Debentures & Bonds
GLEOT LISSITRISET
V. Others - Mutual Fund, Commercial Paper

LDDMEME - LIF6LITBS, 615586 LSHSIHRIESET

TOTAL
Gross Investments
OILDNES (LPBHEOBEHE
Less: Depreciation
BLl6s :GHILILTOTSSDSTE Q&5ISEB
TOTAL

Il. Investments outside India
eeueliBnBaeed LpeedBaSeT

73843747 87336246
Nil Nil
168258 331394
14559595 14787467
2494265 1181024
91065865 103636131
91924512 104535346
858647 899215
91065865 103636131
Nil Nil

SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES

As on 31.03.2019

As on 31.03.2018

SILL6UED6TTT O OEBTBSHS HLEOTSHET
A.i) Bills purchased and discounted
1P6MDE&E)6T0TL. E\FILISSILD 6UMTRISUIGILDMEDT Liled& 6T
ii) Cash credits, overdrafts and loans
repayable on demand
apnésl Lbm) ,SiGsLl Lbm)| 616mns LDHMILD
GaL@Lb OUMLPgI Q&N (B6s Be)6TITIQUI HL6ITEH6T

iii) Term Loans
&HM608 C\BBEYETEIT HL6OTSHEIT

TOTAL

B. i) Secured by tangible assets
QSN C1&M1HEMS Lem6UoTWILDTE OLIDMESI
ii) Covered by Bank / Government Guarantee
6UIRI LDOHMILD SIF&FMTEIS 2_SSTEUTSSHSIL 60T FnlQWig)
iii) Unsecured
LNemevoTLILBl6DEOTSH S
TOTAL

C. Advances in India
SrpBuineied &L eoTe6T
i) Priority Sector
wettenflemipLl Llrfley
ii) Public Sector
eungissienmL Lfley
iii) Banks
6UMRIBHET
iv) Others
LDMHMEm6Y

TOTAL

5162910 5208802
184083336 155568280
75633157 76910103
264879403 237687185
260394220 230350605
693769 5718097
3791414 1618483
264879403 237687185
167603193 144630485
3180975 7679628
Nil Nil
94095235 85377072
264879403 237687185
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rin Thousands)
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
SiLLeNen6wT 10 [BEneOUITET E1&TESISS6T
| Premises
SLIQLMRIG6IT
At cost as on March 31, preceding year 697724 680538
WPHEDSI SpeT1( LDMITE 3160 eunhiL eflemeoLiLilg
Additions during the year 26619 17186
TBLLIL| SH6T0TIQE0 QUMTRISIS)
ToTAL * 724343 697724
Deductions during the year
IBLLIL| Sp650r1060 SL1S88
724343 697724
Depreciation to date 220525 212918
mreng)| euenguied GsUILDMETLD
TOTAL 503818 484806

1l Other Fixed Assets ( including furniture
and fixtures)
LAmBemeoWLINEDT C\&FTEG18:86T
(Sigy161608 EILIMBLEEHLD B HSEM6)

At cost as on March 31, preceding year 3796710 3558073
WPHEDSI Sp6v0T(B LDMTE 3160 eunhiL efleweoLiLilg
Additions during the year 314174 242004
TBLLIL| Dp6T0TIQ60 EUMTRIBUIS)

TOTAL 4110884 3800077
Deductions during the year 4321 3367
IBLLIL| SberneedsflS5s)

4106563 3796710

Depreciation to date 3226557 2878543

mreng) euengufed GsUILDMETLD

TOTAL 880006 918167

* - Includes building under construction at cost
(Rin thousands)1894 (Previous year 13267)

GRAND TOTAL (I &11) 1383824 1402973
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
SILLEUDENT 11 - BBT C\ENSG|5H 6T

| Inter-Office adjustments (Net) Nil Nil
BeesEhHBemL G 2_6Ter [Beueneugeit

Il Interest accrued 2377596 2649331
6UTGEUETITIQU 6UL LY

11l Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at source 8052476 6839821
peiTEnTETS \FaSSW / 1NeSsId QFuniLL eurfl

\% Stationery and stamps 13932 16490
LSS SMhIS6IT, LIMTAIS6I DHMILD HHEHF6D SEnes6iT

Vv Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction Nil Nil
of claims
L6 UEDSHHEHSSTS QLD Bl OSTLI6L FMIS O\FTESSEH6 |

\ Deferred Tax Asset 594477 521256
Seerfl eneusSLILLL eurfl&snes O\FTSg1886T

Vil Other Assets 7756829 6411310

BBT O\FNSGISS6IT

TOTAL 18795310 16438208
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rin Thousands)

SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As on 31.03.2019

As on 31.03.2018

SILLEUHENT 12 STESTUMISET ISMEs QUMMILILS6T

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged

as debts . . )
ahBsS adanes meel FE Camiesamaset

Liability on account of outstanding
forward exchange contracts

aHTLMILIL BB O\Fevairenll RULIESHIsa 6T QST
Geuetoriol EWIMMILIL|G6T

Guarantee given on behalf of constituents
in India )
QUMIQSEMSILITENTITEEh&STe (SrhSuimefen)

2_sraInsid Oa&TBSSemel

Acceptances, endorsements and other
obligations

DIBSSEUTEHEHEHSHTE SHSTEUTE [HLEUIRENS:&61T60
aDLIL&SRIQWI QWITMILIL|SET

Estimated amount of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital account not
provided for and Liab.under DEAF
wplesaLL G QU1 @UILTBSIH SEHTETT CLPEOHET
6\1FEVEYHEBEHEHTE REIHHILILL E\FHTNS

TOTAL

112068 123351
50746554 97605693
9920879 20958528
10565131 11267619
696320 619623
72040952 130574814

SCHEDULES TO PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended (X in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
SILLEUEHETT 13 GULIQ EUEDSBUTED EUBLDITEUTLD
| Interest / discount on advances / bills 24462990 23279979
SHLENHEHEHES 6ULIQ DHMILD LNEDSHEDAT 1g6EHE|6TTL. 615115 6uemsuTed
Il Income on investments 7504361 8830042
WPpeeSBaaflstr Gufled eumLDTELD
1l Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of 109665 228866
India and other inter-bank funds
gl euriud oHMID BT euridselsd 2_eter GBLILSEBHSL auLlp
I\ Others 167550 166038
LDHmEmEY
TOTAL 32244566 32504925
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
SILLEUETETT 14 BT CUTHLOM6DILD
| Commission, exchange and brokerage 1487074 1389055
&Uilasit LHMID SIS euensITed
1l Profit on sale of investments 309726 615379
w&e@amen eihm euenasulsd GeomLib
Loss on sale of investments (40236) (67842)
P&BsmeT 6AHM eueHEUTEL HeipL LD
] Profit on revaluation of investments, - -
W36 EEmETYIDSIIEG ElisemauTsd GeorLib
1\ Profit on sale of land, building 1238 1309
and other assets . .
1B6VLD, &L 1QL LD DM E\ENSGIESEMeT 6D CuenEUTed GeomLid
Loss on sale of land, building (890) (1196)
and other assets
[B6oLd, BLLIQLLD DD OEnSgiGaemen eiDm eusnauied Heipl b
\Y Profit on exchange transactions 145114 153264
BBl E\Feveumenml DMDHDLD eLpedLd OLIHM GeomLid
\i Miscellaneous income 2241385 2971253
19m euemasafled eupLOMEND
TOTAL 4143411 5061222
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Schedules to Profit & Loss Account For the year ended ( in Thousands)
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Sl Leuensur 15 eUL'le O\F6vsflevThissiT
I Interest on deposits 19472662 20295815
ED6ULIL| BESHEBHSSHTE CUL'lQ
Il Interest on Reserve Bank of India / 180766 26686
Inter-Bank borrowings
eiey eurku LoHmId B eubidsefLLbE!
QIR BLETSEBESIL 6ULIp
1] Others 289616 85053
LDMHMEWEY
TOTAL 19943044 20407554
SCHEDULE16 - OPERATING EXPENSES 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
SlLLeuenemr 16 SWss 65606 &6
I Payment to and provisions for employees 3753057 3621446
QeSS EHEEBTEN F6HTLDMEILD DHMILD R&ISSD O\FWIILILLEDEY
I Rent, taxes and lightings 826874 777687
aumLews,eufl  (DHMILD L6TTENT ClF6v6 6T
I Printing and stationery 94376 90996
ONga:80.60] LDHMILD ETRSIOLITTBET CUEDSHEHET
v Advertisement and publicity 65496 46366
6flembLITLD
\% Depreciation on Bank's Property 355622 396715
araiduiien OFnsgIsseeo Gsuibmeid
VI Directors Fees Allowances & Exp. 15830 18759
Bus@bissen Sev DHMOID Siev6eusHTe HMID E\FEveys6T
VI Aud.itors‘ fees and expenses (including branch 21661 4029
auditors)
gewllgenawnemiaefes 156l HMID 6\Feo6y&6iT
Bevenaarleit gemllgmaienisepéae He0Gabeme)
VI Law charges 7184 3419
FLL 6156066
IX Postages, telegrams, telephones, etc. 162269 186328
BLIT6L, 558,615 MemedBLIS G1F6v6]S6iT
X Repairs and maintenance 111132 145803
LID&|LIMTTE&60 LDMHMILD LMTMDALIL| e\F60eys6T
Xl Insurance 314242 316355
SIS G O\BTens
Xl Other expenditure 1874519 1490675
LDDHMEFEV6Y&6IT
TOTAL 7602262 7098578
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
57 VE ROAD THOOTHUKUDI-628002

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% March 2019.

SCHEDULE — 17: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

GENERAL:
A. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on an ongoing concern concept,
historical cost convention unless otherwise stated and conform to the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, (GAAP) which encompasses applicable
statutory provisions, regulatory norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) from time to time, Accounting Standards (AS) specified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable and current practices prevailing in the
Banking Industry in India and conform to statutory provisions and practices
prevailing within the banking industry.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements prescribed under the Third schedule (Form A and Form B) of the
Banking Regulations Act 1949. The items of income and expenditure are taken
on accrual basis except where specifically stated and it conforms to the
guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for banks.

B. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the financial statement and the
reported income and expenses during the reporting period. Management
believes that the estimates and assumptions used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

C. Significant changes in Accounting policies

Proposed dividend:

In terms of Revised Accounting Standard [AS4] Contingencies and events
occurring after Balance sheet date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate
affairs through amendments to companies (Accounting Standards) amendment
rules 2016, dated 30 March 2016, the company has not accounted for proposed
dividend as a liability as at 31" March 2019. The proposed dividend was
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however accounted for as a liability upto 31 M arch 2016 in line with the
existing accounting standard applicable at that time.

2. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:

i. Foreign currency balances both, under assets and liabilities, outstanding
forward exchange contracts and swaps are evaluated at the year-end rates
published by FEDAI. The resultant profit / loss is shown as income / loss.

ii. Deposit accounts denominated in foreign currency such as FCNR (B),
EEFC, RFC and placement of such deposits in foreign currency are recorded at
year-end Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) rates.
Foreign currency loan accounts are also disclosed at the year-end FEDAI rates.

iii. Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

iv. Contingent liabilities on account of acceptances, endorsements and other
obligations including guarantees and Letters of Credit denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at year-end FEDAI rates.

3. INVESTMENTS:

A) Classification of investments has been made as per the guidelines of
Reserve Bank of India.

i) The entire investment portfolio of the Bank is classified under three categories
viz. "Held to Maturity", "Available for sale" and "Held for Trading".
Securities that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of
purchase are classified under the HFT Category. Investments that the company
intends to hold till maturity are classified under the HTM category or as per RBI
guidelines. Securities which are not classified in the above categories are
classified under the AFS category.
® Transfer between the categories — Reclassification of investments from
one category to other, if done, is in accordance with RBI guidelines.
Transfer of script from AFS/HFT Category to HTM category is made at
book value or market value, whichever is lower.
® In case of transfer of securities from HTM to AFS/HFT category, the
investments held under HTM at a discount are transferred to AFS/HFT
category at the acquisition price and investments placed in the HTM
category at a premium are transferred to AFS/HFT at amortized cost.
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® Transfer of investments from AFS to HFT or vice versa is done at the
book value. Depreciation carried if any on such investments is also
transferred from one category to another.

The investments are classified for the purpose of Balance Sheet under five
groups viz. (i) Government securities, (i) Other approved securities, (iii)
Shares, (iv) Debentures and Bonds and (v) Others.

Brokerage/commission received on subscriptions is reduced from the cost.
Brokerage, commission, securities transaction tax etc. paid in connection with
acquisition of investments are expensed upfront and excluded from cost.
Broken period interest paid / received on debt instruments is treated as interest
expense / income and is excluded from cost / sale consideration.

B) Valuation of investments is done as follows:

i) Investments held under “Held to Maturity” are valued at cost price.
Wherever the cost price is more than the face value, the premium paid is
amortized over the remaining period of maturity. Profit on sale of securities
under “Held to Maturity” category is initially taken to Profit & Loss account
and then appropriated to Capital Reserve Account. The amount so
appropriated would be net of taxes and the amount required to be
transferred to statutory reserves. If there is a loss it is charged to Profit &
Loss account.

i)  Investments classified under “Available for Sale” category are marked to
market on quarterly basis. Shares held under “Available for sale” are
marked to market on weekly basis. Scrip wise appreciation / Depreciation
is segregated group-wise. The Net Depreciation category wise is charged
to Profit & Loss account. The Net Appreciation in any category is ignored.

iii) Investments classified under “Held for Trading” category except shares are
marked to market scrip-wise on daily basis. Shares held under “Held for
Trading” are marked to market on weekly basis. The net depreciation
group wise is charged to Profit and Loss account and the net appreciation
is ignored.

iv) Investments received in lieu of restructured advances/under SDR scheme
are valued in accordance with RBI guidelines.

v) Investments are valued at year-end as per RBI guidelines as follows:

a) Central Government Securities are valued as per price list of RBI,
prices declared by Primary Dealers Association of India (PDAI) jointly
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with  FIMMDA published by Fixed Income Money Market and
Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

b) State Government Securities and Other Approved Securities are valued
after appropriate mark up over Yield to Maturity (YTM) rates for Central
Government securities declared by FIMMDA.

c) Debenture and Bonds have been valued with appropriate mark up over the
YTM rates for Central Government Securities declared by FIMMDA.

d) Quoted shares are valued at market rates quoted on NSE.

e) Unquoted shares are valued at book value ascertained from the
latest available Balance Sheet and in case the latest Balance Sheet
is not available, the same is valued at Re.1 per company.

f) Preference shares are valued at YTM, if dividend is received regularly.
Where dividend is in arrears, appropriate depreciation is provided
based on the number of years for which dividend is in arrears as per
RBI guidelines.

g) Mutual Fund units are valued at market rates/NAV/ Repurchase price
as applicable.

h) Treasury bills, certificate of deposits and commercial papers are valued
at carrying cost.

i) Provisions for investments are made as per RBI prudential norms.

C. Prudential norms: Securities guaranteed by the State Government where the
principal / interest is due but not paid for a period of more than 90 days are
treated as non performing investments and appropriate provision is made and
interest in respect of such investments is recognized as income only on cash
basis.

D. (i) In terms of the instructions of RBI, the excess of acquisition cost over face
value of securities kept under “Held to Maturity” category is amortized up to
the date of maturity and the amount amortized is reflected as a deduction in
Profit & Loss account Schedule 13— Interest Earned, under item ll— Income
on Investments.

(ii) Brokerage / Commission / Stamp Duty paid in connection with acquisition of
securities are treated as revenue expenses.
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E. Accounting for REPO Transactions

Repo and reverse Repo transactions are accounted in accordance with the extant
RBI guidelines. Securities purchased/sold under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF)
with RBI are debited/credited to Investment account and reversed on maturity of the
transaction. Interest expended /earned thereon is accounted for as
expenditure/revenue.

4. ADVANCES AND PROVISIONS:

a) Advances are classified into Standard Sub -standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets
and provisions for possible losses on such advances are made as per prudential
norms/directions of the Board of Directors/directions issued by Reserve Bank of
India from time to time. With regard to the Standard Advances, Provisions are made
as per extant RBI guidelines. In addition to the specific provision made towards
identified NPAs, the bank also holds floating provision.

b) In addition the bank adopts an approach to provisioning that is based on past
experience evaluation of security and other related factors.

c¢) Provisioning on categorized assets are made as follows:

Asset Classification Provisioning
Sub-standard 25%
Doubtful 1 Secured 25%
Unsecured 100%
Doubtful 2 Secured 40%
Unsecured 100%
Doubtful 3 100% on outstanding
Loss 100% on outstanding
NCLT referred loans As per RBI instruction

Education loans were provided at 100% irrespective of NPA asset classification.

d) Sufficient incremental provisioning for Unhedged Foreign currency exposure is
made as per RBI guidelines.

Reserve Bank of India has given methodology to arrive at UFCE and for introduction
of incremental provision and capital requirements.
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d) Advances disclosed are net of provisioning made for non performing assets and
floating provisions, provisioning on diminution in fair value of assets on restructured
accounts.

e) In case of loan accounts classified as NPA, an account may be reclassified as per
performing asset if it confirms to the guidelines prescribed by RBI.

f) Accounts are written off in accordance with bank’s policies. Recoveries from bad
debts written off are recognized in profit and loss account and included under other
income.

5. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

a) Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes freight, applicable duties, taxes and
incidental expense related to the acquisition and installation of the
asset, except for items on which input credit is availed.

b) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided in accordance with estimated
useful lives as specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, and
reckoning the residual value at 5% of the original cost of the asset
except for the following:

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum
Computer Hardware & Software 33.33%

Prescribed rate

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum
Building 1.67%

Office equipment 20%

Computer Hardware & Software 33.33%

Vehicles 12.50%

Furniture and Electrical Fittings 10%

c) Depreciation on additions is pro rata basis, from the date of
capitalization.

d) Expenditure during construction/capital works pending completion is
shown at cost.

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The bank is following Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005) “Employee
Benefits” as under:
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(1)  In respect of contributory plans —viz Provident Fund and Contributory
Pension
Scheme, the bank pays fixed contribution at pre-determined rates to a
separate entity, which invests in permitted securities. The obligation of the
bank is limited to such fixed contribution.

(2)  In respect of Defined Benefit Plans, viz. Gratuity and pension as well as for
leave encashment, provision has been made based on actuarial valuation as
per the guidelines.

(3) The summarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term
employee benefits have been recognized in the profit and loss account and
balance sheet, as required in accordance with the Accounting Standard-15.

(4) The actuarial gain / loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.
7. TAXES ON INCOME

1. Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax.
Current taxes are determined in accordance with the provisions of tax laws
prevailing in India. Deferred tax adjustments comprise changes in the
deferred tax assets or liabilities during the period and Deferred Tax is
determined in terms of Accounting Standard-22 issued by ICAI.

2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted prior to the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on a prudent basis for
future tax consequences of timing differences by adoption of Profit and Loss
approach with their respective tax bases. The impact of changes in the
deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in the profit and loss account.

3. Deferred tax assets are recognized at each reporting date, based upon
management’s judgment as to whether realization is considered reasonably
certain. Deferred tax assets are recognized on carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred
tax assets can be realized against future profits.

4. No withdrawal is made from the Special Reserve created and maintained
under the provisions of Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

8. REVENUE RECOGNITION:

Income and expenditure is generally accounted on accrual basis except in the
following cases:

i) In the case of NPAs, S4A and SDR schemes Income isrecognized on
realization basis, in terms of guidelines of Reserve Bank of India. Where
recovery is not adequate to upgrade the NPA accounts by way of
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regularization, such recovery is being appropriated towards interest in
the first instance and towards the principal/book values thereafter, except
in the case of suit filed accounts. In case of Non-performing investments
(NPIs), the same accounting treatment as above is followed except
otherwise agreed.

ii) Dividend on investments in shares, units of mutual fund, income from
sale of mutual fund products, locker rent, Insurance claims, commission
on LCs, income on auxiliary services and other sevices, overdue charges
on bills, commission on Government business and insurance business
are accounted on cash/realization basis.

iii) Income related to credit card is accounted on the basis of the bills raised.

iv) In the case of suit filed accounts, legal expenses are charged to the profit
and loss account. Similarly, at the time of recovery of legal expenses, in
respect of such suit filed accounts, the amount recovered is accounted
as income.

V) Funded Interest on Standard Restructured Advances and Interest on
FITL are accounted as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

vi) Expenditure is charged on accrual basis.
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The bank reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with
applicable Accounting Standard-20. For the year under reference, both Basic
and diluted earning per share being the same, is computed by dividing the net
profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for
the period.

10. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Bank has adopted the respective Accounting Standard prescribed under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and follows indirect method.

11. SEGMENT REPORTING

As per RBI guidelines on enhancement of disclosures relating to segment reporting
under  AS-17, the reportable segments have been divided into treasury, corporate
/ wholesale, retail banking operations.

(@) The Bank recognizes the Business Segment as the Primary Reporting
Segment and Geographical Segment as the Secondary Reporting Segment, in
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accordance with the RBI guidelines and in compliance with the Accounting
Standard 17.

(b) Business Segment is classified into (a) Treasury (b) Corporate and Wholesale
Banking (c) Retail Banking and (d) Other Banking Operations.

(c) Geographical Segment consists only of the Domestic Segment since the Bank
does not have any foreign branches.

12. LEASES

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of
ownership are classified as Operating Leases. Operating Lease payments are
recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over
the lease term in accordance with AS19 Leases.

13. CONTINGENCIES

Loss, if any from contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties etc are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and
the amount can be reasonably estimated.

14. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Impairment losses, if any, on fixed assets are recognized in accordance with the
Accounting Standard 28 ‘impairment of assets’ and charged to profit and loss
account.

15. NET PROFIT
The net profit is arrived at after provisions for:
i) direct taxes;
ii) possible losses on standard assets, restructured advances, NPAs and
other contingencies;
iii) depreciation / diminution on investments ;
iv) employee retirement benefits and
V) Other usual and necessary provisions.

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, Balance with RBI, Balance
with other Banks and money at Call at Short Notice including cash in ATM,
Coin Vending Machine and Cash Deposit Machine.

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
In respect of Intangible Assets, the Bank has adopted the respective Accounting
Standard (AS26)
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18. ACCOUNTING FOR PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
CONTINGENT ASSETS
a) As per the Accounting Standard 29, the bank recognizes provisions only when it
has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources is required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. The required disclosure for contingent liability is made on
possible obligation that arises from past events, the existence of which depends on
occurrence or non occurrence of future event not under control.

b) Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may
result in the recognition of income that may never be realized.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH 2019

1. The Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with Forms A & B
of the Schedule Il to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 to the extent applicable and practices generally
prevalent in the banking industry in India.

2. During the year, all the 509 branches have been subjected to statutory audit.

3. Reconciliation of inter branch / office adjustment accounts has been
completed up to 31.03.2019

4. (i). In accordance with RBI guidelines, the investments portfolio of the Bank has been

classified into three categories as given below:

Category Book value (Gross) % to total investments
(X in crore)
Held to Maturity 5872.52 63.88%
Available for Sale 3066.41 33.36%
Held for Trading 253.52 2.76%
Total 9192.45 100.00%

SLR securities under ‘Held to Maturity’ category accounted for 17.19% of Bank’s Net
Demand and Time Liabilities as on 31.03.2019 as against the ceiling of 19.50%
stipulated by Reserve Bank of India.

(i) During the year, the excess of acquisition cost over face value of securities kept
under ‘Held to Maturity’ category was amortized up to the date of maturity and the
amortized amount for the year aggregates t0329.37 crore (previous year % 30.80
crore). As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the said amount has been reflected

as a deduction in Schedule 13

Investments’.

Interest Earned under item—lII

‘Income on

(iii) Interest received on sale of securities for ¥261.14 crore (previous year3I247.47
crore) and interest paid on purchase of securities I241.88 crore (previous year
3263.95 crore) have been netted and shown under the head ‘Income on Investments’.
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(iv) There was shifting of securities to the tune of%23 18.16 crore (face value I2322.51
crore) from/to HTM category. Previous year, there was shifting of securities to the
tune of ¥3123.31 crore (face value ¥3015.00 crore) from/to HTM category.

(v) As per RBI circular Ref.No.RBI/2017-18/200 DBR.No.BP.BC.113/21/21.04.048/
2017-18 dated 15.06.2018, we have utilized the option to spread provisioning for the
mark to market (MTM) losses on all investments held in AFS and HFT for the quarter
ending 30.06.2018 as under:-

(T in crore)

Category MTM Loss | Provision Provision staggered

as on| madeon | September | December | March

30.06.2018 | 30.06.2018 | 2018 2018 2019
SLR - AFS 28.62 7.16 7.16 7.15 7.15
Non SLR
Bonds AFS 21.52 5.38 5.38 5.38 5.38
TOTAL 50.14 12.54 12.54 12.53 12.53

The provisions were made as per the above schedule in the subsequent quarters as
well. On 31.03.2019, we have reversed the entire provision on AFS category of SLR
and Non SLR Bonds made during the year as the MTM loss on AFS category of SLR
and Non SLR bonds was NIL by the year ending 31 March 2019.

(vi) During the year ended March 31,2019, the value of sale of securities from HTM
category (excluding one time transfer of securities permitted to be undertaken by
banks at the beginning of the year, sales to RBI under OMO auctions, repurchased
of government securities by Government of India and sale/transfer of securities
consequent to reduction of ceiling on SLR securities under HTM) did not exceed 5%
of the book value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year.

vii) As per RBI circular Ref.No.RBI/2017-18/147 DBR.No.BP.BL.102/21.04.048/
2017-2018 dated 02.04.2018, we have created an Investment Fluctuation Reserve
(IFR) for an amount of ¥29.16 crore.
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5. Additional disclosures
A. Capital

Iltems Current Year Previous Year

Basel Il Basel Il Basel Il Basel Il
Common Equity Tier | capital ratio (%) 15.55 15.52 14.35 14.31

Tier | capital (%) 15.55 15.52 14.35 14.31

Tier 1l Capital (%) 0.65 0.65 0.51 0.52

Total Capital Ratio (CRAR %) 16.20 16.17 14.86 14.83

Percentage of the shareholding of the
Government of India in public sector
banks NA NA

Amount of equity capital raised

Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital
raised of which;

Nil Nil
PNCPS:

PDI:

Amount of Tier 2 capital raised;
Nil Nil
Of which

Debt capital instrument:
Nil Nil
Preference Share Capital Instruments:
[Perpetual Cumulative Preference
Shares/ Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares/ Redeemable
Cumulative Preference Shares]

B. i. Investments
(R in crore)

Items Current Previous
Year Year
2018-19 2017-18

(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments

(@) InIndia 9192.45 10453.53
(b) Outside India, Nil Nil
(i) Provisions for Depreciation
(@) InIndia 85.86 89.92
(b) Outside India, Nil Nil
(iii)  Net Value of Investments
(@) In India 9106.59 10363.62
(b) Outside India. Nil Nil

(2) Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments.

(i) Opening balance 89 92 102.25
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 142.98 41.39
(iii) Less_: erte—off/ write-back of excess 147 .04 53 72

provisions during the year
85.86 89.92

(iv) Closing balance
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Minimum Maximum Daily Outstanding
outstanding | outstanding average as on
during the during the | outstanding | 31.03.2019
year year during the
year
Securities sold under Repos
a) Govt Securities 24.00 800.00 161.52 -
b) Corporate debt Securities - -- -
Securities sold under MSF
a) Govt Securities 16.00 250.00 3.23 -
b) Corporate debt Securities - - -
Securities sold under TREPS
a) Govt Securities 18.00 1110.60 169.64 -
b) Corporate debt Securities - -- -
Securities sold undeMarket
Repo
a) Govt Securities 2.98 143.75 2.14 -
b) Corporate debt Securities - -- -
Securities purchased under
Reverse Repos
a) Govt Securities 10.00 970.00 48.82 575.00
b) Corporate debt Securities - - - -
Securities purchased under
Market Reverse Repos
a) Govt Securities 4.81 10.07 0.57 -
b) Corporate debt Securities - - -
Securities purchased under
TREPS
a) Govt Securities 5.00 158.00 1.72 -
b) Corporate debt Securities - - -
iii. Non-SLR Investment Portfolio
a) Issuer composition of Non SLR investments
(% _in crore)
No. Issuer Amount | Extent of Extent of Extent of Extent of
Private ‘Below ‘Unrated’ ‘Unlisted’
placement | Investment | Securities Securities
Grade’
securities
(1) 2) 3) (4) () (6) (7)
1. | PSUs 530.99 97.00 -- -- 2.00
2. |Fls 698.51 131.04 5.00 -- 1.04
3. | Banks 475.08 71.00 5.00 - --
4. | Private 102.49 --- -- -- 37.98
Corporate
5. | Subsidiaries/ -- -- -- -- -
Joint Venture
6. | Others 1.00 -- -- -- --
7. | Provision held | (85.86) -- -- -- (37.98)
towards
depreciation
TOTAL* 1722.21 299.04 10.00 - 3.04
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(1) *Total under column 3 should tally with the total of investments included
under the following categories in Schedule 8 to the balance sheet:

a) Shares

b) Debentures & Bonds

c¢) Subsidiaries / joint ventures

d) Others

(2) Amount reported under columns 4, 5, 6 and 7 above may not be mutually

exclusive

Break up particulars for Non SLR Investments:

(X in crore)
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Shares 16.82 33.14
Debentures and Bonds 1455.96 1478.75
Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 0 0
Others (CD,CP, MF) 249.43 118.10
Total 1722.21 1629.99
b) Non performing Non-SLR investments
(X in crore)
Particulars Amount
Opening Balance 28.51
Additions during the year 51.31
Reductions during the year 0
Closing balance 79.82
Total provisions held 79.82

Break up for NPI

Category Nature of Name of the Issuer | Amount

Investment (R inCr)
Non SLR Investment | Equity Shares | M/s BRG Iron & 28.51
under AFS Category Steel P Ltd.
Non SLR Investment | Equity Shares | M/s IVRCL 38.18
under AFS Category Infrastructure Ltd.
Non SLR Investment | Equity Shares | M/s IVRCL Indore 9.47
under AFS Category Gujarat Tollways Ltd
Non SLR Investment | Equity Shares | M/s Gujarat NRE 3.66
under AFS Category Coke Ltd.

Total 79.82

C. Derivatives

The Bank has not entered into any forward rate agreement/interest rate swap or

exchange traded interest rate derivative during the year.

Q1D
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D. Asset Quality

i.a. Non-Performing Asset
(X in crore)
Items Current | Previous
Year Year
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 2.40% 2.16%
(i) Movement.of NPAs (Gross) 868.28 648.64
(a) Opening balance 947 23 1242 16
(b) Additions during the year 647-40 1022‘ 50
(c) Reductions during the year 1168.11 868.28
(d) Closing balance : :
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 513.29 381.92
(b) Additions during the year 492.73 553.68
(c) Reductions during the year 369.51 422.31
(d) Closing balance 636.51 513.29
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance 354.99 266.72
(b) Provisions made during the year 444 68 688 .48
(c) Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions 268.07 600.21
(d) Closing balance 531.60 354.99
i.b. Non- performing Loan Provisioning coverage Ratio is 73.61%
il. Movement of NPAs (2 in Crore)
) Amount Amount
Particulars as on as on
31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018
Gross NPAs as on 1% April 2018 (Opening Balance) 868.28 648.64
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 947.23 1242.16
Sub-total (A) 1815.51 1890.80
Less:-
(i) Upgradations 237.32 267.39
(ii) Recoveries 146.31 161.18
(iii) Technical/Prudential write-offs 263.77 593.96
(iii) Write-offs --- ---
Sub-total (B) 647.40 1022.52
Gross NPAs as on 31% March 2019 (closing balance) 1168.11 868.28
(A-B)

12>
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Stock of Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thereon:

(X in crore)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Opening balance of Technical/Prudential written-off 1012.52 491.72
accounts as at 1% April 2018
Add: Technical/Prudential write-offs during the year 263.77 593.96
Sub-total (A) 1276.29 1085.68
Less: Recoveries made from previously technical/ 32.47 73.16
prudential written-off accounts during the year
Closing balance as at 31st March 2019 1243.82 1012.52
(iii) Sector-wise NPAs
(X in Crore)
SI. Sector* Current year (Fy 2018-19) Previous year (Fy 2017-18)
No. Outstanding Gross | Percentage | Outstanding Gross Percentage
Total NPAs of Gross Total NPAs of Gross
Advances NPAs to Advances NPAs to
Total Total
Advances Advances
in that in that
sector sector
A Priority
Sector
1 | Agriculture and 6076.64 | 5117 0.84 5153.40 58.85 1.14
allied activities
2| Industry 3640.37 |  72.99 2.00 3140.80 87.91 2.80
2a | Of which; 1482.08 |  33.50 226 1306.63 45.68 3.50
Textile
3 | Services 5910.10 | 140.27 2.37 5126.80 167.76 3.27
4 | Personal loans 1296.79 36.99 2.85 1230.53 48.13 3.91
Sub-total (A) 16923.90 301.42 1.78 14651.54 362.64 2.48
B Non Priority
Sector
1| Agriculture and 0.70 0 0 0.34 0 0
allied activities
2 | Industry 3385.06 | 617.69 18.24 3728.70 415.49 11.14
2a | Of which; 144003 |  89.71 6.22 1520.34 | 37.99 2.50
Textile
3 | Services 2718.00 | 234.53 8.62 2953.26 76.98 2.60
4 Personal loans 3921.53 14.47 0.36 2727.66 13.17 0.48
5 | Food Credit 69.47 0 0 71.79 0 0
Sub-total (B) 10094.76 866.69 8.64 9481.75 505.64 5.37
Total (A+B) 27018.66 | 1168.11 4.33 24133.29 868.28 3.60
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(iv) Concentration of NPAs

(T in Crore)
As on 31.03.2019 | As on 31.03.2018
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 370.76 314.23

(v) Disclosure on Divergence in the Asset Classification and Provisioning

The Reserve Bank of India additional disclosures vide DBR.BP.BC.NO.63/21.04.018/ 2016-
17 dated 18™ April 2017 are not applicable to the bank for the reference period (FY 2018-19)

(vi) Provisioning pertaining to Fraud Accounts

As per RBI circularDBR.No.BP.BC.92/21.04.048/2015- 16 dated 18.04.2016, where
the bank chooses to provide for the fraud over two to four quarters and this results in
the full provisioning being made in more than one financial year, banks should debit
“other reserves” [i.e., reserves other than the one created in terms of section 17(2) of
the Banking Regulation Act 1949] by the amount remaining un-provided at the end of
the financial year by credit to provisions. However banks should proportionately
reverse the debits to “other reserves” and complete the provisioning by debiting profit
and loss account, in the subsequent quarters of the next financial year.

To comply with the above instructions of Reserve Bank of India, unamortized
provision for NPA has been made by debiting the other reserves for the following
fraud accounts.

(Xin Lakh)
S.No | Name of the Borrower Amount Provision Unamortised
Involved made during Provision
the year debited from
other reserves
1 One world Industries P Ltd, 2000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Mumbai Chembur
2 Angel Motors, Marthandam 150.64 75.32 75.32
Total 2150.64 1075.32 1075.32

(vii) Change in Accounting Policy :

The bank has followed the same significant accounting policies in the preparation of
financial statements as those followed in the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31.3.2018 except that for expenditure like electricity, water, rent, property
taxes, telephone, insurance, annual maintenance contracts, law charges,
advertisement & publicity which were accouted not on accrual basis till 31.3.2018,
with effect from current year 2018-19, the same are accounted on accrual basis.
This change has the impact on increasing the operating expenses on “Rent, taxes
and lighting”, “Printing and stationery”, “Postage, telegram, telephone etc” in the
current year with consequent increase of “Total Expenditure” and decrease of “Net
Profit” for the current year, but however, the amount involved is not material.
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1. Disclosures on Flexible Structuring of Existing Loans:

(Rin Crore)
Period No. of Amount of loans taken up | Exposure weighted average
borrowers for flexible structuring duration of loans taken up
taken up for for flexible structuring
flexible Classified Classified Before After applying
structuring | as as NPA applying flexible
Standard flexible structuring
structuring
Previous NIL NIL NIL Not Not
Financial Applicable | Applicable
Year
Current NIL NIL NIL Not Not
Financial Applicable | Applicable
Year From
April to
March 19)

2. Disclosures on Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (accounts which are
currently under the stand-still period)

(X in Crore)

No. of | Amount outstanding | Amount  outstanding | Amount outstanding as
accounts | as on the reporting | as on the reporting | on the reporting date
where date date with respect to | with respect to
SDR has accounts where | accounts where
been conversion of debt to | conversion of debt to
invoked equity is pending equity has taken place

Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified

as as NPA as as NPA as as NPA

Standard Standard Standard
-- NIL - NIL NIL NIL -

3. Disclosures on the Scheme for Sustainable Structuring of Stressed Assets as
on 31.03.2019

(X in Crore)
No. of Aggregate Amount outstanding Provision Held
accounts amount In Part A In Part B
where S4A has | outstanding
been applied
Classified as NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable
Standard
Classified as NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable
NPA
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4. Disclosures on Change in Ownership of Projects Under Implementation
(accounts which are currently under the stand-still period)

Amount outstanding as on the reporting date

o g: \?vfjermtbl?min Classified as Classified as
accounts where banks standard Classified as NPA
have decided to effect standard
. ) restructured
change in ownership
NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL

viii) Details of financial assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction
Company for Asset Reconstruction

(X in crore)
Iltem 2018-19| 2017-18
(i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of Nil Nil
accounts sold to SC/RC . .
Nil Nil
(iii) Aggregate consideration
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect : :
: : Nil Nil
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value.
Nil Nil
ix). Details of non performing financial assets purchased/sold
a. Details of non performing financial assets purchased: @ in crore)
Particulars 2018-19 | 2017-18
1.a) No of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2.a) Of these number of accounts restructured Nil Nil
during the year
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
b. Details of non performing financial assets sold: )
(X in crore)
Particulars 2018-19| 2017-18
1. No of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
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X) Provisions on Standard Asset
(X in crore)
Item Current Previous
year as at | Year as at
31.03.19 | 31.03.18
Provisions towards Standard Assets 84.98 78.45
Provisions towards Restructured Standard Assets 2.22 19.10
Total 87.20 97.55
xi) Floating Provisions (X in crore)
Current Previous
year as at | Year as at
31.03.19 | 31.03.18
Opening balance of floating provisions 31.56 29.20
Floating provisions made during the year 2.88 2.36
Amount of draw down made during the year -- -
Closing balance 34.44 31.56

E. Draw Down from Reserves
The bank has not made any draw down from the reserves during the year: Nil
(previous year Nil)

F. Business Ratios

Items Current | Previous
year year
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working 8.45% 8.64%
Funds $
(i) Non-interest income as a percentage to
Working Funds $ 1.09% 1.35%
(iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working 2.32% 2.67%
Funds $
(iv) Return on Assets@ 0.68% 0.59%
(v) Business (Deposits plus advances) per 1436.94 | 1309.04
employee # (% in lakhs)
(vi) Profit per employee (% in lakhs) 6.07 5.16
(vii) Earnings per share (in ) 18.14 1557
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$ Working funds is reckoned as an average of total assets (excluding

accumulated losses, if any).

@ 'Return on Assets’ is with reference to average working funds (i.e. total of
assets excluding accumulated losses, if any).

# For the purpose of computation of business per employee (deposits plus
advances) interbank deposits is excluded.

G. Asset Liability Management (As certified by management)

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

Tamilnad

Bank L

(X incrore)
Deposits Advances Investments | Borrowings| Foreign Foreign
Currency | Currency
assets liabilities
1 day 259.11 1940.69 1545.85 0 622.89 47.96
2 to 7 days 1232.23 462.16 227.20 0 13.48 1.07
8 to 14 days 623.69 402.07 188.44 0 12.17 1.14
15 to 30 days 729.17 716.66 279.84 0 40.65 1.28
31 days to 2 months 1008.96 882.01 259.47 0 82.42 6.39
Over 2 months and 1432.96 766.85 220.30 0 43.66 11.90
up to 3 months
Over 3 months and 2412.76 1567.97 417.08 0 54.79 22.65
up to 6 months
Over 6 months and 10207.81 3275.35 1756.64 0 4.89 98.96
up to 1 year
Over 1 year and up 13367.19| 11112.99| 2644.95 0 10.36 156.95
to 3 years
Over 3yearsand up| 2227.59 1703.33 527.48 0 12.08 165.68
to 5 years
Over 5 years 1634.78 3657.86 1039.34 0 46.49 0
TOTAL 35136.25| 26487.94, 9106.59 0 943.88| 513.98

Mercantile
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i. Exposure to Real Estate Sector
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(X in crore)
Category Current | Previous
Year Year
Exposure | Exposure
[) Direct exposure
(a) Residential Mortgages —
Lending fully secured by Mortgages on residential | 2470.10 1984.14
properties that are or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented
of which
Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority 1226.51 1135.20
sector advances
(b) Commercial Real Estate —
Lending fully secured by mortgages on commercial real | 222.57 244.42
estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction, etc.). Exposure included- non fund
based (NFB) limits also;
(c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) Nil Nil
and other securitized exposures —
a. Residential, Nil Nil
b. Commercial Real Estate.
[I) Indirect Exposure 6.00 9.00
Fund based and nen fund based exposures on
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs).
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 2698.67 2237.56
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ii. Exposure to Capital Market

(Rin Crore)
Particulars Current Yean Previous Year
2018-19 201718
i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible
bonds, convertibledebentures and units of equity -
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not 102.69 110.66
exclusively invested in corporate debt;
(i) advances against shares/bonds/ debentures or
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for 2.47 3.57
investment in shares (including
IPOs/ESOPs),convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 0.00 0.00
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;
(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent 0.69 167

secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary
security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity oriented
mutual funds T does not fully cover the advances;

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and 24 .42 31.86
market makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporate against the security
of shares / bonds/debentures or other securities or on Nil Nil
clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected

, : _ Nil Nil
equity flows/issues;
(viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks
in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible Ni Ni
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds;
(ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Ni Ni
(x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both
registered and unregistered) Nil Nil
Total Exposure to Capital Market 130.27 147.77
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iii. Risk Category wise Country Exposure

As the country-wise net funded exposure does not exceed 1% of the Bank’s total
assets for any country, no provision is required for the risk involved.

(X in crore)
Risk Category wise Country Exposure
Risk Exposure(Gross) Provision Exposure(Gross) Provision
Category as at March held as at as at March held as at
31,2019 March 31,2018 March
31,2019 31,2018

Insignificant 833.90 NIL 169.34 NIL
Risk
Low Risk 204.93 NIL 121.08 NIL
Moderately 12.70 NIL 7.52 NIL
Low Risk
Moderate 3.85 NIL 13.56 NIL
Risk
Moderately 4.96 NIL 5.33 NIL
High Risk
High Risk 0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL
Very High 0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL
Risk
Total 1060.34 NIL 316.83 NIL

iv. Details of single borrower limit (SBL)/group borrower limit (GBL) exceeded by
the Bank.

a) Details of single borrower limit in excess of the prudential exposure limits of RBI:
- Nil -
b) Details of Group borrower limit exceeded by the bank: Nil

l. Miscellaneous

i. Amount of Provisions made for Income-tax during the year;
(X in crore)
Current year| Previous year

Provision for Income Tax — Current Year 135.60 85.00
Earlier years - 62.00
Total Provision for Income Tax 135.60 147.00
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ii. Penalties imposedon the Bankby RBI

During the year RBI has imposed

penalty on the Bank which was paid (i) ¥6, 00,00,000 towards not adherence of the
permissions granted under FEMA on issue of bonus shares to non residents
ii) T 1,00,00,000 towards non compliance with various directions issued by RBI on time
bound implementation and strengthening of SWIFT related operational controls and

iii)¥28,100 towards mutilated and FICN notes.

iii. Special reserve: As per section 36(1) (viii) of . T.Act 1961, the bank has created a

special reserve of ¥ 26.00 Crore during the year 2018-19.

iv. Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

under the head

(R 'in crore)
Current Year Previous Year
Diminution on Investment 34.25 9.37
Provision towards NPA 440.86 683.09
Provision towards Standard Asset 6.53 0.00
Floating provision for Advances 2.89 2.35
Provision made for Taxation 135.60 147.00
Deferred Tax 2.32 -59.21
Provision for MSME Advances 3.24 1.47
Others :Diminution in fair value - Restructured - -
Advances
Total 625.69 784.07
v. Details of complaints / unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman
A. customer complaints *
Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year as at 96
01.04.2018 (96 ATM failed transaction claims)
Number of complaints received during the year 2018-19 9373
(Including 9047 ATM failed transaction claims)
9343
Number of complaints redressed during the year 2018-19
(Including 9019 ATM failed transaction claims)
126*
Number of complaints pending at the end of the year as at 31.03.2019
(Including 124 ATM failed transaction claims which were settled within
7/4/2019)
*Number of complaints pending at the end of the year as at 31.03.2019 2
(Other than ATM failed transaction claims)
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B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

Number of Unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year

Number of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year

Number of awards implemented during the year

Number of unimplemented awards pending at the end of the year

vi. Letter of Comfort disclosure (X in crore)
Particulars 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018

Letter of comfort issued in earlier years and outstanding 1257.90 2643.52

as on 01.04.2018

Add: Letter of comfort issued during the year -- 6445.21

Less: Letter of comfort expired during the year 1257.90 7830.83

Letter of comfort outstanding as on 31.03.2019 -- 1257.90

vii. The details of fees / remuneration received during the year in respect of Banc

assurance business undertaken.

T in Lakhs)
Commission on Banc assurance 31-03-2019 | 31-03-2018
Non — Life Insurance — Net of GST 622.87 522.60
Mutual Fund Products 15.64 17.40
Life Insurance — Net of GST 139.32 164.67
viii. Concentration of Deposits
(X in Crore)
31-03-2019 | 31-03-2018
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 3831.99 4335.37
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to 10.91% 13.37%
Total Deposits of the bank
ix. Concentration of Advances
(X in Crore)
31-03-2019 | 31-03-2018
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2371.38 2583.85
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to 8.78% 10.71%
Total Advances of the bank
x. Concentration of Exposures
(X in Crore)
31-03-2019 | 31-03-2018
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 2684.38 3270.16
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ 7.57% 10.07%
customers to Total Exposure of the bank on
borrowers/customers

(125
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6. Disclosure Requirements as per Accounting Standards where RBI has issued
guidelines in respect of disclosure items for Notes on Accounts:

6.1. There were no material pertaining to prior period Income /Expenditure requiring
disclosure as per AS 5.

6.2. The heads of income recognized on cash basis are neither material enough nor
do they require disclosure under AS 9 on Revenue Recognition.

6.3 Accounting Standard -15: Employee Benefits (X in crore)

2018-19 2017-18
Gratuity | Pension | Gratuity | Pension

(i) Principal actuarial assumption

used

Discount Rate 7.80% 7.80% 7.68% 7.68%
Rate of return on Plan Assets 7.95% 7.95% 7.75% 7.75%
Salary Escalation 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%
(ii) Change in Benefit Obligation:

Liability at the beginning of the year 144.25 483.40 136.22 470.84
Interest Cost 10.68 35.00 9.92 33.77
Current Service Cost 12.29 29.24 10.89 31.24
Benefit paid -14.77 -69.32 -14.19 -62.22
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation -4.73 -5.95 -9.18 9.77
Liability at the end of the year 147.72 472.37 144.25 483.40

(iii) Fair value of Plan Assets:
Fair value of Plan Assets at the
beginning of the year

135.08 478.21 133.56 468.61

Expected return on Plan Assets 11.27 37.85 10.41 36.69
Contributions 17.63 29.44 5.87 38.77
Benefit paid -14.77 -69.32 -14.19 -62.22
Actuarial Gain / (loss) on Plan Assets -0.70 -2.29 -0.57 -3.64

Fair value of Plan Assets at the

End of the year 148.51 473.89 135.08 478.21

(iv) Actual return on Plan Assets:

Expected Return on Plan Assets 11.27 37.85 10.41 36.69
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets -0.70 -2.29 -0.57 -3.64
Actual return on Plan Assets 10.57 35.56 9.84 33.05

(v) Amount recognized in the
Balance Sheet:

Liability at the end of the year 147.72 472.37 144.25 483.40

Fair value of Plan Assets at the 148 51 -473.89 135.08 478.21
End of the year

Amount Recognized in the

Balance Sheet -0.79 -1.52 9.17 5.19
(vi) Expenses recognized in

The Income Statement:

Current Service Cost 12.29 29.24 10.89 31.24
Interest Cost 10.68 35.00 9.92 33.77
Expected Return on Plan Assets -11.27 -37.85 -10.41 -36.69
Actuarial Gain or Loss -4.02 -3.67 -8.61 13.41
Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 10.59 0.00
Expenses Recognized in P & L 7.67 22.73 12.38 41.73
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Details of Provisions made for Other Long term Employee Benefits:

(X in crore)
S.no Other Long Term 2018-19 2017-18
Benefits
1 Leave Encashment 4.85 2.95
2 Sick Leave 4.72 -1.66
6.4 Accounting Standard-17: Segment Reporting
PART A: Operational Segments:
(X in crore)
Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2019 For the year ended 31.03.2018
Corporat Corporat
Business Treasur e/Wholes | Retail Total Treasur e/Wholes | Retail Total
Segment y ale Banking Y | ale Banking
Banking Banking
Revenue 801.88 702.56 2134.35 3638.79 975.94 901.76 1878.91 3756.61
Result
(Profit(+)/Loss(- 167.75 62.88 191.02 421.65 241.91 22.72 47.33 311.96
)
Unallocated
income 25.15 2.25
/Expenses
Operating Profit 396.50 309.71
Income Tax 137.92 87.79
Extraordinary
Profit
Net Profit 258.58 221.92
Other As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Information
Segment assets 10328.04 9434.67 19905.31 39668.02 | 11226.79 9357.43 16599.55 | 37183.77
Unallocated
59.52 52.20
assets
Total assets 39727.54 37235.97
Eg%mtelg; 1125331 | 6995.03 | 21250.53 | 39498.87 | 12673.91 | 7902.28 | 16465.16 | 37041.35
Unallocated 228.67 194.62
liabilities
Total liabilities 39727.54 37235.97
Note:
1. Assets and Liabilities wherever directly related to segments have been
accordingly allocated to segments and wherever not directly related have been
allocated on the basis of segment revenue.
2. The Bank operates only in Domestic Segment.
PART B —Geographic Segments
Domestic International Total
Particulars | 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018
Revenue 3638.79 3756.61 -- -- 3639.30 3756.61
Assets 39727.54 | 37235.97 -- - | 39727.91 37235.97
G20 - .
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6.5 Related Party disclosures (AS-18)

The Bank has identified the following person to be the key management person as
per AS-18 on Related Party Disclosures:

Thiru. K.V. Rama Moorthy — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer —
01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019

A. Emoluments:
(Amount in %)

Particulars 01.04.2018 to 04.09.2017 to
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Salary 45,00,000.00 25,87,500.00
Bank Contribution to Provident Fund 5,40,000.00 3,10,500.00
Other Benefits 2,02,408.40 8,17,310.83@
Total 52,42,408.40 37,15,310.83

i

@ includes travelling expenses of ¥7,73,299.35.

Thiru. H.S. Upendra Kamath — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer —
01.04.2017 to 17.05.2017.
(Amount in %)

Particulars 01.04.2018 to 01.04.2017 to

31.03.2019 17.05.2017
Salary - 6,45,161.28
Bank Contribution to Provident Fund - 77,419.00
Other Benefits - 4,54 ,657.61
Total - 11,77,237.89
B. Others: Nil

C. There is no other transaction with the Managing Director & CEO.

D. TMB Foundation Trust (Associate) :- Payment made for CSR expenditure
%16,02,00,000/ - (Previous year :Nil)

6.6. Earnings per Share (AS — 20)

Items Amount Amount
2018 -19 2017 - 18

Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders 25858.04 22191.62

(X in Lakhs)

Average number of shares 142511454 | 142511454

Basic and Diluted EPS (in X) 18.14 15.57

Nominal value per share (in X) 10.00 10.00

6.7. Consolidated Financial Statements (AS - 21)

The Bank has no subsidiary and hence the need for consolidation of financial
statements does not arise.
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6.8. Accounting for Taxes on Income (AS — 22)

In respect of Income Tax, the assessment has been completed up to the Assessment
Year 2016-17 (Year ended 31.03 2016). Appeals are pending with appellate
authorities /High Court for various assessment years. The income tax demand
disputed on appeal is ¥122.25 crore (previous year ¥99.17crore). The management
does not envisage any liability in respect of the disputed issues, however adequate
provision has been made for the same There were various demands raised by
Service Tax Department during 2015 to 2018 amounting to T¥11.64 crore (previous
yearX 2.57crore), which the Bank has disputed on appeals. The Bank has been
advised a fair chance of their succeeding their appeals and hence no provision has
been made for these demands

The bank had recorded the cumulative net Deferred Tax Liability of ¥4.92 crore
relating to the period up to 31.03.2018 arising out of timing difference. The amount
debited to the Profit and Loss account during the year is ¥ 2.32 crore and the net
Deferred Tax Liability is ¥ 7.24 crore as on March 31, 2019.

The major components of deferred tax assets/liabilities as at 31.03.2019 arising out of
timing difference are as follows;

(X in Crore)
. Deferred tax | Deferred tax| Deferred tax| Deferred tax
Particulars Asset Liability Asset Liability
2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 | 2017-18
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 5.95 2.86
Provision for NPAs/Bad Debts 27.88 14.74
Interest accrued on Investments - --
Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) - 66.68 - 57.04
Depreciation on Investments -- --
Provisions on retirement benefit,
Leave encashment etc 21.99 23.31
Provision for DFV on Restructured
Standard Assets -- 7.60
Others 3.62 3.61
Deferred tax asset/liability 59.44 66.68 52.12 57.04
Net Deferred Tax Asset/Liability -7.24 -4.92

6.9. Intangible assets (AS — 26)
Depreciation on software is calculated on straight line method at 33.33% in
compliance with RBI guidelines.

6.10 Impairment of Assets (AS — 28)

The fixed assets, mainly immovable properties, furniture fittings, the required
indications prescribed in AS 28, not being met with, in the opinion of the
management, there is no impairment of any asset of the Bank.
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The details of provisions and contingencies, contingent liabilities, the movement of
provisions on NPA’s and depreciation on investment which are considered material

are disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements.

(X in crore)
Particulars Provisions | Additions | Amount Unused Provisions
as at the During used Amounts As at the
beginning | the year during Reversed Close of
of the the year | During the the year
year year
A. Provision for 12.60 - - 9.60 3.00
Interest sacrifice
on restructured
accounts(DFV)
B.Provision for 10.43 10.76 0.06 --- 21.13
Frauds
Contingent Liabilities: (X in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As on As on
31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018
1. Claims not acknowledged as debt
a)Counter suits filed by the borrowers against Nil Nil
the Bank has initiated legal action.
b)Cases filed in Consumer/Civil Courts for 115.36 115.36
deficiency in services
c)Any other claims against the bank not 1005.32 1118.15
Acknowledged as debts.
2.Guarantees issued on behalf of constituents 99208.79 | 209585.28
3.Acceptance, endorsements & other obligations 105651.31 | 112676.19
4. Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable. 514428.74 | 982253.16
TOTAL 720409.52 | 1305748.14

6.12 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Under MSMED Act 2006 certain disclosures are required to be made relating to micro
small and medium enterprises. There have been not reported cases of interest
payments due to delays in such payments to micro small and medium enterprises.
Auditors have relied upon the above management assertion.

6.13 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Opening balance of amount transferred to DEAF 6046.34 5282.67
Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 906.15 826.84
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 55.59 63.17
Closing Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 6896.90 6046.34

i
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6.14 Un hedged Foreign Currency Exposure:
The bank has a board approved policy dated 16.04.2019 on Un hedged Foreign
Currency Exposure.

6.15 Proposed dividend:

In terms of Revised Accounting Standard [AS4] Contingencies and events occurring
after Balance sheet date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs through
amendments to companies (Accounting Standards) amendment rules 2016, dated
30 March 2016, the company has not accounted for proposed dividend as a liability
as at 31st March 2019. The proposed dividend was however accounted for as a
liability up to 31% March 2016 in line with the accounting standard applicable at that
time.

6.16 Auditors’ fees and expenses under schedule 16 Operating expenses includes
prior year statutory branch audit expenditure of ¥ 82.10 lakh (Previous year: Nil)

6.17 Liquidity Coverage Ratio

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is one of the Basel Committee’s key reforms to
develop a more resilient banking sector. The objective of the LCR is to promote the
short-term resilience of the liquidity risk profile of banks by ensuring that banks have
an adequate stock of unencumbered high quality liquid assets (HQLA) that can be
converted easily and immediately into cash to meet their liquidity needs for a 30
calendar days liquidity stress scenario. The LCR is expected to improve the banking
sector's ability to absorb shocks arising from financial and economic stress,
whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spillover from the financial sector to
the real economy. The LCR is calculated by dividing a bank's stock of HQLA by its
total net cash outflows over a 30 days stress period.HQLA of bank is in the form of
Government Securities and highly marketable and liquid securities / bonds. The
Bank has been maintaining HQLA mainly in the form of SLR investments over and
above the mandatory requirements.

The guidelines for LCR were effective January 1, 2015, with the minimum
requirement at 60%, which would rise in equal annual steps to reach 100% on
January 1, 2019. The present requirement, as on March 31, 2019 is 100%.Bank
prepares daily Liquidity Coverage Ratio statement to assess the liquidity needs of
the Bank on an ongoing basis.A number of data points are used in calculating the
average figures in the template since January 01, 2017 and a simple averageis
calculated on daily observations over the previous quarter. Bank has been
publishing information on LCR in annual financial statements under Notes to
Accounts.LCR related information based on simple averages of daily observations
for the year ended March 2019 is furnished below:




97th Annual Report 2018-2019

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead in life

LCR Disclosure Template (Consolidation)
Current Year 2018-19 Previous Year 2017-18
Unw-l;:i,ta;llted8 We1i-°:1at:ed9 Unw-lle?tahlted8 We-li-c':lat:-zd9
Particulars VaI%e Vglue VaI?Je Vglue
(Average) (Average) (Average) (Average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
1 | HoLA) yHa 6053.81 | 5954.72| 7198.74 | 6896.94
Cash Outflows
Retail deposits and deposits from
2 | small buspiness custompers, of which: 19063.67 1524.41 2122719 1716.45
(i) Stable deposits 7642.16 382.26 8125.30 406.26
(i) | Less stable deposits 11421.51 1142.15 13101.89 1310.19
Unsecured wholesale funding, of
3 | whioh: ° 2092.97 | 1149.59 |  1190.80 |  644.92
Operational deposits (all
I P itdetaaad 36.23 7.66 13.16 1.45
Non-operational deposits (all
() | comtmarion CoPosts 2056.74 |  1141.93 | 1177.64 | 64347
(iii) | Unsecured debt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 | Secured wholesale funding 648.12 0.00 146.87 0.00
5 | Additional requirements, of which 1871.93 1871.93 2429.26 2429.26
Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other collateral 1871.93 1871.93 2429.26 2429.26
(i) requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding on
(i) | dobt products J 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iii) | Credit and liquidity facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 4639.96 316.41 4371.88 297.64
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 2454.19 186.44 4172.89 212.92
8 | TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 30770.84 5048.78 33538.89 5301.19
Cash Inflows
9 | Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 68.90 18.13 331.27 91.55
Inflows from fully performin
10 | exposures yp g 936.59 497.12 1142.08 | 666.07
11 | Other cash inflows 1879.87 | 1879.87 2365.24 | 2365.24
12 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 2885.36 2395.12 3838.59 | 3122.86
Total Total
Adjusted® Adjusted'®
Value Value
21 | TOTAL HQLA 5954.72 6896.94
22 | TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 2653.66 2178.33
23 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) | 224.3965% 316.6159%

8 Unweighted values must be calculated as outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days (for
inflows and outflows) except where otherwise mentioned in the circular and LCRtemplate.
9 Weighted values must be calculated after the application of respective haircuts (for HQLA) or inflow
and outflow rates (for inflows and outflows).
10 Adjusted values must be calculated after the application of both (i) haircuts and inflow and outflow
rates and (ii) any applicable caps (i.e. cap on Level 2B and Level 2 assets for HQLA and cap on inflows).

(132>
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B Qualitative disclosure about LCR::

The main_drivers of LCR Results:The bank is having an adequate stock of
unencumbered high- quality liquid assets (HQLA) that can be converted easily and
immediately in markets into cash to meet liquidity needs for a 30 calendar days
under liquidity stress scenario.

The net cash outflows for the next 30 days has been calculated after deducting the
cash inflows from the outflows for the period. The inflows and outflows have been
calculated based on RBI prescribed haircuts and run-off factors.

The Bank’s LCR has been more than the minimum regulatory requirement for all the dates
from April'18 to March’19 LCRof the bank for the Annual Financial Year 2018 19stood at
224.3965%.

Composition of HQLA

The Level 1 Assets of our bank comprises of Cash in hand &Cash at ATM, Excess
CRR and SLR, MSF (2% on NDTL)and FALLCR (13% on NDTL). Level 1 asset is
the main driver of HQLA, contributing around 98.36% in the total HQLA of the Bank.
Level 2A and Level 2B assets are well within the regulatory cap of 40% and 15% of
the stock of HQLA respectively after the required haircut.

Corporate Bonds not issued by a Bank/Financial/NBFC which have been rated AA-
or above by an Eligible Credit Rating Agencyhave been classified under Level 2A
assets. Similarly Bonds not issued by a Bank/FI/NBFC which have been rated not
lower than BBB- have been classified under level 2B Assets.

Outflows & Inflows:
Deposits are the main source of funds for the Bank.

Currency mismatch in LCR::
LCR is expected to be met and reported in a single currency. The bank is not having
significant liabilities and HQLAs in any foreign currency.

Description of the deqree of centralization of liquidity management and
interaction between the group’s units:

The Bank does not belong to any group and does not have any
associate,subsidiaries, joint venture,etc

7. Fixed assets (Land and Building) include property held in Chennai, land (UDS
753.117 sqft ¥10.76 lakh) and building (¥11.10 lakh) purchased during January
1993. While the UDS of land was registered in Bank’s name, the building was to be
handed over to the Bank after construction, by the corporate debtor, who are in
corporate insolvency resolution process, which they failed to do so and the bank had
preferred a suit in Madras High Court against them for specific performance and
damages which is pending.
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8. The amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over rights
licenses, authority etc., has been taken as collateral security and the value of such

collateral security

9. In respect of certain branches/offices where additional information was required, the
data available at Controlling/Head office was considered.

10. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to
this year’s classification.

11. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees in the Financial

Statements.

sd/- S.Annamalai
Chairman

sd/- N.Gopal
Director

sd/- A.Sivagami
Director

sd/- P.Suriaraj
General Manager

Thoothukudi
30.05.2019

sd/- P.C.G.Asok Kumar

Director

sd/- B.S.Keshava Murthy

Director

sd/- B.Vijayadurai
Director

sd/- D.Inbamani
General Manager

sd/- P.C.Panda
Company Secretary

sd/- K.V.Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

sd/- S.R.Ashok
Director

sd/- K.Nagarajan
Director

sd/- A.Shidambaranathan
Vice President

sd/- R.Arumugapandi
General Manager

sd/- S Ezhil Jothi
Director

sd/- D.N.Nirranjan Kani
Director

sd/- S.Senthil Anandan
General Manager

sd/- C.Sukumaran
Chief Financial Officer

Vide our report of even date attached
For G Balu Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.000376S /S200073

sd/-

R.Ravishankar

Partner (M.No.26819)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
M/s. TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
(“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in which are incorporated in
these financial statements are the returns of 14 branches audited by us and 495 branches audited by branch
auditors.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as
the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required for the banking companies and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at
March 31, 2019, and its profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Bank including its branches in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and provision
of Sec.29 of the

Banking Regulation Act 1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India(RBI) from time
to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of theBank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
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concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part
of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements / information of 495 branches included in the standalone financial
statements of the bank whose financial statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 23,330
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Crores as at 31st March 2019 and the total revenue of Rs. 2,131 Crores for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the standalone financial statements/information of these branches have been audited by the
branch auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of branches, is solely based on the report of such branch auditors.

Our report is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

2. Being a Banking Company, the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of the powers conferred by subsection (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, is not applicable.

3. Asrequired by Sub Section 3 of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.

(b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank.

(c) The returns received from the offices and branches of the Bank have been found adequate for the purposes
of our audit.

4. Further as required by Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(a) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit
have been received from branches not visited by us.

(b) The reports on the accounts of the branches audited by branch auditors of the bank under section
143(8) o the Companies Act, 2013 have been sent to us and have been dealt with the audited returns
from the branches.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of accounts and with the audited returns from the branches.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent
they are not inconsistent with the Accounting Policies prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to adequacy of the Internal Financials control over Financial Reporting of the Bank and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure -1, and
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(g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditors report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note 6.12 to the financial statements;

ii. The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including forward derivative contracts -
Refer Schedule 12 to the financial statements.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank.

For G Balu Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 000376S/S200073

R.RAVISHANKAR

Partner

M No 26819
Place: Thoothukudi
Date: 30-05-2019
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Annexure - I to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s.TAMILNAD MERCANTILE
BANK LIMITED (“the Bank”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Bank's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
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the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Bank are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of theBank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us ,the Bank has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G BALU ASSOCIATES LLP,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000376S/S200073

R.RAVISHANKAR
Partner
M.No: 26819

Place: Thoothukudi
Date: 30-05-2019
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Sd/- S.Annamalai
Chairman

Sd- N.Gopal
Director

Sd- A.Sivagami
Director

Sd/- P.Suriaraj
General Manager

Thoothukudi
30.05.2019

sd/- P.C.G.Asok Kumar
Director

Sd/- B.S.Keshava Murthy
Director

Sd- B.Vijayadurai
Director

Sd- D.Inbamani
General Manager

Sd/-  S.R.Ashok
Director

Sd- K.Nagarajan
Director

Sd/- A.Shidambaranathan
Vice President

Sd/-  R.Arumugapandi
General Manager

Sd/- P.C.Panda
Company Secretary

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cash profit generated from operations | T In thousands
Net profit for the year 258 58 05 221 91 62
Add/Deduct
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of assets (348) (113)
Depreciation on Fixed assets 35 56 22 39 67 15
Provisions & Contingencies
(incl. Deferred tax
adjustments) 625 68 66 784 08 53
Total 919 79 45 1045 66 17
Cash flow from operating assets & liabilities Il
Increase/Decrease in liabilities
Deposits 2707 91 59 238 18 27
Other liabilities & Provisions (431 97 87) (780 43 25)
Increase/Decrease in assets
Advances (2719 22 18) (1796 39 88)
Investments 1257 02 66 1140 86 35
Other assets (235 71 02) (236 39 70)
Total 578 03 18 (1434 18 21)
Net cash flow from operating activities | + Il 1497 82 63 (388 52 04)
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/disposal of fixed assets 46 69 34 80
Purchase of fixed assets (34 07 93) (25 91 90)
Net Cash flow from investing activities (33 61 24) (25 57 10)
Cash flow from financing activities
Interim Dividend incl.tax (34 36 10) (41 16 56)
Borrowings (513 00 00) 513 00 00
Net Cash flow from financing activities (547 36 10) 471 83 44
Total cash flow during the year (A+B+C) 916 85 29 57 74 30
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 01-04-2018
Cash & bank balances with RBI 1701 77 77 1458 20 46
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 301 72 48 487 55 49
Total 2003 50 25 1945 75 95
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 31-03-2019
Cash & bank balances with RBI 1735 34 24 1701 77 77
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 1185 01 30 301 72 48
Total 2920 35 54 2003 50 25
Increase or decrease in cash flow 916 85 29 57 74 30
Sd/- K.V.Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

sd/- S..Ezhil Jothi
Director

Sd/~  D.N.Nirranjan Kani
Director

Sd/- S.Senthil Anandan

General Manager Vide our report of even date attached

For G.Balu Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 000376S/S200073

Sd/- C.Sukumaran
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/- R.Ravishankar
Partner (M.No.26819)
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Registration Details

Balance Sheet Date | 3 | ! |

(Rupees in Thousands)

Capital raised during the Year

Registration No. |

Public Issue NII|L

Bonus Issue N|I|L

| |1|9|0|8| State Code

Lole] [2[o]]e]

(Rupees in Thousands)
Rights Issue N II I
Private Placement N II [

Position of mobilisation and Deployment of funds

Total Liabilities

[4]o [s[3]2]7]9]5]6]

Sources of funds

Paid-up Capital 114/2|5]1|1]5

Secured Loans N|I|L

Application of funds

Net Fixed Assets 11318(3|8|2
Net Current Assets 21915/019|5(3 |4
Accumulated Losses N| I

Performance of Company

Turnover 31613|8(7|9(7|7
Total Expenditure 312141213/0]0|0
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 319161419717
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 215|8(5(8]0|5
Earning per share in Rs. 18
Dividend Rate % 3|2

Generic names of three principal products / services

of the Company (as per monetary terms)

Sdi- S.Annamalai sd/- P.C.G.Asok Kumar Sd-  S.R.Ashok
Chairman Director Director

Sdi- N.Gopal Sdi- B.S.Keshava Murthy Sdi- K.Nagarajan
Director Director Director

Sdi- A.Sivagami Sdi- B.Vijayadurai Sdi- A.Shidambaranathan
Director Director Vice President

Sdi- P.Suriaraj Sd- D.Inbamani Sd-  R.Arumugapandi

General Manager General Manager

Sd/- P.C.Panda
Company Secretary

Thoothukudi
30.05.2019

Total Assets 40 [5]3]2]7]9]5]6]
Reserves and Surplus 314(7(5|714|3|9
Unsecured Loans 3(5(1(3|6/2]4(8]1
Investments 911]0]6|5[8[6]|5
Miscellaneous Expenditure N[I|L
Item Code No. : NOT APPLICABLE

General Manager

Product Description : Banking Company

Sd/- K.V.Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO
sd/- S..Ezhil Jothi
Director

Sd/~  D.N.Nirranjan Kani
Director

Sd/- S.Senthil Anandan

General Manager Vide our report of even date attached

For G.Balu Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 000376S/5200073

Sd/- C.Sukumaran
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/- R.Ravishankar
Partner (M.N0.26819)
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Tamilnadu

. Thoothukudi Main
. Madurai Main

. Sivakasi

. Virudhunagar

. Nagercoil

. Dindigul

. Theni

. Chennai-21

. Vilathikulam

10. Muhavoor

11. Kamuthi

12. Pavoorchatram
13. Puthiamputhur
14. Rajakkamangalam
15. N.Pudukottai

16. Coimbatore Main
17. Pudur

18. Anjugramam

19. Tiruchirapalli

20. Chennai G.T

21. Kommadikottai
22. Megnanapuram
23. Yercaud

24. Kayamozhi

0 N o U AW =

Ne)

25. Tirunelveli

26. Thalakulam

27. Mullakkadu

28. Salem

29. Radhapuram
30. Tisayanvilai

31. TKallikulam

32. Vellore

33. Elayirampannai
34. Kovilpatti

35. Pudukottai (035)
36. Erode

37. Kumbakonam
38. Aruppukottai
39. Kalloorani

40. Alangulam

41. Bommidi

42. Thickanamcode
43. Thiruvarur

44, Villupuram

LIST OF BRANCH - STATE WISE

45. Palliyadi

46. Verkhizambi

47. Chinnamanur
48. Colachel

49. Agasteeswaram
50. Eriyodu

51. Sayalkudi

52. Siruthondanallur
53. Prahasapuram
54. Chennai T.Nagar
55. Rayagiri

56. Kanjampuram
57. Podanur

58. K.Puthur

59. Kannankurichi
60. Ayyalur

61. Thanjavur

62. Sonakanvilai

63. Arumanai

64. Usilampatti

65. Vallalnathi

66. Pannaipuram
67. Rajapalayam

68. Tirupur

69. Odaipatti

70. Kallimandayam
71. Viralipatti

72. Pavithrampudur
73. Pottireddipatti
74. Vattur

75. Cuddalore

76. Govindakudi
77.Vengadampatti
78. Karur

79. Palani

80. Pollachi

81. Puliampatti

82. Edalakudy

83. Madurai Simmakkal
84. Mayiladuthurai
85. Chennai Mount Road
86. Porulur

87. Padanthalumoodu
88. Mayiladumparai
89. Kappukadu

90.
91.
92.
93.
94.
95.
96.
97.
98.
99.
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Kancheepuram
Thoothukudi South
Chengavilai
Vadamalaikurichi
Pandaravilai
Varaghur
Chockalingapuram
M.M.Kovilur

Madurai Chinthamani

Dr.Nanjappa Road

100. Chennai T.T.K.Road

101.
102
103.

Udumalpet
. Tiruchengodu
Karaikudi

104. Pudukottai (128)

105.

Namakkal

106. Ramanathapuram
107. Sattur

108. Thiruvannamalai

109. Nagapattinam

110. Coimbatore R.S.Puram

111.
112.
113.

Dharmapuri
Sankarankoil
Mettupalayam

114. Chennai Aminjikarai

115.

Marthandam

116. Hosur
117. Chennai Tambaram

118. Palayamkottai

119. Thirumangalam

120. Sivaganga

121.
122.
123.

Cumbum
Sipcot, Thoothukudi
Chennai Perambur

124. Chennai Thiruvanmiyur

125.

Valliyoor

126. Chengalpattu

127. Chennai Anna Nagar
128. Madurai Tallakulam
129. Gobichettipalayam
130. Chennai Purasawalkam

131.
132.
133.

Thuckalay
Gingee
Tiruchendur Road

134. Kovilpatti Pasuvanthanai Road
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135.
136.
137.
138.
139.
140.
141.
142.
143.
144.
145.
146.
147.
148.
149.
150.
151.
152.
153.
154.
155.
156.
157.
158.
159.
160.
161.
162.
163.
164.
165.
166.
167.
168.
169.
170.
171.
172.
173.
174.
175.
176.
177.

178

Vadakkankulam
Alagappapuram
Kulasekaram
Perundurai
Bodinayakanur
Paramakudi
Virudhachalam
Pillayarpuram
Aranthangi
Surandai
Bhavani

Ranipet
Tindivanam
Krishnagiri
Arakonam
Sivakasi, A.J.College
Panruti
Sholinganallur
Shenkottai
Perumanallur
Rasipuram
Sathyamangalam
Sriperumbudur
Kunnathur
Poonamalle
Valasaravakkam
Kottivakkam
Maduravoyal
Thiruvallur
Pallavaram
Gudiyatham
Guduvancheri
Melmaruvathur
Andipatti
Palamedu
Maraimalainagar
Neelambur
Annur
Vandavasi
Madipakkam
Naravarikuppam
Porur

Pettai Rural

. Thiruthangal
179.

Kavundampalayam

180.
181.
182.
183.
184.
185.
186.
187.
188.
189.
190.
191.
192.
193.
194.
195.
196.
197.
198.
199.
200.
201.
202.
203.
204.
205.
206.
207.
208.
209.
210.
211.
212.
213.
214.
215.
216.
217.
218.
219.
220.
221.
222.
223.
224.

Chitlapakkam
Medavakkam
Chatrapatti
Melur
Chengam
Somanur
Sankaraperi
Natham
Thuraiyur
Sathankulam
Sankari
Avinashi
Kaveripattinam
Elampillai
Panagudi
Avriyalur
Punnaiyapuram
Arcot

Authoor
Manapparai
Udangudi
Mudhukulathur

Thiruthuraipoondi

Kuthukkalvalasai
Poovanthi
Katpadi
Veppadai
Koolipatti
Bellaipalayam
Othakuthirai
Therekalputhur
Kanyakulam
Oddanchatram
Kallakurichi
Kariapatti
Kulathur
Thirunagar
Asesham
Kalakkad
Chekkadu
Perambalur
Adayalampattu
Chinnalapatti
Pallipalayam
Dasanaickenpatti

225.
226.
2217.
228.
229.
230.
231.
232.
233.
234.
235.
236.
237.
238.
239.
240.
241.
242.
243.
244,
245.
246.
247.
248.
249.
250.
251.
252.
253.
254.
255.
256.
257.
258.
259.
260.
261.
262.
263.
264.
265.
266.
267.
268.
2609.
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Pachanampatti
Uchipuli
Checkanurani
Bikshandarkoll
Devakottai
Tharamangalam
Kilambi
Dharapuram
Harur
Sevagampatti
Chikkandarchavadi
T.Saveriyarpuram
Chinnappampatti
Soolakkarai
Coonoor
Pattukottai

Arni

Arumuganeri
Vembar
Chidambaram
Senapathipalayam
Aralvaimozhi
Attur
Kadayanallur
Pasuvanthanai
Komarapalayam
Thiruvengadam
Pallagoundenpalayam
Madampalayam
Villapuram
Srivilliputhur
Madurantakam
Kalangani
Athipatti
Mathvarayapuram
Tirupathur
Reddiarpatti
Pappakudi
Venkateswarapuram
Vilampatti

Ambur
Iravathanallur
Thippanampatti
Edappadi
Senneerkuppam
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270.
271.
272.
273.
274.
275.
276.
277.
278.
279.
280.
281.
282.
283.
284.
285.
286.
287.
288.
289.
290.
291.
292.
293.
294.
295.
296.
297.
298.
299.
300.
301.
302.
303.
304.
305.
306.
307.
308.
300.
310.
311.
312.
313.
314.

Sulur
Kannicheriputhur
Sivathaiyapuram
Puthagaram
Kulayankarisal
Peraiyur

Vandiyur
Kuruvikulam
Vazhkkai
Poravachery
Lalgudi

Kanakkan kadu
Mettur
Somayampalayam
Servaikaranpati
87-Goundenpalayam
Sikkarayapuram
Tiruchendur
Allampatti
Ayapakkam
Rameswaram
Poonjeri
Malayandipattinam
Siruvalur
Saravanampatti
Thoothukudi Port Trust
Avadi

Thillai nagar- Trichy
Mdu SS colony
Karungal

Kulithalai
Ammapalayam
Neelankarai
Pudugummidipoondi
Kazhugumalai
Veerasigamani
Vedaranyam
Pallikaranai
Gudalur
Ayyampalayam
Ponneri
Dharmaapuri
Ariyakulam
Sithurajapuram
Keelaeral

315. Kallikudi

316. Kangeyam

317. Palladam

318. Vickramasingapuram
319. Nerkundram

320. Vengatadampatti

321. Kilakarai

322. Tirunelveli NGO Colony
323. Ganapathy

324. Singanallur

325. Regunathapuram

326. Ambasamudram

327. Kelambakkam

328. Tenkasi

329. Sirkali

330. SME Branch, Thoothukudi
331. Thoothukudi - Mattakadai
332. Sivakasi,Palaniadavarpuram
333. Chennai - Adyar

334. Chappadi

335. Madambakkam

336. Cbe Oppanakara Street
337. Nalumavadi

338. Chennai-Mylapore

339. Madurai- KK Nagar

340. Srivaikundam

341. Salem Ramakrishna Road
342. Chennai-Velachery

343. Midalam

344, Erichanatham

345. Periyanaickenpalayam
346. Kuniamuthur

347. Anthiyur

348. Mannargudi

349. Chennai_Nungambakkam
350. Kurinjipadi

351. Manamadurai

352. Periyakulam

353. Vasudevanallur

354. Chennai-Kodambakkam
355. Eruvadi

356. Ambattur

357. Cheranmahadevi

358. Silvarpatti

359. Therku Kallidaikurichi
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360. Idumbavanam

361. Venkarai

362. Tirupattur

363. Adiyamankottai

364. Chennai- Guindy

365. Tirunelveli-Vannarapettai
366. Coimbatore_Peelamedu
367. Madurai Palanganatham
368. Madurai Pudur

369. Trichy Srinivasnagar

Andhra Pradesh
. Guntur

. Vijayawada

. Nellore

. Rajamundry

. Tadepalligudam

. Vishakapatnam

. Kakinada

. Tirupathi

. Kurnool

. Nandyal

. Gollapudi

. Chebrolu

. Pedanandipadu
. Tanuku

. Vinukonda

. Jaggayyapet

. Mandapeta

. Chirala

. Chilakaluripet

. Narasaraopet

. Kavali

. Sirkalahasti

. Bapatla

. Bhimavaram

. Vijayawada-Benz Circle
. Gudur

0 NOoO OB WN -~
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Chattisgarh
1. Raipur

Gujarat
1.Ahmedabad
2. Surat
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. Unjha

. Vadodara

. Surat, Ring Road
. Sidhpur

. Bardoli

. Himatnagar

9. Vapi

10.

11.

12.
13.
14.
15.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

Sachin
Deesa
Visnagar
Gandhinagar
Bilimora
Borsad
Rajkot
Amreli
Gondal

Anjar
Jamnagar
Dharangadhra

Haryana
1. Faridabad
2. Gurugram

Karnataka

© N UAWN =

. Bangalore City

. Gulburga

. Bangalore Cantt.
. Mangalore
Hassan

. Anekal

. Nelamangala

. Hebbagodi

9. Kanakapura

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

Yelahanka
Yadgiri
Ramanagara
Channapatna
Chamarajanagara
Kengeri
Ranebennur
Bagalkot

Dod Ballapur
Hubli

Mysuru

. Tirupuram

. Kottugal

. Thiruvananthapuram
. Kollam

1

2

3

4

5. Ernakulam
6. Kozhikode

7. Chenganachery
8. Kottayam

9. Kalamassery

10. Pappanamcode
11. Pathanamthitta
12. Kayankulam
13. Chavakad

14. Kanhangad

15. Palakkad

16. Malappuram
17. Payyanur

18. Kasargod

19. Kodungallur
20. Taliparamba
21. Thrissur

Madhyapradesh
1. Pithampur

2. Dhar

3. Indore

Maharastra

1. Mumbai Mandvi

2. Mumbai Vashi

3. Ichalkaranji

4. Pune

5. Mumbai Andheri (E)
6. Mumbai Sion

7. Andheri(West), Mumbai
8. Sewri,Mumbai

9. Chembur,Mumbai

10. Mumbai Dharavi

11. Boisar

12. Sukapur

13. Vita

14. Madhavnagar

15. Ratnagiri

16. Jaysingpur
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17. Nanded

18. Manmad

19. Chiplun

20. Khopoli

21. Vasai

22. Thane

23. Mumbai_Mulund

Orissa
1. Cuttack

Punjab
1. Ludhiana

Rajasthan
1. Bhilwara
2. Bhiwadi
3. Jaipur

Telangana

. Hyderabad

. Secunderabad

. Rikab Gunj, Hyderabad
. Miryalguda

. Suryapet

. Mehdipatnam

. Hyderabad-Manikonda
. Hyderabad-Malakpet

O NO O~ WON -

Uttar Pradhesh
1. Ghaziabad

Uttarakhand
1. Roorkee

West Bengal
1. Kolkata

Union Territory
. Delhi

. Pondicherry

. Karaikkal

. Shahdara, Delhi

. Karol bhagh, Delhi
. Silvassa

. Port Blair

~N o vl AW N =
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PROGRESS AT A GLANCE (Rs. in Lakh)
Year Capital | Reserves | Investment | Deposits Advances Profit No. of
Branches
1983 19 134 2064 9269 5338 49 103
1984 19 171 2815 12487 6580 58 106
1985 19 240 3091 13409 6752 90 108
1986 19 337 3915 14556 7345 136 108
1987 19 424 4765 16795 7810 157 108
1988-89 19 576 5473 17792 10820 228 115
1989-90 28 1025 6309 22604 12445 235 115
1990-91 28 1320 9309 30906 17257 305 117
1991-92 28 1826 12012 40819 20662 498 117
1992-93 28 2470 15975 54769 28838 665 123
1993-94 28 3874 20912 78897 43210 1036 133
1994-95 28 5528 29306 104404 63412 1683 139
1995-96 28 7916 34100 111687 69580 2405 139
1996-97 28 11317 49698 125830 74619 3420 142
1997-98 28 15107 66238 160445 82547 3815 142
1998-99 28 18587 88605 205595 97147 3503 144
1999-2000 28 22623 123899 266453 125504 4063 157
2000-2001 28 27643 148532 319807 158835 5040 160
2001-2002 28 33167 181571 372999 177266 5535 163
2002-2003 28 39660 214211 408458 195998 6376 165
2003-2004 28 47654 235371 440427 211399 8068 171
2004-2005 28 55856 228557 482688 262624 8235 172
2005-2006 28 65650 236194 520287 312639 10119 173
2006-2007 28 75887 231641 601988 404672 10578 183
2007-2008 28 85800 255354 767026 533132 12673 200
2008-2009 28 98824 320719 956604 657169 15021 213
2009-2010 28 114790 349919 1163930 828761 18453 216
2010-2011 28 |136573 376714 1379330 1075865 25090 233
2011-2012 28 163456 489027 1711044 1377886 31346 280
2012-2013 28 202179 534827 2022381 1625599 44028 320
2013-2014 28  |226931 677189 2264568 1714385 30077 370
2014-2015 28  [259403 767111 2564986 1933595 37940 430
2015-2016 28 294139 886470 3036886 2257771 40215 487
2016-2017 | 14251 |308153 1150447 3219015 2197232 31666 505
2017-2018 | 14251 |326228 1036361 3242833 2376872 22192 509
2018-2019 | 14251 |347574 910659 3513625 2648794 25858 509
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Cards of [
Convenience

Come with a host of

beneﬁts for yo

Two types of credit cards from TMB.

To suit different lifestyles. Both offer
unmatched comfort and convenience.
Go ahead, experience the advantage of
carrying a TMB Credit card.

TMB Titanium
Credit Card

e Credit Limit up to ¥ 5 lakh
e Free Credit period up to 45 days
e Cash withdrawal limit -

25% of Credit limit

Eligibility:
Gross annual income of % 3 lakh
and above

\]

TMB Platinum
Credit Card

e Credit Limit up to 75% of
term deposit value
e Maximum credit limit upto Rs. 5 lakh
e Deposit must be in the name of
cardholder

Eligibility:
Minimum Deposit amount ¥ 50,000
Minimum period of deposit 3 years

| Free personal accident insurance 3 5 lakh | EMV Chip Card for added security | Free Add-on Cards
| Personalized card with photo | Green pin facility | No joining fee and annual fee

www.tmb.in | Toll Free : 180 0425 0426

Follow us on “f TMBItd TMBstepqhecd




Finance, Advice & Opportunity

TMB MSME Credit offers you all

for your growth and success in life
v

Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

constitute an important growth engine of
economy.The growth of this sector is crucial for TA\B ~
job and wealth creation. At TMB, we are msm ) :

committed to providing full-fledged support to
the MSME Sector.

BN CREDIT BEETT=ey

TMB's financial assistance to MSMEs

We encourage people with entrepreneurial attitude and viable dreams. Be it your business
expansion or an idea for a new venture, if you think you have the will to succeed, you can be
sure TMB will fuel your dreams.

Project Finance | Term Loans | Working Capital Finance

Low Rate of Interest | Quick Processing

Tamilnad

A\ B Mercantile
‘4 Can be applied online also I Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead in life

tmbstepahead | f tmblid

Toll Free Number : 180 0425 0426 | www.tmb.in |®



